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The Legacy Begins
FHEIEE »

11947

Established Dah Sing
Bank which grew steadily
in the 1960s and 1970s
alongside the rapid
growth of Hong Kong's
economy.

REFTIRITT + ERFES
tTFRRRER  BFE
TEREBHLBERER -

1980

Introduced iconic brand logo
which integrates the Chinese
character “X” (large) with two
abacus counters in perfect
symmetry.

S mEERETY - RETE
PN TR, FNEREFR
T -

T 1981

Gained prominence in Central
after purchasing the ground
floor property at World-Wide
House to serve as flagship
branch.

S\ IR M AR IR BROK B 69 4R
R TIRITHIEE DT ©

« 1987

Acquired Hong Kong
Industrial and Commercial
Bank; listed Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited in

71990

Gained licence and
authorisation for Dah Sing Life

Assurance Co. Ltd. to conduct

long-term insurance business
in Hong Kong.

A ASREARASEE S

RIRA RIS -

< 1991

Moved into Dah Sing Financial
Centre on Gloucester Road as
corporate headquarters.

EUE LI BRI P O R

EERE -

71992

Expanded branch network and
customer base with acquisition
of Wing On Bank.

WK Z2iR1T - AL R DT 44
REPR -

1997

T 1999
Launched first-in-market

credit cardholders.

J=ETE

Automatic Add Value Service
for Octopus Card for Dah Sing

HLEEBEAGERFN\EBES
HIRERYE - RAMERFE

T 2005

Acquired Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. and Macau
Insurance Company Ltd. as
well as Pacific Finance (Hong
Kong) Ltd. in a separate
transaction.

% T UK B R P i SR SR 1T AR PS
REEROHBRAS - BIEA
BREME (FE ) BRAT -

Entered private banking
business through joint venture
D.A.H. Private Bank.
HREBMARITES -

« 2004

J. 2006

Became strategic investor of
Bank of Chongaing with a 17%
shareholding; increased stake
to 20% in 2007.
AREEIRITHARBE MRS -

T 2011

Established OK Finance Ltd.
to further penetrate the local
consumer finance market.
RULZEMHEARAT - BEAR
HUHBESRIMISMER -

T 2014

Launched Dah Sing Mobile
Banking App for individual
customers as one of Hong
Kong'’s early digital banking
players.

HE L KT B0 38 B T 1 R AR
B - ARBIERT RS
fBz— -

2013

Launched DS-Direct as a
one-stop digital banking, cash
management and trade

20154

T2018

Launched first-in-market
Autotoll e-Serve Credit Card
which made Mainland-Hong
Kong border crossings more
convenient.

T EEHEIARMAutotol BE
REAFT - ENPEBERRE -

2021

Moved into the new Dah Sing
Financial Centre on Queen’s Road
East to mark the next phase of
transformational growth.

R RPOBI 2R AER

finance service for corporate

the same year as the Group’s customers. 2485 - BRAMBREBLEE
holding company. 2008 BT EE P HEEDS-Direct—1Iik BT

WEEEBTHRT , BF - K b REFRBEFS -

MeEmEEBRASIER LM - —

Separately listed banking
businesses as Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited and
started to expand into the
Greater China market.
RIRITEBABRLS 2IF L
M- FABERPEEEBERE -

Opened Shing Yip Street branch as
part of a series of branch relocations
to strategically acquired properties
to strengthen the Bank’s franchise.
MEFDTHE  ZEEEYXEE
NTRERBHLENEZ—F -

Established Dah Sing Bank (China) with
headquarters in Shenzhen; other locations
were added in Shanghai, Zhenjiang,
Nanchang, Guangzhou, Foshan and Qianhai
in subsequent years.

PRILARFRERTT (( hE ) WHSRYIRR LT -
e BT -ma BN BURANES
EUTEE B FARERE -

The Legacy Continues
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
WUBEETIAT HK$ Million 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
kx&s Shareholders’ funds 24,965 25,566 27,211 28,441 29,913
BIMERMTA Additional equity instruments 899 899 899 899 899
BBES Subordinated notes 5,487 5,449 5,510 3,828 4,128
EPEH Deposits from customers 162,460 172,967 182,629 190,340 196,135
BEREIINENE Certificates of deposit issued 7,184 6,535 6,751 8,126 6,590
FREE Total deposits 169,644 179,502 189,380 198,466 202,725
BREE(RERERY) Total liabilities (including subordinated notes) 193,363 203,796 215,202 217,951 218,168
EEER(TREEHZE)  Advances to customers (excluding trade bills) 119,262 128,628 136,947 137,577 144,313
BE(E Total assets 219,241 230,276 243,406 247,306 248,979
REREEEF Profit attributable to shareholders 2,186 2,480 2,240 1,493 1,658
2FRERE Total dividend distribution 590 675 675 422 478
LUBTITS) T HK$
BIREREF Basic eamings per share 1.56 1.77 1.59 1.06 1.18
BHERE Dividends per share 042 0.48 0.48 0.30 0.34
KEAHINT Percentage %
ERHFRLE() Loan to deposit ratio (Note 1) 70.3 71.7 723 69.3 736
EaE Note:
1. BREFRLEARFERLB(TREESE 1. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to
B)EERAE(BEDBITNERE) 2t - customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates of

deposit issued).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
David Wai-Hung Tam

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Seng-Lee Chan
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

David Shou-Yeh Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCG, HKFCG

4 DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



HEmE
CORPORATE INFORMATION

SETEEAS

FEE
AFRITERAFIGILE - BEFRETEF
FTB A%

=S
ARFERITEIR L AIB T TEERE(FT TR AR
R

ARFIRTTER L AJB T TEFRE(TTIHARE

PRAEER
ARFERITER L FAITTEF
54

AFRTT(F B BRA AT THARRFREE

b3
BPIEFRITRDBR A AT ABHFREF

R BLEm

EERUIGE RN R PR
BB EZEAD
AP 258 T2 B RE BRI

EE-:01]

SEK o EREMMEAT
TMRER

BB ET B NER248%
RIS P L261E

T % 2507 8866

{EE : 2598 5052
IREBREAFSE RN - DSBAHKHH
#94E © http://www.dahsing.com
BREOELERBFE
BAERREBLSELER AT
BB BT EGKER18358
AFMABLI7EI712E1716 E
BH EmRBRERKR
EBHAERHITARAE
&35 - 2356
FEMNBRT

RINBITAR AT
RFEIT(REDAERAT
BB ERTIRNBR AR

(B2 AR FEREI2AE328E FTEH S HBIRTTZ
DITAMER )

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.LLF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 324 to 328 of this annual report for respective lists
of branches.)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 81, was appointed as the Chairman of the Company in
2004. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited and various other companies. He serves
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, DSFH and DSB. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was the Vice President
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology and has over 55 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Group
General Manager of DSFH and a Vice Chairman, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of DSB.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 69, was appointed as a Director of the Company in
2004 and promoted as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed
as Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Company in June
2017. Mr. Wong joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating
subsidiary of the Company, in 1977 and has served and managed
various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989, promoted
to Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as Vice Chairman
in April 2011. He is the Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Chairman
of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of various major
subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong and
Shanghai) in which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is
an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 40 years of experience in
banking.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 2004. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing
Insurance Company (1976) Limited. He serves as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Company, DSFH and DSB, a member
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the
Company and DSB and the Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He
was the Chairman of the NRC of the Company from August 2005 to
August 2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted in January 2022 and Mr.
Sze resigned in February 2022. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a former partner of an
international firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20
years.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director (“INED”) of the Company in August 2008 after his retirement
in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of Heidelberg China
Limited. He has served as a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company since
May 2011. He was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) (a key
operating subsidiary of the Company) in May 2012. He was further
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of DSB in December
2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the print
media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (INED”) of the Company in December 2017 and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company in June 2021. He was
also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a major
operating subsidiary of the Company, in December 2017, a member of
the Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of DSB in
August 2018, the Chairman of the RMCC of DSB in June 2020 and a
member of the Audit Committee of DSB in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of the Principal
Financial Group, Inc. (which is listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an
INED and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment Trust
(which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)). He is an INED and a member of the Finance Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of First Pacific Company
Limited (which is listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also a member
of the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a
Hong Kong unit trust whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange).
He is the Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and a member of the International Advisory Council of the
Faculty of Business and Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015
to July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of the
Company) from June 2013 to December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head
of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as
the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company until July
2015. He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003,
he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as the Chief
Executive Officer, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director (“INED”) of the Company in June 2021. He was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (a major operating subsidiary
of the Company) in March 2019. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of the Company)
during the period from December 2018 to June 2021. He started his
career with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
in 1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999. In
March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was Deputy
General Manager and the Head of Commercial Banking during 2003
to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement in
2012. He was also a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial bank
in Yantai, from December 2012 to June 2017. He is currently an INED
and a member of the Audit Committee of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited
and a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of
Nameson Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers and the Chartered Institute of Bankers in the
U.K. and an associate of the Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University of Toronto,
Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of experience in commercial
banking industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 61, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2004. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the
overall financial management and control, operations and IT functions
of the Group for a number of years. Mr. Wang was promoted as the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSB in May 2011 and was
re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate Chief
Executive of DSB in August 2017. He is also an Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited), as well as a Director of Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang was the
Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Company, DSFH
and DSB until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The University of Hong
Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial management
and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of the Company in June 2017. He is currently
a Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited. Mr.
Mayhew also serves as the Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and Head
of Treasury, Global Markets & Corporate Finance of DSB, responsible
for its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew was an
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent
company of the Company) during the period from August 2004 to May
2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese
and Economics) from the University of London. He has over 30 years of
experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 52, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) (a key
operating subsidiary of the Company) and the Group General Manager
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the parent company
of the Company). He joined DSB in 2000, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. Mr.
Wong was appointed as the Managing Director and Chief Executive
of DSB in August 2017. He was appointed as the Group General
Manager of DSFH in April 2011. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited.
Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Industry Advisory Committee
on Long Term Business established by the Insurance Authority and a
Non-official Member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of the
Trade and Industry Department. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor
of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s College, London, and is a
qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is
a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the
Company, DSB and DSFH.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Ms. Wong, aged 55, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Head of Retail Banking
in February 2012, responsible for the development and management
of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth
management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing. She
was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB in May 2012 and an
Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Brunel University (UK) via Henley
Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 30 years of experience in retail and
personal banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong,
including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Ms. Ma, aged 55, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, as Head of Corporate Banking in
February 2020, responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive Director and an
Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in February 2021. She has nearly 30
years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom
and the United States, mainly in commercial and corporate banking
with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma attained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from The London School of
Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Chan, aged 50, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, as General Manager and Head
of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB in March 2019. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of overall business strategies of DSB’s wealth
management business, including securities brokerage, retail wealth
management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered
Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private Wealth
Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of extensive experience in various areas including
financial services, manufacturing and public administration.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 49, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in July 2007.
He was the Head of Corporate Development, Strategy and Investor
Relations of the Group before the appointment as Director of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in November 2018. He was then appointed as Executive
Director of DSB China in June 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer
of DSB China in July 2021. Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience
in finance and banking industry in China and Hong Kong. He worked
for investment bank, international commercial bank, and international
accounting firm before joining DSB.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 57, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau), a key subsidiary
of the Company, in January 2020. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of solid
banking experience in Hong Kong and Macau. He started his career in
banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and immediately before joining DSB,
he was the CEO of HSBC Macau Branch.
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We are pleased to report an increase in profit attributable to
shareholders of 11% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
HK$1,658 million, despite continuing relatively weak business
conditions. Performance in the second half of the year was weaker
than that in the first half, due mainly to our banking business reporting
higher credit impairment charges and a higher impairment loss on our
investment in Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”). Net interest margin started
to improve towards the end of the year as interest rates began to rise.

Operating profit before impairment charges was slightly lower than the
prior year, down 2% compared with 2020. Net interest income grew by
7% during the year both due to the improved net interest margin and to
somewhat higher balances of interest earning assets, despite relatively
subdued demand conditions in our core loan markets. After a strong
year in 2020, non-interest income fell modestly by 7% for the year.

Loan demand remained weak across most business lines. Overall
loan growth was 5%, with modest growth in each of our commercial
and retail banking businesses. Our trade finance business rebounded
somewhat after a very difficult year in 2020, and our domestic
residential mortgage and consumer lending businesses were able to
report modest growth despite domestic business conditions remaining
challenging. Net interest margin grew by 9 basis points due both to our
efforts to control our funding cost during the year, and to some upward
movement in interest rates towards the end of the year.

Although overall non-interest income fell slightly, there was more
substantial growth in non-interest income in our commercial banking
business, and our wealth management business (excluding insurance
distribution), which grew revenues by 8% and 13% for the year
respectively.

With the improvement in the local economy, albeit off a low base in
the prior year, we saw notable improvement in credit quality, with
credit impairment charges falling by 42%. However, whilst overall
credit quality improved, there was some credit deterioration in the
Mainland China real estate sector. Both our Macau and Mainland
China subsidiary banks reported an increase in profit for the year. To
promote our banking services to individual customers in the Greater
Bay Area, Dah Sing Bank (China) has successfully launched its new
mobile banking app to meet the customers’ banking needs, with plans
to introduce more comprehensive functions and services in the coming
year.
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Our associate, BOCQ, reported a modest increase in profit attributable
to shareholders for the year. However, due to a reduction in the
valuation of this associate company in our regular year end revaluation,
we made a further provision of HK$475 million in the second half after a
provision of HK$251 million in the first half, bringing the total impairment
charge for the year to HK$726 million. It should be noted that the
provision made relating to BOCQ is non-cash and does not affect our
capital adequacy. BOCQ completed its A-share IPO in early February
2021, raising new equity to support its business growth. However, due
to the deemed dilution of our interest in BOCQ, this resulted in a loss
on the deemed disposal of this investment, of HK$31 million.

CAPITAL AND REGULATION

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated Common Equity Tier 1
ratio of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) was 14.2%, slightly higher
than the level of 13.8% at the end of 2020. Taking into account DSB’s
outstanding Tier 2 subordinated debts, DSB’s consolidated capital
adequacy level at the year end was 18.1%, modestly higher than the
prior year ratio of 17.6%. We continued to operate well above the
minimum Liquidity Maintenance Ratio of 25%, reporting an average
level of 46.9% during the year. We believe that our capital and liquidity
ratios are maintained at levels within the market range for both peer
banks in Hong Kong, and indeed for banks internationally.

CHANGES OF THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

The Board, Management and staff of the Group are saddened by the
passing of Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng, an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company, on 25 February 2021.

On 3 June 2021, Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.

The brief biographical details of Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in this
Annual Report.

The Board extends a warm welcome to Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam in
joining the Board, and expresses its sincere appreciation to the late
Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng for his valuable efforts and contributions to the Board
during his tenure of service with the Company.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

At present it is even more difficult than usual to have a clear view as
to events in the coming year. Whilst some trends are positive, notably
the increase in interest rates led by the US, others are more uncertain.
Increasing efforts are being made by the Hong Kong government to
rein in the latest wave of COVID infections, but it remains unclear at
present how long this will take, and how much impact there will be on
the economy. In general terms credit conditions have improved, there
are still sectors of the economy that have not yet stabilized, notably the
Mainland China real estate sector, although the bulk of our business
remains domestic Hong Kong business. Despite this very mixed
outlook, the local financial market has started the year on a positive
note.

We continue to invest in technology. Whilst this had been a direction
for us for some time, we believe that current changes in customer
behaviour caused by COVID will accelerate this trend, and therefore
that the ability for our customers to access our services via remote
channels has become increasingly important.

| also particularly want to recognize the efforts of our staff and
management team over the past two years in keeping our business
running smoothly during a period of many challenges. This has been
no small task and has required much dedication and flexibility from my
colleagues in all of our different businesses and locations.

Our capital adequacy and liquidity both remain robust, enabling us not
only to meet the challenges of a difficult business environment, but
also to position us for growth should market conditions allow. Liquidity
conditions domestically in Hong Kong, and our funding base, mainly
comprising domestic Hong Kong deposits, have stayed strong even
through the recent challenging times, and we expect that to continue.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

Whilst it is clear that there are many challenges to be faced in the
current difficult times, we believe that over the longer term economic
and business conditions will recover, and we will be prepared to move
back to a more growth focused strategy at the appropriate time.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

year are summarized in the table below:

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for the

(R BTHERE) L%

(including certificates of deposit
issued) ratio

20214 2020%F 2
2021 2020 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.72% 1.63%
BEET HK$ Million
EERA Operating income 5,384.2 5,248.8 2.6%
HBREEREEEA Operating profit before credit 2,363.0 2,415.9 2.2%
2B impairment losses
MR{EERERBR Operating profit after credit 1,989.7 1,768.9 12.5%
2 &R impairment losses
W 52 A4 Profit before taxation 1,965.7 1,809.4 8.6%
FEmF| Profit for the year 1,657.6 1,493.1 11.0%
TEIER & A R B e Profit attributable to shareholders 1,716.8 1,313.8 30.7%
2 Fm N SO B B excluding the share of net profit
518 2 AR SR PR T from and impairment and loss on
dilution on the investment in an
associate
BEER Advances to customers 144,313 137,577 4.9%
RPN Customers’ deposits 196,135 190,340 3.0%
BT RE Certificates of deposit issued 6,590 8,126 -18.9%
FRast Total deposits 202,725 198,466 2.1%
BEAF Total assets 248,979 247,306 0.7%
BfEAS Total liabilities 218,168 217,951 0.1%
BERED Shareholders’ funds 29,913 28,441 5.2%
FIN—REXR Additional tier 1 capital 899 899 0.0%
SFHRBUA S EEA Net interest income/operating income 73.3% 70.4%
PR AN U A B 2 Cost to income ratio 56.1% 54.0%
B E R R Return on average total assets 0.7% 0.6%
FHRRE S BIHR Return on average shareholders’ 5.7% 5.4%
fund
ER(TRIEESEE)EFR Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit 71.2% 69.3%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Hong Kong economy grew 6.4% in 2021 after contracting by
6.5% and 1.7% in 2020 and 2019 respectively. The Hong Kong local
COVID pandemic was relatively stable during 2021, which allowed
some relaxation of the social distancing measures in the second half
of the year. The local economy recorded steady recovery during 2021,
although it had not yet regained the level before the outbreak of COVID.

Total exports of goods grew strongly by 19% year-on-year in real terms
in 2021, supported by the continued recovery of major economies and
vibrant regional trade flows, against a lower 2020 base.

Benefiting from the more stable local epidemic situation and steady
economic recovery, private consumption expenditure rose 5.6% year-
on-year in real terms. The local unemployment rate fell to 3.9% by the
end of the year, much lower than the peak of 7.2% in February 2021.

After a strong rebound in the first half of 2021, economic activities in
Mainland China registered slower growth in the second half in 2021.
Mainland China reported GDP growth of 8.1% in 2021.

Interest rates were largely stable and short-term money market rates,
measured by short-term LIBOR and HIBOR, remained at extremely low
levels during the year, especially during the first three quarters in 2021.

Amid the difficult market conditions, our profit attributable to
shareholders in 2021 increased 11% to HK$1,658 million.

Operating income was 2.6% higher than 2020, mainly driven by higher
net interest income due to a wider net interest margin mainly as a result
of the lower funding cost during the year. Net fee and commission
income increased by 1%, mainly due to stronger wealth management
and securities related fees. Net trading income dropped significantly in
the year, due to higher funding swap cost, in response to a narrowing in
the HIBOR/LIBOR rate differential when compared with prior year.

Excluding the one-off subsidy from the Hong Kong Government’s
Employment Support Scheme in 2020, operating expenses increased
by 4.2%, due both to wage increases and continued investment
including higher spend on IT related projects. Credit impairment
charges dropped by 42% year-on-year, reflecting a better credit
environment in 2021, and improvement in our asset quality.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Value in Use of our investment in Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)
was again below the carrying value of the investment as at 31
December 2021, resulting in the need for a further impairment charge
of HK$475 million for the second half year, which together with the
impairment charge of HK$251 million made at the mid-year, resulted
in a total impairment charge for the year of HK$726 million, higher
than 2020 by HK$195 million. Despite this, the operating performance
of BOCQ remained satisfactory, and our share of its net profit was
HK$698 million, slightly below the prior year.

Our businesses in Macau and China delivered better results due
primarily to improvement on net interest margin and lower credit
impairment.

With the improvement in our net profit, the Group’s return on
shareholders’ funds increased from 5.4% in 2020 to 5.7% in 2021.
Cost to income ratio increased from 54.0% in 2020 to 56.1% in
2021, although the ratio for 2020 would have been 55.2%, if the one-
off Government Employment Support Scheme subsidy in 2020 was
excluded.

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) strengthened to 14.2%, compared
with 13.8% at the end of 2020, driven mainly by higher retained
earnings. Taking into account DSB’s outstanding Tier 2 subordinated
debts, DSB’s consolidated capital adequacy level at the year end was
18.1%, higher than the prior year of 17.6%. Our banking business
continued to operate well above the minimum Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio of 25%, reporting an average level of 47% during the year. We
believe that our capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels
within the market range for both peer banks in Hong Kong, and indeed
for banks internationally.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Personal Banking

The operating environment in 2021 recorded moderate recovery
although challenges remained as COVID-related impact continued to
linger. Our Personal Banking business delivered stable performance
during the year and stayed focused on building its customer franchise
through its omni-channel value proposition to improve customer
experience while maintaining operational resilience amidst the
pandemic.

Overall deposits remained stable while the proportion of current
account and savings account (“CASA”) deposits grew, a result of our
further effort to expand our target customer base and deepen our
customer relationships. Our deposit strategy was underpinned by our
segment-based strategy to grow our business portfolio. Customer
assets under management of our VIP Banking wealth management
segment registered a moderate increase compared with the previous
year notwithstanding the weaker stock market in late 2021. Our
YOU Banking product, targeted at younger customers through digital
channels, achieved double digit growth in customer numbers. We
also made good progress in growing our Retail SME segments with
enhanced account opening efficiency aided by the opening up of SME
banking centres.
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DSB YOU Banking helps young upwardly
professionals to accumulate wealth in a
smart way.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Personal Banking (Continued)

We are pleased to report a 40% reduction in our credit cost
year-on-year, reflecting the better credit conditions in the market during
the year.

Subdued private consumption caused challenges to our credit card
business, as the retail and tourism related sectors remained constrained
by the COVID pandemic. During the year, we continued to actively
pursue our card acquisition drive while increasing credit card balances
through a diverse range of usage programs throughout the year.

The performance of our Wealth Management business was supported
by the strong growth in investment fee income of 20% year-on-year
while securities fee income delivered 6% year-on-year growth despite
the Hong Kong stock market weakness during the second half of the
year. Meanwhile, with the promising results from the SME and merchant
business acquisition efforts, we are pleased to see a respectable
growth in banking fees performance from such growing businesses.

Our Private Banking business continued to make efforts in cross-selling
to our Corporate Banking customer base with encouraging growth in
customer assets under management and fee income. Overall operating
income grew by 8% year-on-year as robust growth in fee income
helped to offset softer net interest income brought by lower market rate
and compressed loan yields.
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DSB won “Merits of Small Start-up and
Micro  Businesses  Services”  under
“CAPITAL Merits of Achievement in
Banking and Finance” presented by
CAPITAL  Magazine for the  third
consecutive year.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Personal Banking (Continued)

Digital transformation continued to be a key business and operational
focus as we invest in digital solutions to improve our customer
experience across all customer touchpoints. A key milestone during
the year was the launch of our revamped mobile banking platform with
a new interface design and additional functions. By the end of 2021,
the number of active mobile banking users increased by 40% while the
number of mobile payment transactions increased by 38%. Measured
across all our digital banking platforms, the number of active users rose
by 12% and the number of digital payment transactions surged by 55%.
A similar upgrade program was launched during the year for our Mobile
Securities Trading App+ which helped to increase the number of users
and the volume of securities transactions via the app by 13% and 14%
respectively in the year.

37 88 17
g DjFAH*gIEG BANK

2 App+

>,
EALT

(4 z8

CRARITHTE SR ERRETE K%”&Ej‘ﬁi - KFTER

BEPERE

DSB launched the upgraded Securities Trading App+ which helps customers screen stocks more
easily and capture trading opportunities more promptly. Mr. Cliff Chan, Executive Director and
Head of Wealth Management of DSB, Mr. Gary Wan, Senior Economist of DSB and Ms. June Lam,
Veteran Journalist introduced the new functions at press conference.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Meanwhile, DSB opened its first flagship digital branch at 248 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong in March 2021. Designed with enhanced customer
experience in mind, the branch operation leverages technology to simplify
the transaction process for customers, enabling our staff to focus on
understanding our customers and attending to their needs with relevant
products and services. A broader digitalization program is currently
underway which includes efforts to go paperless across our branch
network to improve operational efficiency and reduce operating costs, as
well as contributing to meeting the Group’s environmental commitment.

A KHRITH2021F3 AE 2 RERMAR 7 B RBHEE DT o
DSB opened its first flagship digital branch at Queen’s Road East in March 2021.
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DSB will continue to allocate resources to upgrade and/or relocate
our branches to improve our customer service and to achieve greater
operational efficiency. As at the end of December 2021, our presence in
Hong Kong included 43 retail branches, within which there were 27 VIP
Banking centers, 16 securities trading centers and 10 SME centers.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Looking further afield, DSB announced in October its participation in the
Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme in the Greater
Bay Area (“GBA”). In the initial phase, DSB will collaborate with Dah
Sing Bank (China) (“DSB China”) to establish a wealth management
platform to introduce offshore financial products to Southbound investors.
These include a diverse range of mutual funds featuring different global
markets, investment strategies and currency denominations, as well as a
selection of deposit products in 11 currencies. DSB will continue to explore
further opportunities to leverage our presence in the GBA to broaden our
customer base and provide better services to customers.

O ZIFERIE
PEISTRNA

‘ =

A XHBITATESRVEETEEIEMRARLAR [BIRIEE | BitEsEER

i -2

Mr. Cliff Chan, Executive Director and Head of Wealth Management of DSB
delivered a speech at Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme

Online Seminar.
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Corporate Banking

Our Corporate Banking business continued to focus on implementing
our customer account strategy across different target customer
segments as a part of the execution of our Medium Term Strategy I,
aiming at providing a broad range of Corporate Banking products and
services to our customers.
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ERRBBEm) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
BERIT@ Corporate Banking (Continued)
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We further strengthened our collaboration with DSB China in serving
our Mainland corporate customers. This included DSB China colleagues
providing witness service for our corporate customers in China to open
bank accounts with our Corporate Banking Division in Hong Kong.
These facilitated Mainland customers to establish banking relationship
and conduct banking transactions with us in Hong Kong without
travelling to Hong Kong during the pandemic situation.

In addition to the tough operating environment brought by the pandemic
and the weaker business performance of many corporate and SME
customers, we also faced challenges such as weaker loan demand and
more cautious credit underwriting in 2021. Despite all these difficulties,
our Corporate Banking business reported net increase in loan balances,
a result of our focus in expanding our business relationship with solid
and well-established mid-market and larger companies, in addition to
our continued support to SME customers.

Net interest income was better than prior year driven by the moderate
loan growth. Despite the low interest rate environment and tighter
interest spread earned on loans in general for our Corporate Banking
business, benefiting from lower funding costs, its net interest margin in
the year slightly improved. Our Corporate Banking business’s deposit
base was stable, including low cost deposits, which allowed us to fund
our asset growth while prudently managing our liquidity. Non-interest
income in the year was slightly above prior year, driven by higher
wealth management fee working with our Private Banking colleagues,
and increases in loan fees, which had helped offset the shortfall in
foreign exchange related income.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Corporate Banking (Continued)

Loan impairment charges were lower in the year, mainly due to lower
non-performing loans arising from our SME customers, and recoveries
from some corporate bad debts. Lower provision for potential or
expected credit losses was required at the end of the year, after
considering the forward-looking macroeconomic outlook and the credit
quality of our loan portfolio. Overall, the asset quality of our Corporate
Banking loan portfolio remained manageable as of the end of 2021. We
will continue to closely manage the credit quality of our loan portfolio.

We continued to invest in digital solutions and upgrade our digital
banking platform to enhance customer experience, with a focus on
our capabilities of Transaction Banking including our digital channel —
DS-Direct. We continued to invest in our people to upgrade their
banking knowledge and credit skills. Meanwhile, we had made further
streamlining of our internal process to improve our efficiency and
enhance our service quality, which are important in our pursuit of
delivering better and more intimate services to our customers.

With the efforts we made and business initiatives we pursued in
executing our strategy, and the implementation of the new Medium
Term Strategy, we have built a stronger foundation for our Corporate
Banking business to support our growth and better customer service in
2021.
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ERRBBEm) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
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Our Treasury and Global Markets division reported somewhat lower
profit in 2021, with a drop in attributable profit of 11% to HK$502 million.
Despite low interest rates for the first three quarters of the year, net
interest income grew by 12% to HK$748 million for the year, with net
interest margin increasing modestly from 0.84% to 0.94%.

With lower volatility in the FX markets, and consequently lower volumes
of customer activity, both our trading and fee income businesses were
under some pressure. Trading conditions were difficult, both with lower
market volatility and higher net cost in our funding swap activity during
the year due to the lower differential between US dollar and HK dollar
rates as well as subdued transaction volumes in our customer related
and proprietary trading activities.

Our marketing and sales performance was buoyed by the robust
performance of our retail banking business which continued to be the
main contributor to our customer related activities. Overall operating
expenses increased by 11%, as we continued to invest in both people
and technology. Our credit impairment charge, on the expected credit
loss methodology, reduced to HK$15 million for the year. However,
underlying credit quality remained good, with an average rating of A-,
and with no defaults or actual credit loss experienced in the Treasury
portfolios during the year.

Liquidity was prudently managed with the average Liquidity
Maintenance Ratio for the year being maintained at 47%, slightly lower
than 48% of prior year. We maintained our high quality liquid assets
portfolio and managed the cash flow of DSB in a conservative manner
given the overall challenging operating environment and uncertainties
faced during the course of the year.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

In 2021, the economy of Macau, which relies heavily on gaming
and tourism, continued to be affected by the COVID pandemic. In
particular, the pace of recovery was severely impacted by the local
COVID outbreaks between August and October, which led to tightening
of cross-border travel between Macau and the Mainland for several
months. As a result, the number of visitor arrivals of full year 2021,
albeit somewhat higher than 2020, was still substantially lower than
the pre-COVID level of 2019 by 80%, and the amount of full year 2021
Gross Gaming Revenues was only 30% of that of 2019, significantly
lower than Government’s original projection for 2021.

Against such a slow and difficult operating environment and the fierce
market competition in Macau, our subsidiary, BCM, paid much effort
in building and strengthening its banking business and achieved a
mild growth of 1.1% in its loan portfolio. Overall net interest margin
of the year improved from 1.32% in 2020 to 1.37%, as BCM reduced
its funding cost by actively managing down higher-cost deposits and
placed added emphasis on return when granting new credit facilities.
To diversify the funding sources and help reduce its funding cost, BCM
successfully completed two issuances of non-negotiable certificates of
deposit in the year. Total operating income was slightly lower than the
prior year by 1.1%, mainly due to slightly lower net interest income, a
result of lower interest-earning assets in the year. Operating expenses
were similar to the prior year, although BCM continued its investments
in the renovation of the VIP Banking Flagship Centre and other IT
projects. Credit losses were significantly lower than the prior year, after
the exceptionally high loan losses recorded in 2020 in response to the
unexpected COVID outbreak and severe economic contraction, and
in part due to our prudent credit risk management amidst the weak
economic conditions. As a whole, BCM recorded a significantly higher
2021 net profit when compared with 2020, more than doubling from the
prior year, due mainly to the much higher credit losses in 2020.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) (Continued)

During the year, BCM launched new products and enhanced services
to increase its competitiveness. In the fourth quarter, BCM launched
a new product named “Reverse ELI”, which was the first of its kind in
Macau, to cater for customers’ needs amidst the stock market volatility.
In April 2021, the VIP Flagship Centre in its Macau Main Branch was
renovated and officially opened, and a new 24/7 Automated Self-
Servicing Centre was also launched to the public.
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BCM launched the newly upgraded VIP Banking service as well as the brand new VIP Flagship
Centre located in the main branch in April 2021. The service upgrade has introduced new exclusive
VIP banking services and the revolutionary inheritance program which enables spouse and children
of VIP customers to enjoy the exclusive offers together.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) (Continued)

BCM continued to improve and enhance its digital banking capabilities
in line with its strategy, including being one of the first banks in Macau
to launch “Easy Transfer”, a new real-time inter-bank faster transfer
system led by the local government. Following the Group’s strategy of
stronger customer focus and delivering higher customer satisfaction,
BCM rolled out an internal customer centricity culture reform program
in September — aiming to create a customer centric environment and
in turn help BCM in building long-lasting and rewarding relationships
with customers. A number of initiatives have since been launched, with
more to be done, for its staff to embrace the customer centric mindset.
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BCM Easy Transfer Service was launched in
December 2021 to provide round-the-clock
interbank transfer service. Customers can
simply make online transfer via BCM internet
banking and mobile banking to other local
banks without boundaries.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Dah Sing Bank (China) (“DSB China”)

DSB China’s profitability improved in 2021. Its net interest margin was
maintained above 1.8%, with a modest loan and deposit growth during
the year, despite the COVID pandemic. DSB China remained vigilant
and selective in managing and growing its commercial and retail lending
businesses, and had continued to tightly control its credit underwriting
and risk management to maintain stable asset quality.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China, with a
network comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in
Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in
Foshan), and a sub-branch in Shenzhen Qianhai, offering a wide range
of commercial and retail banking lending, deposits and related banking
services to customers in China, especially to customers that have GBA
cross-border banking needs.

Cross-border business momentum and flows were severely impacted
since the traffic across the border reduced significantly, whilst the
Mainland domestic market was affected from time to time by various
macroeconomic prudential measures and new Government policies and
rules, including those focusing on consumer protection and antitrust.
Policy tightening measures in relation to the real estate financing
market affected banking and bond markets in the year. A slower rate of
growth in China was recorded in the second half, although the country
still achieved meaningful economic growth in 2021.

During the year, DSB China’s commercial banking business achieved
stable business results, and had benefited from the write-back of loan
loss provision, thanks to effective credit risk control and management,
further to our effort in the prior year. The retail banking business of
DSB China recorded stronger performance versus the prior year, as
measured by its loan and deposit growth, and revenue contribution.

We are pleased that the cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect
was promptly established and DSB China was one of the first banks
being approved to offer this new service in the Mainland. With the
expectation of closer collaboration with DSB in Hong Kong, DSB China
is given the opportunity to further expand its retail customer base in
the GBA, which is beneficial to both DSB China and the Group in the
medium term.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

BOCQ delivered better business performance and financial results in
2021, with its profit attributable to shareholders up by 5.4%. BOCQ'’s
loans and deposits grew 12.3% and 7.7% respectively and it reported
higher operating income, which was mainly caused by the improvement
in operating conditions. Non-performing loan ratio and non-performing
loan coverage ratio at the end of 2021 was 1.30% and 274%
respectively, as compared to 1.27% and 309% respectively at the end
of 2020.

BOCQ successfully completed its A-share IPO in February 2021,
with gross proceeds of approximately RMB3.8 billion, contributing to
raising equity capital and improving its capital adequacy ratio. After the
completion of the IPO, the Group’s interest in BOCQ was reduced from
14.66% to 13.20%.

Our share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognized on the equity
accounting basis, which amounted to HK$698 million in 2021. Due
to a further lowering in the Value in Use of our investment in BOCQ
assessed at June and also at the end of 2021, a total impairment
charge of HK$726 million on this investment was recognised in our
2021 consolidated results, compared with HK$531 million in 2020.

With the impairment charge in the year slightly higher than our share
of BOCQ net profit recorded in 2021, and the separate recognition of
HK$31 million deemed disposal loss arising from BOCQ’s A-share
IPO and the modest dilution in our interest in the form of a deemed
disposal of a portion of our interest in BOCQ, we recognized an overall
negative contribution in the year from our investment in BOCQ. The
carrying value of our investment in BOCQ, net of the total impairment
allowance, decreased slightly to HK$4,231 million as at 31 December
2021 compared with HK$4,278 million as at 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk limits or tolerances are set for the major risks inherent in the
Group’s operations, including both quantifiable risks such as credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, as well as less-
quantifiable risks, which include operational risk and reputation risk.
These limits and tolerances are monitored regularly by management
and reported to the Board level Risk Management and Compliance
Committee to achieve proper risk governance and oversight.

Benefiting from the economic recovery in 2021, the risk profile of the
banking business of the Group improved, resulting in better asset
quality metrics when compared with 2020.

Since the implementation of accounting standard HKFRS 9 starting
1 January 2018, the Group has implemented a set of Expected
Credit Loss (“ECL”) models and other tools to assess the amount
of impairment provision required for the credit portfolios, taking into
account macroeconomic factors, risk characteristics of the portfolios, as
well as forward-looking elements during the ECL calculation process.
Regular reviews were conducted on quarterly basis to assess possible
developments in the macroeconomic environment and ensure that
major issues that could affect future credit losses are properly and
fairly evaluated, and reasonable provisions for ECL are maintained.
Due to the significant economic downturn in 2020 and swings in the
economic recovery and forward-looking outlook in 2021, we conducted
a comprehensive review of our ECL models and calculations at the
year end to ensure that we had made adequate and appropriate ECL
provisions for our credit portfolios.

Moreover, the Group, further to its efforts in prior years, embarked
on preparations to deal with climate risk management and support
green and sustainable banking initiatives, including the formulation of
the related risk appetite and policies and action plans. The Group has
also participated in the industry-wide stress testing exercise organized
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”) so as to enable it to
build up the capabilities to manage this new and evolving risk and the
related risk management. During the year, the Group also took action
to prepare for the transition of LIBOR to an alternative reference rate, in
line with the transition milestones set by the HKMA.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Cybersecurity and effectively mitigating cyber threats are a continuous
and increasing focus of the Group, which is closely monitored by
Management and regularly reviewed at Board level, including in the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee, as a part of our risk
governance and risk management, and to ensure that our cybersecurity
objectives and defence are commensurate with our business needs,
protection of customer data, technology and market developments.

The Group follows the requirement and implementation as mapped
out by the Cybersecurity Fortification Initiative 2.0 of HKMA, and has
implemented various cybersecurity resilience measures, controls and
defences to safeguard against system attack as well as data breach,
including a multi-layer security infrastructure and various defence and
prevention system tools. The Group has engaged qualified professional
firms to perform ongoing monitoring, detection and mitigation of cyber
intrusion attacks, and conduct assessments as well as simulated
attacks to ensure the robustness of the Group’s cyber defences, and to
enable us to keep abreast of sound market practices.

On the anti-money laundering (“AML”) front, as part of our continuing
efforts to strengthen our AML risk management framework including
governance, three lines of defence, policy and procedures, customer
risk assessment, customer due diligence, and transaction monitoring,
we have engaged an external consultant to assist us to enhance
our overall AML/CFT controls over the longer term. A number of
enhancements have been implemented, while some upgrade actions
are in progress. We are also making progress in our AML/CFT Regtech
adoption journey, with an aim to better mitigate money laundering or
terrorist financing risk, and enhance AML operational efficiency.
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EXARREBES CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY
20214 2020%F

AEE The Group 2021 2020
PR T 2 B ANERR Capital base of banking subsidiaries

(LABBITat) (HK$ million)
M»12A318 At 31 December
— EmARE—A — Common Equity Tier 1 24,354 22,799
——& — Tier 1 25,252 23,697
——% — Tier 2 5,854 5,421
g 2 B AR K4z Total capital base after deductions 31,106 29,118
- Ay Capital adequacy ratio*
— TR E—R — Common Equity Tier 1 14.2% 13.8%
——& — Tier 1 14.7% 14.3%
— B — Total 18.1% 17.6%
TRED I HES L Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.9% 47.8%

(FEFH) (average for the year)

LLEMETE O E B TS RARIEERR -

BN MEMERT L R TR R IRTT (B IERPIRE 2ERTT
RARFRIT(PE))RMBEFEE12ARNEEA
ZFHGA R IR R RBEGRITEORBIE)

RADFE -

2021F12 A31H &2020F 12 A31HZEA R B
LR TR FRTT (B IERPI R 3 RIT R RFIRAT
(FRED)BEREMR - HE2ZERITE(ER)R
BVEREERBTEINERS - ZFEEERTR

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December

2020 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and

DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking

(Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into

account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each

calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of DSB

(covering BCM and DSB China) for the twelve months of the financial

year, computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
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CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY (continued)

The Group’s banking business continued to maintain healthy capital
adequacy ratios over the year.

We continued to maintain throughout the year a high liquidity
maintenance ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets including
high quality liquid assets (such as Hong Kong Exchange Fund bills
and notes), cash and placements with banks, and other diversified
marketable securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

Stress testing on our capital and liquidity positions is a regular and
ongoing exercise conducted by our risk management function, with the
results reviewed by Management on a periodic basis. Regular update
and high-level reporting on our capital and liquidity positions, including
the results of stress testing, are submitted to the Board-level Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and highlighted to the Board.

HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2021, the Group’s Culture & Values was updated to align with our
changing operating environment, and incorporated innovation as one
of our core values. A series of staff communication had been launched
to help every staff member better understand and live with the Group’s
Culture & Values. A programme on embracing a speak-up culture was
launched in October 2021 to raise staff awareness on our speak-up
channels. An online employee survey was launched in November 2021
for the second time since 2019 to assess awareness of our Culture &
Values and to measure progress made in enhancing our commitment
with our staff. The survey results were presented to management in
December 2021 and will be communicated to employees.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (Continued)

According to the requirement stipulated in the HKMA’s Supervisory
Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”,
the discretionary performance incentive bonus of employees with
adverse performance in non-financial performance factors have been
reduced or eliminated. Our performance management process was
further enhanced in 2021 by rewarding employees with outstanding
performance in non-financial performance factors with additional
discretionary performance incentive bonus. A culture and conduct
related dashboard is also prepared on a regular basis to facilitate
tracking of relevant indicators and analysis.

In 2021, we have launched various training and development programs
to uplift the digital literacy of all employees and enhanced technology
in our HR management processes. Furthermore, we enhanced our
group medical insurance benefits for all employees and dependents,
in addition to offering vaccination and post-vaccination leave and lucky
draws to encourage staff vaccination.

Due to the changes in market conditions in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China markets, the Group’s headcount slightly decreased in
2021, with the total number of employees of our Group decreasing from
2,941 at the end of 2020 to 2,875 at the end of 2021.

Additional information on our human resources development covering
employment, health and safety, training and development, awards
and recognition is included under the section “Workplace” in the 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“Company” or “Group”) are committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within
the Group and devote considerable effort to identify and formalize best
practices. We believe that sound and effective corporate governance
practices are essential for delivering sustainable value, enhancing a
culture of business integrity and maintaining investors’ confidence.
Good corporate governance promotes and safeguards the interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the credibility
and reputation of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) which are applicable to the
Company in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021 CG Code”) with the exception of code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
of the 2021 CG Code as explained in the following relevant sections.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements set out in the 2021 CG Code of Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, and explains how the Company applies the principles
of the 2021 CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets the
business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution of
those objectives by the Management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the Management, and has delegated responsibility for certain
matters to a number of committees, which are described more fully in
the following sections. As defined in the Board’s terms of reference,
there are a number of matters which require the deliberation of the full
Board, and may not be delegated to the committees of the Board or the
Management. These reserved matters include:

- setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the Group

- approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

- establishing and overseeing risk governance

- appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

- setting corporate values and standards

- ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

- ensuring effective audit function and internal control

- ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management

- matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholders or
any Director

- material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Company), investments and
business reorganization

- appointment of Directors and also appointment of individual
Directors as the chairman or members of Board Committees

- corporate governance functions in respect of the development
and review of policies and practices on corporate governance

- overseeing management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems

- evaluating and determining the Company’s ESG-related strategy
and risks, and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems are in place
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised 8 Directors, namely
Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing Wong (Derek
Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive), Gary
Pak-Ling Wang and Nicholas John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive) as
Executive Directors (“EDs”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Seng-Lee
Chan, Blair Chilton Pickerell and David Wai-Hung Tam as Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). There is a strong independent
element in the Board to ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board’s decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and
impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In
addition, the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise
relevant to the business activities of the Company in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight. Brief biographical particulars of the
Directors are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
of this Annual Report. The Company has maintained on the respective
websites of Dah Sing Bank and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEX”) an updated list of its Directors including their roles
and functions and whether they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified
as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Company’s Directors.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in accordance with
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Following such
assessment, the Board considers all the INEDs to be independent.
Further, the Company has also received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the NEDs (including
INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions of their appointment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that no single individual should have unfettered
powers of decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held separately
by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
respectively. This segregation ensures a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business and
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman mainly provides
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman possesses
the requisite experience, competencies and personal qualities to fulfill
these responsibilities. The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,
enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal control.

NEDs (including INEDs)

The Company has 4 INEDs. Each of the INEDs has provided to the
Company confirmation of his independence as required under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1)
and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient number of INEDs who possess the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the 2021 CG Code, NEDs should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The NEDs of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
NEDs (including INEDs) (Continued)

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. They attend regular and special Board meetings, and are
encouraged to attend the general or extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The NEDs make valuable
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments and
suggestions.

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as
necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings
and the annual general meeting in 2021 are set out in the section on
Attendance Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance, matters
that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept by the
Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committees, and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also meets with the
INEDs, without the presence of other Directors and other Management
staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion on issues relating to the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Process (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an appropriate
professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The Company
maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

- to review the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements

- to review the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and directors

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
approve disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions (Continued)

The following is a summary of the matters relating to the above
corporate governance duties reviewed and discussed by the Board in
2021:

- Corporate Governance Report of 2020

- Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report of 2020

- Management’s confirmation on effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group

- Changes of the composition of the Board/Board Committee
- Revised Group Remuneration Policy
- ESG Strategy of the Group and update of the Group’s progress

in meeting the new ESG requirements as set out in the updated
ESG Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’ securities
transactions (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the prevailing required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the
Directors of the Company confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Directors’ Dealing
Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after his/her appointment.
Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the 2021 CG Code, every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All new Directors
are subject to election by shareholders of the Company at the next
annual general meeting after their appointments have become effective.
All other Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.
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ExgRE Delegation by the Board
EEOBR T RARGLEATNEEGUREZEZE The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit
T U EEERITERE - Committee were set up under the authority of the Board, to assist the
Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
Efxe REAKFHNEZEEEUREZZES R The current composition of the Board, the Nomination and

AR EHAFFYIT

Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee is as follows:

=g Board

BOTES EDs

EFRE(FRE) David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

=R (FEE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman,

BEFBICIEFTIHARH) Managing Director and Chief Executive)

FiR% Gary Pak-Ling Wang

BBEE (BT TEAES) Nicholas John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive)

BUFPITES INEDs

s EMR Robert Tsai-To Sze

Gl Seng-Lee Chan

*mE Blair Chilton Pickerell

PR David Wai-Hung Tam
RER Nomination and
FTMZEES Remuneration Committee ERZEES Audit Committee
BYKHITEE  INEDs BAFETEE  INEDs
BRESFI(E£/E) Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman) SEE(EE) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
£ &k Robert Tsai-To Sze ER A5 A Seng-Lee Chan

EmE Blair Chilton Pickerell

HITES ED
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Induction and Training for Directors

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction
handbook and materials relevant to the Company and briefed by the
Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Group and that he or she is aware
of his or her responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations.
The Company also organized continuous professional development
and training to its Directors to ensure that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors
provided to the Company Secretary a record of the training they
received in 2021.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the year:

b
Training Areas
REEE/
BEERE/ EEEK %/
TEER RER B %
Regulatory/ Group’s  Macroeconomics/
Corporate Business and Business/
s Directors Governance Management Financial
BUHATEE INEDs
ki Robert Tsai-To Sze v/ v/ v/
BRI Seng-Lee Chan v v g
EhE Blair Chilton Pickerell v/ v v/
EEE(R2021F6 A3HEZR(T) David Wai-Hung Tam (appointed on 3 June 2021) v v -
HiTEE EDs
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong v v -
HER Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) v/ v/ /
FrE Gary Pak-Ling Wang v/ v v/
i Nicholas John Mayhew / v v/
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board set out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of
the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
roles and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in
August 2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. The NRC has
the following roles and responsibilities:

- To make nomination or review and endorse the nomination
for appointment as directors, and to review and endorse the
nomination for appointment as senior management

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
and operation of the Company’s remuneration system

- To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Company’s remuneration policy and practices

- To review and endorse the specific remuneration packages of
directors and senior management

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Corporate Governance Duties

The NRC also performs the following duties:

To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and also its committees at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members

- To review the Director Nomination Policy

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related measurable
objectives and the progress on achieving these objectives

- To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
and related responsibilities

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the members are
INEDs. The current members of the NRC are Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
(Chairman), Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze and Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong.
The terms of reference for the NRC are available on the websites of
Dah Sing Bank and HKEX.

The NRC held four meetings in 2021. The attendance record of the
NRC members at NRC meetings held in 2021 is set out in the section
on Attendance Records of this CG Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Corporate Governance Duties (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the NRC during 2021:

- Reviewing and endorsing the remuneration levels for executive
directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors to the
Board/member to a Board Committee

- Reviewing and endorsing the appointment and remuneration
package of a senior executive and the update of the title of an
executive director

- Reviewing and endorsing the re-election of directors

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration policy and
related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company and Dah Sing
Bank

- Reviewing the 2020 Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for the Chief
Executive and Division Head positions of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing the culture enhancement initiatives pursued by the
Group

- Reviewing and endorsing on no change to the Terms of
Reference of the NRC

- Reviewing and approving the revised Code of Conduct for Staff
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages of
EDs:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines
- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in December
2013 which is subject to regular review to ensure its effectiveness.
The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of its
performance which in turn benefits the Company and its business as a
whole.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board in supporting the attainment of its sustainable
development. Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the factors
on personal attributes outlined above, expectation on contribution to the
Board, and the benefit of diversity of the Board.

The NRC will review and report annually, in the corporate governance
report to the Board, a summary of the Policy, the measurable objectives
to implement the Policy and progress made towards achieving those
objectives.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the Board in May
2019 which is subject to regular review to ensure its effectiveness.
The Director Nomination Policy describes the process for identifying
and evaluating potential candidates for appointment to the Company’s
Board of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of the candidates for nomination as Director,
the NRC shall consider the candidates on the basis of the selection
criteria set out in the Director Nomination Policy which includes his/her
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience in the financial
services industry or other industries, commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest, diversity perspectives including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length
of service, and independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of proposed appointment of independent non-
executive director.

For appointment or election of a new Director, the NRC shall take the
lead in identifying candidates suitably qualified to become a Director.
The NRC may solicit ideas for identification of candidates from a
number of sources including present members of the Board, senior
management and individuals personally known to the members of the
Board. The NRC and senior management will also consider information
and comment on individual candidates coming from other sources,
including but not limited to well regarded senior business executives
or professionals, professional firms, and business associates. Any
shareholder of the Company may nominate a person for election
as a director of the Company at a general meeting and the relevant
procedures are set out in the Procedure for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders which are available on the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The NRC shall consider candidates recommended as nominees for
directors submitted to the NRC by any directors, senior management or
shareholders of the Company, provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such nomination shall comply with the notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Articles of Association.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

The NRC shall endeavor to consider and select individuals who
possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively make
contribution to the Board. In conducting the assessment, the NRC shall
take into account the selection criteria set out in the Director Nomination
Policy as well as the prevailing composition of the Board to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills amongst
members of the Board. The NRC shall then make recommendations
or endorsement to the Board on the appointment of the candidates for
directorship.

For retiring directors who are eligible for re-election at general meetings,
the NRC shall determine if the incumbent directors consenting to re-
nomination continue to be qualified and proposes the retiring directors
for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of the Company,
is responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the Directors have exercised
the care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate
accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The AC makes recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of the head of internal audit and reviews the effectiveness
of the internal audit function.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The AC reviews
and monitors the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards.

KIBITEBBR AR 2021 FF 5|

55



EEER®RS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

56

-ERZEEEW)

ERZBRENLERANAR ZFE R HR %
WRZIFLE  BREERVMBREAGARAZIEE
A5 S e )

i3

ERZEERAARAZARNEE  YAESFE
BEETZRANERRERER - ARTANEE
ZHIENHASEN T X - KEAREEERERE
ZECMBIRBEZABENINFEMBHREM
AR TSR EIE A o

ERZEG RERENTRAHBITIREERS
FRE &R -

ERZBESRARERLBEAL(ERE) - REB
MEEREMELLE - MEBRZEGKE RS
MHERTEE  WERRT  MBEREEEEAR
B 2 EBMELERAEREHINAES
1996F6 A R—H GBI EBEM A B A (L ZEHED
%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ%%EW*LQE‘l’Em%ﬂ&FﬁZﬁﬁ%) °
B EXATsh - ZE S REE MK E R HIA
Hipm A BmAR EZHIJEEEJZEEEWHH%%(EWﬁ b
BRAR -

AR AR HEA2021F3 108 2 AT E -
RRBAE(RARRBILERTEETRERE
BgvKB)BE KRB ZERZEGKEN
ABRHA EHAAEINEREASHAE=ZED
T - BMBLER2021F6 ASHEZRTAAR
RIBZEEGIRE ARBIEFE EMRAIE
B2 ZHRTE °

Eix é%@%éﬁﬁ“ﬁi%g%@/\é k=l
EBAZEE R %%%ﬁzﬁﬂitﬁ & s
2021 F HER{T TN ©

UEJ
$m
E>

EZLEgKELF021FERLZEeem ot
R BENACEE RSz eR T FE LR
—ffi e

BOARD COMMITTEE — AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s annual
and interim financial statements, including significant financial reporting
judgements used in producing the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below. Information relating to the
Group’s risk management including appropriate financial quantification
is set out in the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the
annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available on the websites of Dah
Sing Bank and the HKEX.

The current members of the AC are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
(Chairman), Mr. Seng-Lee Chan and Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell. All
members of the AC are INEDs with extensive experience in banking,
finance and business management. Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze is a
qualified accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. Save for the above, none of
the other committee members are employed by or otherwise affiliated
with the former or existing external auditors of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10 March
2021, following the passing away of Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng (a former
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the AC of the
Company), the number of members of the AC of the Company had
fallen below the minimum number of three as required under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. With the appointment of Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
as a member of the AC of the Company on 3 June 2021, the Company is
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The AC members meet at least three times a year with the Company’s
senior management, the head of internal audit and the external
auditors. In 2021, a total of three meetings were held.

The attendance record of AC members at the AC meetings held in
2021 is set out in the section on Attendance Records of this Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the AC, members of the AC who also attend meetings of the Board will
advise on matters of significance relating to the financial statements
and the internal control system of the Group discussed in the AC. In
addition, a report highlighting the matters reviewed and dealt with by
the AC is submitted to the Board on a half-yearly basis.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during 2021 in
discharging its responsibilities:

- Review, and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
for the approval, of the 2020 results announcements and audited
financial statements of the Group, and the 2021 interim results
and interim report

- Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2020 audit and financial
statements

- Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2020 for inclusion
in the Company’s 2020 annual report

- Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the

AC in the second half of 2020 and the first half of 2021

- Review of connected party transactions and disclosure

Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors

- Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan

- Review and approval of internal audit plan

- Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations
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BOARD COMMITTEE — AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Review of updates from the Compliance Division of the Group on
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“‘HKMA”) examinations and
regulatory concerns, management’s actions in implementing the
HKMA'’s recommendations

Review of the highlights of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the Group
on their adoption

Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation of
2021 financial statements

ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit

Committee meetings, Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings

and the 2021 Annual General Meeting held in 2021 are as follows:

R/ RERLE
Attended/eligible to attend
ENZERE RERGH HE20214F
(I&%%EE)) ZE8 RREEAS
Audit  Nomination and Attended
Ezg Committee  Remuneration 2021 Annual
= Directors Board (“AC”) Committee  General Meeting
BUHATEE INEDs
£ B Robert Tsai-To Sze 4/4 33 4/4 v
BRI T Seng-Lee Chan 4/4 33 4/4 =
EME (20216 A3EEZ(T  Blair Chilton Pickerell (appointed as a 4/4 2/2 N/A v
REGZEEGNE) member of the AC on 3 June 2021)
M David Wai-Hung Tam 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
(FA20214F6 AR EZ(T) (appointed on 3 June 2021)
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng N/A N/A N/A N/A
(7202142 A 25 A Ett) (deceased on 25 February 2021)
HITEE EDs
FEFEE David Shou-Yeh Wong (e 2/4 N/A 1/4 =
HEH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4/4 N/A N/A v
Tk Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4/4 N/A N/A v
FigE Nicholas John Mayhew 4/4 N/A N/A v
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the 2021 CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting, and he should
also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend. In light of the COVID-19
pandemic and quarantine measures for inbound travellers, Mr. David
Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the
2021 Annual General Meeting (the “2021 AGM”) of the Company held in
Hong Kong on 2 June 2021 as he was required to comply with compulsory
quarantine requirements in Hong Kong at that time. Mr. Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong), Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
of the Company, took the chair of the 2021 AGM. Due to the lockdown
measures caused by the COVID-19, Mr. Seng-Lee Chan, Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company, was
unable to come to Hong Kong to attend the 2021 AGM. A member of the
NRC of the Company was present and available to answer questions from
shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis. The
responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to the Group’s
financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the
Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial
positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business
practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud
and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance to management in
achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it should be recognized
that the Group’s internal control procedures can only provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an
effective internal control system are as follows:

A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees.
Actual performance results against budgets are closely
monitored. The Board reviews the Group’s business and financial
performance on a quarterly basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering (“AML”)),
staff training, IT development, IT governance and information
security, business continuity planning, financial control (including
accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply
with regulatory and financial reporting standards, management
accounting and budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and
system of management oversight including the operations of
various functional committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head
of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to senior management, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in the
portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a
proper risk and return balance.

The Group continues its ongoing upgrade of risk management
framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk control and
effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of sound internal
control process of the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

- The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements. It is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Group Compliance Division performs an independent on-going
monitoring and advisory role on the Group’s compliance with
relevant rules and regulations, while the AML and Financial Crime
Risk Department manages and oversees AML and financial crime
risk of the Group.

- A Guideline on Group Functional Reporting is in place to promote
collaboration between Group functions and subsidiaries, align
Group’s policies, practices and standards, and allow Group
functional heads to exercise proper control, supervision and
monitoring of subsidiaries’ operations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Board has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
Management, and the findings of both internal and external auditors.

Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
conducted an assessment covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
practices. The 2021 reviews included an annual assessment of internal
control system with reference to the comments made by both internal
and external auditors, policies and procedures of the Group, regulatory
guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls. The Group will
continue to work to enhance its internal control system and processes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to evaluate and determine the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board is also responsible for overseeing
Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. Management has to provide
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Such
systems comprise a well-established organisational structure and
comprehensive policies and standards. Areas of responsibilities for
each business and functional unit are clearly defined to ensure effective
checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. The procedures provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
or fraud. Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on the major types of risks the Group encounters.
Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
individual types of risk arising under their areas of responsibilities,
the management of the risks in accordance with risk management
procedures and the reporting on risk management. The Group
maintains an effective risk management framework through the
setting up of specialised management committees for the oversight
and monitoring of major risk areas and the establishment of risk
management departments for relevant functions of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk management reports are submitted to the relevant committees and
ultimately to the Board or its delegated Board committee for oversight
and monitoring of various types of risk associated with the Group’s
businesses and operations. The Group’s risk management policies
and major control limits are approved by the Board or its delegated
Board committee. Operating and risk performance are monitored and
reviewed against relevant risk limits regularly according to established
policies and procedures.

Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented a robust risk management and internal
control framework with ongoing monitoring and regular reporting of risk
profiles, risk positions and internal control issues to the Management
and to the Board. Based on the ongoing reviews and regular
assessments, the Management including the heads of business units,
financial control, risk management, compliance units and operations
management, and the senior management of the key subsidiaries of
the Group have evaluated the existing status of the risk management
and internal control system and confirmed that they remain effective
with reference to the requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
These statements of Management have been reviewed and endorsed
by Internal Audit function, and reviewed and confirmed by senior
management of the Group.

The results of the 2021 review, which have been reported to the AC
and the Board, concluded that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were effective and appropriate.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



DEEARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

R EBE

REBRINIEZINGE - REEZBHLIEA
EEHPHEFEREEEREABREREEE
E BERUSEER ANEBRHHYARERE
IR FE PRI AT R B ) AR S BB L i B IR AE 2R - 42
RERRFHER METRE RS MAMRHRE
I REFEBORER o

NBERBEFHED —RAGERTIERRES
ERRREEMZEHERNFEERAERZEZR
ER(ES)EFSER - T LARREZER
EWTR A ARERBTARNEEERE
RAEREL BN Y X ERRERN TS 1T
BRI o

SN 2 B R &

AR BRI B A A RSN B 2 R oK
BEHEMERA ([ BERKEB )R RNEEM
WREITER B ©

ARRRHEHBERK AN - XEEHITERBUKE
ERARB ZINERBEN 2B R REIEER
T IR BERBOKERBEZAINZ RS - B
A 3 EEMEM R RREEERS -

BAMBELBHS - BEFAAER2021EEN A
AEEREBHANEY - DERMRBR R
HER  RUBHBRES  BHAEERHE
EREE  BURERAFBTERLF20/E
LB TS BRI B BB R L FHRA
SEETRERE  AREBNNBEL BT
#Pf o

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function. The primary role
of the Internal Audit function is to help the Board and Management
to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the Group. The
Internal Audit function provides independent and objective assurance
as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of the Group’s
framework of risk management, control and governance processes, as
designed and represented by the Management, is adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the AC or the
Board as appropriate and at least annually. The Internal Audit function
also reviews the Management’s action plans in relation to audit findings
and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls before
formally closing audit issues.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for
performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be
maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC provided the Group non-audit
services during 2021 including review of tax returns and computation,
tax advisory services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure,
and review of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited’s US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and
independent assessments of certain operational processes, risk
management and internal control of the Group.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION (continued)

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as
follows:

BEXft AXfFZEA
Fee paid/payable
(F#&x)
RARD TR IRE Services rendered for the Company (HK$’000)
BERRS Audit services 10,982
FEZLAIMNRTE - Non-audit services:
. EHEIEEFMEMNTHSRE . Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note 1,770
SRAE(TFHE]) & Programme (the “Programme”) and professional work
RFRITIERT BT 34T on new subordinated note issue of Dah Sing Bank
e EEBNEELIE under the Programme
. HEERREE  BHEER . Compliance reviews and independent assessments 2,926
BIE HEMASIERSE on operational risk management, technology risk
RS RER LB AT management, new IT system projects etc.
. BAREEAERE 2RISR A . Tax compliance review on taxation computation and 1,884
RIB AR E A ARG advisory service on compliance with new tax regulations
ZRIEEHRES relevant to the Group
. HAh . Others 87
e Total 17,649
BERRZEBE COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
BNER Effective Communication

EXeRERARRZER  KRBFAGTARK
REH—AREEEXREREZER - EFET
FEERMAERRNZM - EFZEGTFERIN
BZEMARITE HFRRBF NG UEERR
Z YR

EEERARBFERTFHRREENTERITH
WEE o WO ARRZEESRITHRABTE
EHEEBREEIIITESE  EEEBERE
REEROBERT  ARFREEARRERE
BZFE e

The Board attaches great importance to communication with
shareholders. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) provides a
useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Chairman of the Board and all Directors make a strong effort to attend.
The Chairmen of the Board Committees and a representative of the
external auditors also attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in connection
with the Company’s annual and interim results. Apart from the above,
designated senior executives maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
development, subject to compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Effective Communication (Continued)

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com) offers
shareholders convenient access to the Company’s financial information,
announcements/circulars and information on the Company’s corporate
governance structure and practices, in addition to business and
corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5 percent of the total voting rights
of the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or in electronic form. It may also
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(ii) the contact details of the requisitionists(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of
the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5 percent of the total voting
rights of all shareholders, or not less than 50 shareholders, who are
entitled to vote on a resolution at a general meeting, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect to
matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on
the shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.

Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at 26th
Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. Questions about the procedures for convening or putting
forward proposals at an Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary
General Meeting may also be put to the Company Secretary.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company’s practices in relation to communication
with shareholders and the investment community. The Policy is
available on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims to pay sustainable dividends
over time. In determining dividend distribution, the Company takes
into account factors such as general business conditions, financial
results, business growth prospects, capital requirements, regulatory
requirements applicable to the Company’s businesses, shareholders’
interests and any other factors the Directors consider to be relevant.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside Information is in
place, which sets out the guiding principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling of confidential inside information, and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner so as to allow
all stakeholders to be aware of the latest positions or price sensitive
information of the Group and its subsidiaries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents in 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved through
adherence to proper Board processes and the timely preparation and
dissemination to Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and
papers. Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are prepared and maintained to record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees are sent to Directors or Board Committee members
as appropriate for comments, approval and records. Board records are
available for inspection by any Director upon request.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who possesses the relevant qualifications and experience
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. She has
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions as set out in Note
43 to the financial statements, all the INEDs of the Company have
reviewed the said transactions and confirmed that the said transactions
have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(38) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors, PwC,
to report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out in Note 43 to the financial statements
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter needs to be submitted by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



EEERME
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREA
AEERBINEBZRI - TEIDBEERET
HERERZER  URNNETEEAFEE
B InaRERELEA RS -

2021 F#E - NEBEIRE - & REIARMEA N
SREBNIATHES

By dHERERZER  EREEFEEEET
BIRE - B RERRREARBFINER KRR
FORERIE - U RBERBMORE HERE

JRHbAL ©

W5 UG RAHERTRES - UEIRK
PNEEREBEN  UBNETRTRTFE
AR EERM

THERE  RERENITERE - BBREINZS
B RIMEESHRE HERER/UERESR
EVIEER - WM AR 2 E N B H B

HE  @ERFIRLERRE - X EEIFRTAM
B UHSHFELFERR ABRHEBIIRRE
B RESERAHMELENER -

B BUANMRANRAZEEREEERK
o ERIBEFHEERERNBE - femoab R MY
RERBEMIERENE -

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Apart from focusing on its business development, the Group also pays
close attention to Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
development and endeavours to pursue corporate sustainability and
promote environmental protection and community engagement.

Starting from 2021, the Group’s ESG strategy will enhance focus on the
following areas:

ESG governance: To establish and develop our ESG positioning
through integrating ESG factors into our business strategy and
decision-making process under the Board’s oversight.

Marketplace: To prioritise green and sustainable banking and
differentiate with a focus on small- to medium-sized enterprises, as well
as to aim to progressively introduce green products across different
customer segments.

Workplace: To build an engaged and loyal workforce by promoting a
healthy working environment as well as by engaging and training our
employees to develop their ESG and green finance understanding.

Community: To enrich our community strategy with a focus on
partnering with non-government organisations to promote youth
development, inclusive communities and green awareness, and to aim
to scale up our impact on society over time.

Environment: To sharpen our focus on our environmental key
performance indicators through building internal awareness as well as
improving data disclosure quality and efficiency as a means to improve
operational efficiency.
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R HEBERER@® ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (Continued)
HE2021F12 A1 B I RFE - KARIEESF The Company has complied with all applicable requirements and
CEMBADMHER27 2CGRIT -~ w8 REBGWMEE provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the
SFTBEEAZERRBE Listing Rules in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
HEFSHAREZIRE e kERWE (B For more details, please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social
AR #FTERTT 4315 (www.dahsing.com)) ° 3835 « 4 and Governance Report (published on the website of Dah Sing Bank
e REARERERNEENR2021FEAIRE - 1T (www.dahsing.com)). The ESG report provides an annual update of the
GREAZEWR  FTEIRKBETANSEHBR - initiatives, plans and performance of the Group in ESG aspects in 2021,
Wi E TR BDHI 827 2 GRIT - e REAME and is prepared to disclose relevant information to meet disclosure
SIS 2 TR M ST R GO requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
HEEERmRER - Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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B LI A 38 P B
Latest time to lodge transfers

TEERRECTE(BREEMX)

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

L% A

Record date

REBEFERE
Annual General Meeting

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) is banking investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 97.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share and a
total of HK$140,575,213.20 in cash was paid on 21 September 2021.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.24
per share in cash, totalling HK$337,380,511.68.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS
For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the

forthcoming annual general meeting:

202245 A23H (2H1—) N F4K305
4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2022 (Monday)

202255 H24H (28— ) F202265 H27H (EH#H)
24 May 2022 (Tuesday) to 27 May 2022 (Friday)

202295278 (28 H)
27 May 2022 (Friday)

202295270 (28 H)
27 May 2022 (Friday)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final
dividend™:

20226 A2H (2 8iM) T 48305
4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2022 (Thursday)

20226 A6H (EH—)E202256 A8H (EH =)
6 June 2022 (Monday) to 8 June 2022 (Wednesday)

20226 A8H(EH =)
8 June 2022 (Wednesday)

2022F6 168 (2HjmM)
16 June 2022 (Thursday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share
transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest
time to lodge transfers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
on the Group’s future business development are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual
Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report. The objectives
and policies of financial risk management and the risk management
structure and framework of the Group can be found in the “Notes to the
Financial Statements” of this Annual Report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of
the financial year (if any) can be found in the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and also relationships
with the key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report and
the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “2021
ESG Report”). The “Notes to the Financial Statements” also contain
description of the management structures and framework to ensure
compliance with various laws and regulations which are applicable to
the Group. The above sections form part of this Report of the Directors.

The 2021 ESG Report is issued as a separate report concurrently with
this Annual Report and both reports are also published on the websites
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk)
and Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the year are shown
in Note 38 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$72,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Seng-Lee Chan*

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

David Wai-Hung Tam* (appointed with effect from 3 June 2021)

Yuen-Tin Ng* (deceased on 25 February 2021)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

* Independent Non-Executive Directors
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 107 and 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third (or the number nearest to and at least one-third)
of the Directors being those who have been longest in office shall retire
by rotation at each annual general meeting. The Directors retiring under
Articles 107 and 108 are, however, eligible for re-election. Accordingly,
Messrs. Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Robert Tsai-To Sze will retire, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
a Director appointed during the year either to fill a vacancy or as an
additional director shall retire at the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. David
Wai-Hung Tam who was appointed on 3 June 2021, will retire, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year. The Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in information
required to be disclosed by the Directors since the publication of the
2021 Interim Report of the Company (or, where applicable as regards
Director appointed subsequent thereto, since the date of announcement
for appointment) and up to the date of this Annual Report is set out
below:

(@) Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

- Ceased to act as a Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers with effect from 8 September 2021

(b) Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (delisted on 27 January
2022) with effect from 15 February 2022

- Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited with effect from 26 March
2022

(c) Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

- Resigned as a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
with effect from 26 March 2022

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries”
section which follows this Report of the Directors.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “SEHK”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have
acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers and the code of conduct for directors’ securities dealing
adopted by the Company (collectively the “Securities Model Code”)
were as follows:

a) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporation

EEBTRE

By gL

ADALERES, AERHA Halk

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company Percentage of

BARR EERRY Htr#s AiTEE  interestsin the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Ex Director Interests Interests® Interests Interests  issued shares
TFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955? - 1,045,626,955 74.38%
Tz Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,884,691 - - 2,884,691 0.21%
B Nicholas John Mayhew 2,805,476 - - 2,805,476 0.20%

KIBITEBBR AR 2021 FF 5|

79



EFEEREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

80

EERTHARES @ INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Continued)
B) EXAAFAREEBELIEMEFEZROR a) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
R ER @ Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
. ‘ {EERTRE
AFEHEMERADLERRS, EBRHRA .
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Aok
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Percentage of
BAER EEER HitEs A3tE#  interests in the
Personal Corporate Other Total total number of
Bz Director Interests Interests™ Interests Interests  issued shares
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 137,285,682 - 137,285,682 42.96%
) ‘ {EERTRE
ERFRTROERAR-AREERRAHERABE T ed 13
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Aok
Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. - A shares Percentage of
BAER EEER HitEs B5t#%  interests in the
Personal Corporate Other Total total number of
Bz Director Interests Interests™ Interests Interests  issued shares
BEE Hon-Hing Wong 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00%
EaE Notes:

FEEEE T EREERBRAG EAEH=02
—HA L REREZ RBFIFAE B

ZEROBPEATNEREEETRRABFAERDA
74.37% 1 H i - MIRRCGE S RS KIS
XVIHERERA T THEREAATERELRAR AR
42.96%E migm M RIEMBERAE RN TRMD 2
EEE R U RBTTERGESEZ QAR
B2 AREIRD R ©

The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by companies in
which the director controlled one third or more of the voting powers at
general meetings.

Such shares included the indirect corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh
Wong in the Company under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial
interests of 42.96% in Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited which held a
controlling interest of 74.37% in the Company and interests in the shares
of the Company held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh
Wong.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

(Continued)

The personal interests of Gary Pak-Ling Wang comprised of (a) interests
in 934,691 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options
in respect of 450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed in
the following section regarding interests in options under share option
scheme of the Company; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional
underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (5) below.

The personal interests of Nicholas John Mayhew comprised of (a) interests
in 855,476 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options
in respect of 450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed in
the following section regarding interests in options under share option
scheme of the Company; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional
underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (5) below.

The Company had established a cash-settled share-based incentive
option scheme as a long-term incentive plan to incentivize employees on
20 March 2018. The rights granted under the scheme shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first anniversary
of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal
factors, the grantees may exercise their vested options. No shares of the
Company will be issued to the grantees of the options under the scheme
which is essentially a deferred cash incentive scheme linked to the
performance of the grantees and the share price of the Company.

The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by a corporation
in which the director controls one third or more of the voting powers
at general meetings and shares held by companies under a family
discretionary trust. HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of a
family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

KIBITEBBR AR 2021 FF 5|

81



EFEEREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(1) ARFRITEBEEEME M 1)

RITRITEE B0 B NERE - £
BB ESERITRAEUBEEN
X RER -

(2) KHRITEEFENSEA )

RIRITEEBEER2EARR
ARBRENBARZEEREEE
BRI ZEE o

(3) BARFRITEE SR TEITHR D (3)
BYBRENAESEREEAHED
BITROBEANS X

RAZEEGRESHE - KARTE
B8 AR EME S TR T E#IT 2
f% 288 £70,076,7810% » (HAN A A
BEITAR D 4 804.99% ©

EERTHRARER @ INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Continued)

Z) EARAQTRHEEBEEIEZZARETET b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
A 2R EER the Company and its associated corporation
) ARELZREREZ ) Share option scheme of the Company
M201455A27H - AR EIRRRALER AR On 27 May 2014, the shareholders of the Company approved the
AT EI ([ RFTERITSEERT &) - adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”).
BREBEBBARIMARABES MR In accordance with the requirements of The Rules Governing
(IKEMRADD) - REriRITE BB the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
™ Limited (the “Listing Rules”), a summary of the DSBG Scheme is

disclosed as follows:

Purpose of the DSBG Scheme:

The purpose of the DSBG Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the
Group’s business and growth.

Participants of the DSBG Scheme:

Eligible participants of the DSBG Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Scheme and percentage of total number of issued shares as
at the date of this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Scheme and any other schemes is 70,076,781 shares,
representing 4.99% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this Report of the Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

)
(4)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG
Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSBG Scheme and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board
of the Company, and is specified when related options
are granted. Shares under the options must be taken up
within 10 years from the date of grant. All the existing
share options granted under the DSBG Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between the
first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

)] Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(6) Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
granted under the DSBG Scheme shall be exercisable
within one year from the date of grant.

(7)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

)
(8)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis no less exacting
than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the DSBG Scheme:
The DSBG Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period

of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2014 and expiring at
the close of 26 May 2024.
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EERTHARES @ INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Continued)
Z) EARAQTRHEEBEEIEZZARETET b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
FrisE 2R BRERER @ the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
) ARELZRARETE#) ) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
THARRFBITEEFBIR L 2R The particulars of interests in options to subscribe for
RELARRIE AN B B AR () 2 i s I ordinary shares of the Company granted under the DSBG
B ETRADMBRE ZEHR Scheme and information that is required to be disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:
AREREZAATARMEE
Number of the Company’s shares underlying the options
20215/
R2021€ HE/AR Re021F 1@ 4B g
1A1H 20215 R 2021€R%  Cancelled  12A31H Exercise Grant Exercise
BE it fix:d lapsed 55 price date period
Held at Granted  Exercised during Held at (%) (B/BR/%) (B/BR/%&)
ARA Grantee 11/2021  during 2021  during 2021 2021 31/12/2021 (HKS) (D/MFY) (D/MFY)
= Directors
TRE Gary Pak-Ling Wang 450,000 - - - 450,000 18.24 26/04/2018  26/04/2019 -
26/04/2024
KiEE Nicholas John Mayhew 450,000 - - - 450,000 18.24 26/04/2018  26/04/2019 -
26/04/2024
HitfESME®  Aggregate of 300,000 - - - 300,000 18.24 26/04/2018  26/04/2019 -
other employees @ 26/04/2024
i Notes:
(1) FERBRFRITEEE TED (1) All the existing share options granted under the DSBG
ZRBERET B E1AZSES Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal
ERF A5 FHHEBER T AT tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the
i o date of grant.
(2 RBRENETETEERKEL  #® (2)  Share options were granted to certain eligible employees,

ERAAATEZZENBRRNE

CEBITHASRERAR - X
REBRBEITEEALITE
HER -

REEEE 2 ETFEHR YR
eI Y

who are directors, senior executives or officers of the
major operating subsidiaries of the Company and are
working under employment contracts that are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Details of the computation of the value of options are shown
in Note 44 to the financial statements.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

Il)  Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) approved the adoption of a share
option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”). No share options had been
granted under the DSFH Scheme since the date of its adoption to
31 December 2021.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the DSFH Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Scheme:

The purpose of the DSFH Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the DSFH
group.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in DSFH
group of companies as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in the DSFH Scheme.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Scheme and percentage of total number of issued shares as
at the date of this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Scheme and any other schemes is 15,978,755 shares,
representing 5% of the total number of issued shares of
DSFH as at the date of this Report of the Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

Il)  Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSFH
Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSFH Scheme and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

(5) Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant.

(6) Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH, and is specified when related options are
granted.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

11)

(7)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules
and is determined as no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSFH’s
shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the DSFH Scheme:
The DSFH Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period

of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2015 and expiring at
the close of 26 May 2025.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

All the interests stated above represented long position. As at 31
December 2021, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company held any short positions as defined under the SFO which are
required to be recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Securities Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Each of the Company and DSFH adopted a share award scheme
(respectively the “DSBG Share Award Scheme” and the “DSFH
Share Award Scheme”) to recognize the contribution or value of
certain employees or directors and to motivate and incentivize them
in furtherance of the long-term business objectives of the Group. Both
the DSBG Share Award Scheme and the DSFH Share Award Scheme
were adopted by the respective Boards on 9 September 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Each of the DSBG Share Award Scheme and the DSFH Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date. Under the DSBG Share Award Scheme, the total
number of shares that may be awarded shall not exceed 42,000,000
shares of the Company (the “DSBG Award Shares”). Under the
DSFH Share Award Scheme, the total number of shares that may
be awarded shall not exceed 9,600,000 shares of DSFH (the “DSFH
Award Shares”). Under the DSBG Share Award Scheme and the DSFH
Share Award Scheme, the respective trustees may acquire issued
shares on-market and/or subscribe new shares from the Company and
DSFH and hold the DSBG Award Shares and the DSFH Award Shares
respectively upon trust for selected participants during the trust period.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

During the period from the Adoption Date to 31 December 2021, no
Award Shares were granted under the DSBG Share Award Scheme
and the DSFH Share Award Scheme.

Save for the share option schemes and share award schemes as
disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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M2021F12H31H * L FAT(RRARIESE &IT
BB 2 BN ESURBRIN RARR B’ K&
AR - FE AR RIREGESF RS LD
EXVEEI36IERETFE MR R E LM T A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2021, the following are the persons, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.

i3}
Capacity

FERHEBE,
R s
Number of
shares held/
interests

in shares

HERTRSG
e R
BoLL®
Percentage of
interests in the
total number of
issued shares®

ITEEZE

Christine Yen Wong

AFremEEGRAR([RFEE )

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

(“DSFH”)

FrEE

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

ELEEREFERAR(DEREED)

HSBC International Trustee Limited
(“HSBCIT”)

RHEEBERR T HEER
MR ER A i

Deemed interest by virtue of her spouse
having a notifiable interest

EafEs

Beneficial interest

BatEm MR R A EREA
R ) R s

Beneficial interest and deemed interest in
shares indirectly held by trustee

BREAREE# R
Trustee and corporate interests

1,045,626,955("

1,045,461,643

1,049,200,188®

1,045,461,643%

74.38%

74.37%

74.64%

74.37%
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KRR AR ARATSREREERETLZTA
JEL =B 2 2N A F)1,045,461,643 1% B% 17 1
o EFERZETZETA

WEROBARNEBEAR R AR R HE
LERATTEEAR T AZRRERETEE
ABNREERE - ELERARAHIRERRR
BARABEERDMELRE - HERNER L
MIESERTRAEER BT TFENDEEE
3| HPRE -

BEBE DR EARTR2021F12A31HZE
BTN AT E -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

Q)

(©)

Such shares represented the deemed share interests of Christine Yen
Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the
relevant share capital of the Company and interests in the Company held
through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling
interest. Christine Yen Wong was taken to have a duty of disclosure
in respect of the deemed interests in the Company. These interests
comprised the same interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong under the heading
“Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The interests of Harold Tsu-Hing Wong comprised of interests in 1,038,545
ordinary shares of the Company; deemed interests in 2,700,000 notional
underlying shares of the Company relating to the cash-settled share-
based incentive options granted by the Company; and deemed interests
pursuant to section 322 of the SFO in 1,045,461,643 shares of the
Company held by DSFH and HSBCIT through a family discretionary trust
of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

Such shares represented DSFH’s corporate interests in the Company
indirectly held by HSBCIT in trust for a family discretionary trust of which
David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor. HSBCIT was taken to have a duty of
disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company held through
companies of which it has control. The relevant shares have been included
in the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under
the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The percentage of interests was calculated with reference to the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31

December 2021, no short positions were recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by the

Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted
by the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), amounted to HK$594,371,000 (2020: HK$616,237,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been set out in Note 43 to the financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 years are included in the section headed “Financial Summary” of
this Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group derived less than
30% of interest income and other operating income from its 5 largest
customers.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE
LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the preceding 3
years.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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P
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WONG Edmond
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* BERHI TBREIARAEENBRRERRY

The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to 31 March 2022, being the date of the Report of the Directors
of Company for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

CHAN Seng-Lee

CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

CHEN Yi-Chuan (Rawson CHEN)
CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick*

FONG Ching-Yin (Celia FONG)*
FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

HO Ka-Yeung Eric

Paul Michael KENNEDY

LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

LAU Pak-Hung

LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)
MA Yuen-Lai Barbara

Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin* (deceased on 25 February 2021)
Blair Chilton PICKERELL

POON Clement

SZE Tsai-To Robert

TAM Wai-Hung David

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

Paul Franz WINKELMANN

WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)
WONG Edmond

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

YAN Yun-Shum Grace

YAU Ho-Wing Vincent*

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)
of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B ZE2021412 A31H 1L Z For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

k=3
Note 2021 2020

FBULA Interest income 7 5,170,260 6,210,429
FMEXH Interest expense 7 (1,225,984) (2,514,627)
FREWA Net interest income 3,944,276 3,695,802
RS & KA UA Fee and commission income 8 1,406,822 1,381,782
R E RASZ T Fee and commission expense 8 (209,399) (199,981)
FHREERBAERA Net fee and commission income 1,197,423 1,181,801
FEERA Net trading income 9 178,997 310,435
Hb g EWA Other operating income 10 63,496 60,772
EEIWA Operating income 5,384,192 5,248,810
EiEX I Operating expenses 11 (3,021,199) (2,832,936)
KRR E RSB A 2 & E R T Operating profit before impairment losses 2,362,993 2,415,874
EEREREE Credit impairment losses 14 (373,343) (646,968)
HRETREREEEE Operating profit before gains and losses on

2 W2 R BB AT 2 & E R A certain investments and fixed assets 1,989,650 1,768,906
& B B FE B B 2 R 1R Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (7,412) (8,027)
HEYMEANTFEAE TS Net gain/(loss) on fair value adjustment of

(B8) investment properties 4,636 (84,240)
B[R S N AR & 2 518 Loss on deemed disposal of investment in an

associate (31,202) -

HEUAFETEBEES T AEM  Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair

2HREMN S MEE 2 F R value through other comprehensive income 4,993 13,448
R 2 R EEE Impairment loss on goodwill 27 - (98,239)
JEIREEE DR 2 HELE Share of results of an associate 697,954 710,370
B ARIRE ZREEBE Impairment loss on the investment in an

associate 24 (726,000) (531,000)

FEE R H B 2 45 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,060 33,190
BB A& F Profit before taxation 1,965,679 1,809,408
A Taxation 15 (308,123) (316,398)
F B A Profit for the year 1,657,556 1,493,010
BT : Attributable to:

RAFIRER Shareholders of the Company 1,657,556 1,493,126

R HIREARER Non-controlling interests - (116)
FERF Profit for the year 1,657,556 1,493,010
sRER Earnings per share

HEARN#E Basic and diluted 17 HK$1.18 HK$1.06
SE103EEF304 B 2 MEE I AR A BT IR KR 2 — The notes on pages 103 to 304 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2021 2020
FERF Profit for the year 1,657,556 1,493,010
FEHMEAE KR Other comprehensive income for the year
AREEEH N ARG UZEIRMIER ¢« Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBEHEES T AEMEE  Net change in fair value of debt instruments
WM ES TEZ AT EZE)FE at fair value through other comprehensive income 69,682 (78,722)
B S DARIERNE 4 AF]2  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
Hfh 2= accounted for using the equity method 44,040 382
UAFEFEBEZS AEMEE  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
Wi Es TAZEREEEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
SRR E)EE comprehensive income 7,388 6,423
FU R IR RER R R Net gain realised and transferred to income statement
upon:
—HEUAFEFEBHES — Disposal of debt instruments at fair value
FTAEMEEWE 2 EHTA through other comprehensive income (4,993) (13,448)
B bl 7 FEEF A Deferred income tax related to the above (12,091) 18,910
104,026 (66,455)
BMEFIMEE IS HRRAIER =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities 207,165 387,964
TEENPBEEREWRRMIER : Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
WA B2 B EZ8 ARMZ2E  Net change in fair value of equity instruments
WamrigEms 1t TE 2 AFEZE)FEEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income (1,176) (1,387)
B bt 2 IRAER 18 Deferred income tax related to the above (5,271) 2,516
(6,447) 1,129
HRBIER 2 FREHME2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 304,744 322,638
HNBRBIEAZFEZEINEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,962,300 1,815,648
DB Attributable to:
RIEHIRERR R Non-controlling interests - (90)
iG] S Shareholders of the Company 1,962,300 1,815,738
HRBERFE2ENEAE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,962,300 1,815,648
F103E R H304 B 2 [T ANGR G ISR 2 — The notes on pages 103 to 304 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021412 H31H As at 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FisE
Note 2021 2020
BE ASSETS
e RIERITHAERR Cash and balances with banks 18 12,007,753 15,262,452
FERIT1 =128 A REIEAR 731 Placements with banks maturing between one
and twelve months 4,531,863 5,355,765
RIEEERENES Trading securities 19 4,425,384 5,080,047
AT EFTEEEZETABRMNEBMEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 19 14,119 -
TEERTE Derivative financial instruments 20 621,056 1,135,814
BREALEMER Advances and other accounts 21 152,457,789 146,844,457
AAFER2 B EZE T AL Financial assets at fair value through other
PEBENEBEE comprehensive income 22 41,433,811 41,815,998
IABEBRRNATIBR M S R B Financial assets at amortised cost 23 24,539,822 22,842,879
BEARRE Investment in an associate 24 4,230,951 4,277,927
LA TR E Investments in jointly controlled entities 25 114,373 105,553
EES Goodwill 27 713,451 713,451
B EE B Intangible assets 27 58,252 58,252
TENEMEFEEE Premises and other fixed assets 28 2,953,797 3,006,039
KEYE Investment properties 29 756,351 682,909
RETRIAE E Deferred income tax assets 35 120,418 124,680
BESE Total assets 248,979,190 247,306,223
=1 LIABILITIES
RITER Deposits from banks 1,703,197 3,500,442
PTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,425,365 3,191,188
RIEBEERAEMERE Trading liabilities 31 1,511,927 1,570,675
BEPIER Deposits from customers 32 196,134,565 190,339,807
BRI HRE Certificates of deposit issued 33 6,589,717 8,125,802
BIEER Subordinated notes 34 4,128,446 3,828,458
HiRE RTER Other accounts and accruals 6,496,242 6,996,407
BB A E Current income tax liabilities 160,313 383,696
REHBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 17,915 14,561
BfE&5 Total liabilities 218,167,687 217,951,036
s EQUITY
SR TI R R Non-controlling interests - 15,296
KA T RREMGER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
B Share capital 38 6,894,438 6,894,438
HifFE(REREET) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 39 23,018,478 21,546,866
RRES Shareholders’ funds 29,912,916 28,441,304
EIMERMETR Additional equity instruments 40 898,587 898,587
ERET Total equity 30,811,503 29,355,187
EXEREaEE Total equity and liabilities 248,979,190 247,306,223
EEEN20225E3 731 B &R IFRER M Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.
EX=)3 EEE Gary Pak-Ling Wang Hon-Hing Wong
EFE EHEarr Director Managing Director
F£103EEF 3048 ZME AR E M B HRE 2 — The notes on pages 103 to 304 are an integral part of these
B © consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZ%=2021412 A31H [LFZ For the year ended 31 December 2021

(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

100

APRRREGER
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
B REGIE
EHEMTA N
Bx  HftfEfE  {RERF  Additional Non-  E#HAG
Share Other Retained equity controlling Total
capital reserves earnings instruments interests equity
20215110 &8 Balance at 1 January 2021 6,894,438 1,107,645 20,439,221 898,587 15,296 29,355,187
FEHA Profit for the year - - 1,657,556 - - 1,657,556
FEEMEZERE Other comprehensive income for
the year = 304,744 = = - 304,744
MEARER ZHEER  Reserve release upon liquidation of
a subsidiary - - - - (15,296) (15,296)
DA S (AR (D E B ERE  Provision for equity-settled share-
R 2 B R E B R based compensation and other
adjustment - 480 - - - 480
PR TS - EXH4ELA Reclassification of net change in fair
AFETEREEEFA value of equity instruments at fair
Hih 2 Bl f value through other comprehensive
TEZATEZETEE income upon derecognition - 33,619 (33,619) - - -
BIMERM TR ZJR%FUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - (41,328) - - (41,328)
2020 R HRE 8 2020 final dividend - - (309,265) - - (309,265)
2021 HfR 8 2021 interim dividend - - (140,575) - - (140,575)
202151231 A& Balance at 31 December 2021 6,894,438 1,446,488 21,571,990 898,587 - 30,811,503
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F12H31H LFZ (4) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
(LAVEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARRIRR R
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
B ORERIE
BE&TA RE
BA  HEftEE  RERHN  Additional Non- &A%
Share Other Retained equity  controlling Total
capital reserves eamings  instruments interests equity
202051 H1B & Balance at 1 January 2020 6,894,438 798,069 19,578,333 898,587 15,386 28,184,813
FEEF Profit for the year - - 1,493,126 - (116) 1,493,010
FEEMEZERE Other comprehensive income
for the year = 322,612 = = 26 322,638
MBS (S ARRAIEASERE  Provision for equity-settled
T e share-based compensation
and other adjustment - 817 (352) - - 465
PR TS - EXH4EMA  Reclassification of net change in fair
AVEHEREEHA value of equity instruments at fair
Hih 2 Bl value through other comprehensive
TEZATEEETE income upon derecognition - (13,853) 13,853 - - -
BIMERM TR ZJR%FUE  Distribution payment of
additional equity instruments - - (41,266) - - (41,266)
2019F RHEARR S 2019 final dividend - - (492,013) - - (492,013)
2020F A ER S 2020 interim dividend = = (112,460) - - (112,460)
2020512731 & # Balance at 31 December 2020 6,894,438 1,107,645 20,439,221 898,587 15,296 29,355,187
F103B R FE304 B 2 [T ARG IS a2 — The notes on pages 103 to 304 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

102

Pt s
Note 2021 2020
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEB MRS &8 Net cash used in operating activities 41(a 2,063,098 3,117,757
p g (@)  (2,063,098) (3,117,757)
REFZBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEREMERAMEEEE Purchase of investment properties and other
fixed assets (301,708) (137,110)
& Bt [ 5E B EE P18 5K 1R Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 215 136
B U L R 12 11 2 8 R Bk 2 A RIAR B Dividend received from jointly controlled
entities and associate 230,578 142,387
EF BN BB AR M H 8 b R Repayment of capital to non-controlling
EERA interests of a subsidiary upon liquidation (15,296) =
KEEBMAR & FE Net cash used in investing activities (86,211) (5,413)
MEITH2EERE Cash flows from financing activities
EREERY Repayment of subordinated notes 41(c) (1,949,775) (1,746,731)
BITREER Issue of subordinated notes 41(c) 2,320,246 -
HEBEZNRK Payment of lease liabilities (190,146) (183,248)
RESMER 1t T B 2R3 5RIE Distribution payment on additional equity
instrument (41,328) (41,266)
SN BEETREEBRER Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt
@57 M B securities issued 41(c) (170,924) (229,021)
M3 RARAR 2 Dividend paid on ordinary shares (449,840) (604,473)
BE R FTAR TR Net cash used in financing activities (481,767) (2,804,739)
BHEeRERBSEH R FHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,631,076) (5,917,083)
FHekERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 18,688,806 24,423,010
MEREE & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (14,909) 182,879
FREEREREELER Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 41(b) 16,042,821 18,688,806
E103E ZFI04H 2 T I ARLR & MRz 2 — The notes on pages 103 to 304 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related
services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2022.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
change. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are
appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore present
the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for
the current reporting period. The Group did not have to change its
accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result
of adopting these standards.

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting periods commencing on 1 January
2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, amendments to
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”, HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The amendments address issues that may affect financial
reporting as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform and
relate to:

(i)  changes to contractual cash flows — financial instruments
will not be derecognised, but the effective interest rate
will be updated to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUpP (Continued)

(i) hedge accounting — hedge accounting will not be
discontinued solely because changes are required to
be made by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

(iii)  disclosures — information relating to new risks arising from
the reform and disclosure of how the transition to alternative
benchmark rates is managed.

Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative to
replace or reform interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) that are
commonly used to determine interest cash flows on financial
instruments such as loans and advances to customers, deposits
from banks and customers, debt securities and derivatives. The
objective of the reform is to replace IBORs with alternative risk-
free interest rates (“RFRs”) that are based on actual market
transactions. Consequently, financial contracts which currently
make reference to IBORs may need to be amended such that
they will make reference to the alternative RFRs in the applicable
currency going forward. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to
provide relief (the “temporary relief’) from the potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by the interest rate benchmark reform.

The Group has certain outstanding interest rate swaps which
are exposed to different types of IBORs, (predominantly US
Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)). These interest rate swaps are
designated as fair value hedge of certain of the Group’s fixed rate
financial instruments including debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive income and amortised cost, bank
borrowing, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated notes
issued. The notional amount of interest rate swaps designated
as subject to hedge accounting relationships and the temporary
relief as at 31 December 2021 is approximately HK$49 billion.
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2. FESHERBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 mEEE@m 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
() LB 2 F RASNEETER () (a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUP (Continued)
TREEAEER2021F12A31 AFFAE The following table contains details of all of the financial
VASE 7T i 2R 1T R SE AR 18 I R AR i instruments that the Group holds at 31 December 2021 which
BARBEEERRERMENERIBEREE reference USD LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to Secured
MEZEBMTANER - TATANERS Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) or an alternative interest rate
BEREMEENRRAEZIWT : benchmark. Notional amount of derivatives and gross carrying
value of financial assets are presented below.
Hep:
Of which:
R20215F
12A31 B M RBE
ZERSERE
R20214 Have yet to
12H31H transition to
ZEREE EELHE an alternative
Carrying Value/ benchmark
Notional Amount interest rate as
as at 31 December at 31 December
2021 2021
HHEETHRFEBITEEZEFHE Non-derivative assets exposed to USD LIBOR
FERBIESTESREE
DUBEAR AT & Measured at amortised cost
ZEEREEMIEE Advances and other accounts 8,987,411 8,987,411
LABE BRI BR Y & BB B Financial assets at amortised cost 577,374 460,424
DUAFEFEBES S AHEM Measured at fair value through other
Z2HEWREETE comprehensive income
UAFETEBEZS T AHM Financial assets at fair value through other
EHERENEMEE comprehensive income 844,228 837,587
FITECMEENLIREE Total carrying value of non-derivative assets 10,409,013 10,285,422
PTET A —FIREH Derivatives — Interest rate swap 48,580,973 48,573,176
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from
1 January 2021 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.
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2. FESHBEME@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 HMEBBHRRER @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
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(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)

identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.
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2. FESTBEHSE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
22 REMBHB®WT@E 2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(A) BE2R &) (c) Associates (Continued)
AEBESRSMERETEH S REDH The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is

BEBERFERD - WELBRE - ~&
BiZB & AR AT RSB R EREE 2 Z 5
AERESERERBEBENRZEE]
RN YR

AEEEEBERNRRR S 2 RERK IR
AR B GRS N R A (0 B T AR

any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

MIEZR HIeMER EERMBE CFR - RE in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
WSEINT A - BE QB2 5T BERE the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset

VEURAE 2 (& I AR (R SR AN ER B BR AN 2 BRI —
B o

FER S N B 2 #oE s R B R s iR AT
%7\]\ °
EARRRZFIRRARA - BERRIRE R
BB BEREDIR - RARHBER
BIREN SRR IR WA B 2 B8
NG

transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(T) RETZFHERE (d) Jointly controlled entities

H[FE %HE TE$%I&1§1@)\$L‘AAZ’UWJ A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
FEARHE TREGE)  ZEHXaEE and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
J5 R %'J Eﬁ FER A E— 2l to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral
T - control over the economic activity.
HEZRER XS  BERBERERS The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
FEARR o 41 W ER PR A S B E(GEE are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
THEREFEREES - MiRs SRR RE consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share

BREANEERGARIZEHER EEFE -

of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over
a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

o Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

o Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

U Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

. FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2. FESHERBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting

A R ER AN A o period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
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Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the income statement.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R

117



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

118

2. FESHERBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 TERMEENREE@®
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to
customers, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

o The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2. FESTBEREE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. HERARBRMBEEE - EHETR . If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
EREEHNRSREERATEREE modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
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amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

o Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

. MEZEREE - . Significant change in the interest rate.
. ERNEEEK 2 B8 - . Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
. MMAZER R - EERYsRER . Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements

EEMRHENREEAMTEERZ
HEREERR

HIEREERER - NEERHEHERRE
EREERARFERER #EEMEHE
HZBEZHEERENE - Bt BRI A K
BANETER R HMETERERE - 81
RUEEEERBREGAREEMN - AW - A
SENHACER 2T EREERTRIS
HRSEREEEREEE  LERAERR
ARBERR R 15 SN SRR M AR (R E #1757
RIERT o BREEZ ZR ISR R R
FE Y e BR AR RERR AR R SRS 18

that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the
loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at fair
value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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2. FESTBEREE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

THEE®) Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

o Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

o Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

U Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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2. FESTBEREE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. FESHERBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 cREERBE@® 2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

2EEE Financial liabilities

() DERHEZE (i) Classification and subsequent measurement

RAERE R 2 ITHRE - @B ERE B In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are

BIRERRARTE P BRT - classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except

for:

. AATEETE A8 ABar e . Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
BEE: ZOBEARTETIAR - & classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
EEERENemAaBE(fIn: BE held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
BRIz 5288 ) R ¥ 06 T s B DAt 45 and other financial liabilities designated as such at
EZEMEMBIE - BENUAFEE initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
EREFHFHABENERAE LK designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
= NEE - R EMEE R (R partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of
ARZeENEER ﬁ*‘:‘@J%\ﬁ(Zi change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
MEEATEZHERE KR attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
ElEE Gkl A rh%ﬂiiﬂ”@ﬁ@%ﬁ@ which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
) REIBHONKSR(BEZ AT EE to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
BNFELERE) 25 - RIFZETH risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
g5|RIEALETELR - BERAE change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
WEE RS 8 2 e & EE IR a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
wHERET mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable

to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also
presented in profit or loss;

. PIERHERERN SN EEE R . Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
REAFEZ AR MELENSRE assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when

& - B mEEE; ”Tﬁ/\@iﬁﬁﬁm the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
B - BBt s AT E 2 RERER transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
SRIBE - NERHEHE  AEEER a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
HeMmBBEELEZAMEZL  ERE received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
BLEER © & recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;

when continuing involvement approach applies; and

. MR G K R E SRR . Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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2. FESTBEREE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities
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(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the
instrument is denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate,
new conversion features attached to the instrument and change
in covenants are also taken into consideration. If an exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
contracts with customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

o Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract;

o A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

o The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2. FESHERBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
28 TEIAR¥PES ) 2.8 Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
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(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying value
of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the
disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The
obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R

127



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

128

2. IESHHEHMEm

2.11 WEIEE

EWEHERREE 2 ER TS WHH - WEMK
RRZAERE (2 A R E R BTk
RBRENERME - AEEREEERESOR
Fii‘\ﬁ%ﬂfl«)&%ﬁﬁfﬂé&@Hﬂzﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁﬁuﬂuééﬂ
BEELEHARE HEZIERCRRILE
R RITENMEERRG 2 EERFRHEL
2RV ZEERLEMERR —HMEE AT °

2.12 DIERE

BEXEBAELERNTABATELERRALR
HZAMBRETA B - TBLERRARAHE
BORBERYAERB2EENARRZ ALk
—HAL ARECEETHRARLITERRES
(RTZEERBERETIZEEREA -

FAEESEMZRSRATEERTT  HEL

s R AR AR A BRI - EETEE %9 1R
ZEREE - @ AERRENHAR I BMARS

H oo

*ETF?‘"EM@E%Q’EE‘J%B%N LEEE DI
E o ASEBNUTHIE : BARIT - BERTT
B & MIRBRTIS %% }9I\$Eﬁ&ﬁ1‘@ °

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with
appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case of
delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed and
repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court
orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to the
Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for
resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Overseas Banking and Others.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and major
part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, Over the estimated useful lives
equipment and generally between 3 and 10

motor vehicles years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In
such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income within
the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
assets at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is also
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement upon the realisation of relevant investments.
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2. FESHEEHBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 EEER 2.19 Employee benefits
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(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
income statement, with a corresponding credit or adjustment to
the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to income statement in accordance with the
terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the options
are exercised, the Company will issue new shares to settle its
obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the “Share-based
compensation reserve” to the “Share capital” account.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than

not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an

outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the

class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

J the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

3 any initial direct costs, and

U restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“‘RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk
and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“‘OTC”) instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates. The Board
places trading limits on the level of exposures that can be taken in
relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are normally offset by
entering into counterbalancing positions (including transactions with
customers or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives,
thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value
hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate (mainly LIBOR
and HIBOR). Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched
to specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating
interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with
terms that closely align with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or a debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of

the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i)

(iv)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 ERAEmMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
1.1 HERBEERY FETEESIHTLET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
FIR @ 2 D FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
AR BRRE T AR =i Y ) 2 @ b A B S The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZERTH - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
Z#A
20216128314 31 December 2021 Maturity
18R 1EBE 5F Nt

Less than Z5%  More than
B E R — F = E Risk category — interest rate risk 1year 1-5years 5 years
HHETZARE-TTRE Hedge of issued liabilities — certificates of

deposit
H{E Nominal amount 6,111,217 389,833 —
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 0.41% 0.74% -
HhEIT . BEIAEES Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount - 4,093,241 =
5 [E RE A = Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HHBEITZBBE-EE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
HE Nominal amount - - =
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate - = =
a2 WA FERT = B & 8) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
FFAEMEEEENEEES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 5,257,227 11,881,126 7,826,347
5 [E RE A = Average fixed interest rate 3.76% 3.60% 3.41%
HIFR 2 AR AT BR A Hedge of debt securities held at
BEEE S amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount 95,119 7,520,434 6,302,929
A4 [E R Fl = Average fixed interest rate 4.63% 3.20% 3.38%
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3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 EREMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
.1 HERBEERY FETEESIHTLET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
FIR @ 2 D FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
FHR A
202012 H31H 31 December 2020 Maturity
1E AR 1A E 5 E

Less than E55 More than
[ B 48 1| — ) == R Bz Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
HHETZARE-TTRE Hedge of issued liabilities — certificates of

deposit
[ (=] Nominal amount 1,456,811 100,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 1.13% 2.55% -
HhEIT 2 BEIAEER Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated
notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,937,913 1,744,121 =
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.25% 5.00% =
HHET BE—BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
HE Nominal amount 813,923 - -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 3.25% - -
HihEE 2 AT ER 2 B % E) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT A A2 E W R A E RS2 through other comprehensive income
HE Nominal amount 1,826,676 13,395,237 7,719,326
S ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.34% 3.84% 3.54%
$R R R 2 AR AN BREY Hedge of debt securities held
B 75 at amortised cost

HE Nominal amount - 5,950,602 7,040,029
5 [E R = Average fixed interest rate - 3.28% 3.32%

RIRITEEER AT 2021 FF R, 147



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 EREMIARK® 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

301 HERIBREERH B BEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
R accounting (Continued)

ATEHH

Fair value hedges

BT REFIRR 2 EWT , , , ,
The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

148

follows:
2021
REEFBRRZAE
RN E20215 FLAREMRERER
AN ZEAHHEE 2ATE
BRENIRAREE HENEE  HAEEAECHE
ZHWERZDVE ZDVESE  Accumulated amount
HhRERELH Change in of fair value hedge
Accumulated amountof  gigupn £ a2 value subjectto adjustments remaining
fair value hedge adjustments iz >8R hedge usedfor in the statement of
on the hedged item included | jne jtem in the calculating hedge  financial position for
RAE in the carrying amount  tatement of financal ineffectiveness any hedged items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item position in which for 2021 have ceased to be
g af& EE &f&  the hedged item s H(B)  adjusted for hedging
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities included Note (a) gains and losses
T - 6489717 - (11,333) EEBINEHH 12,553 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
fEEH - 4128446 - 35205 REFER 100,222 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
fBE - - - REH 4,797 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BEAATESEAEZEHA 25,986,544 - 656,142 - DATEEEARY (958,589) -
At 2 AR ERES AR 2 ERH)
Debt securities held at fair value SRAE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
BRLNESHATRNERES 14,134,481 - 216,000 - ARG (630,866) -
Debt securities held at AR
amortised cost Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows: (Continued)

2020
RAERBIRARAR
e LR E s R
ZEMENER 2 ATE
BREHRREAR BiE0NE  HHERERLE
ZHRRBZATE Yk Accumulated amount
HREFARER mEES of fair value hedge
Accumulated amount of ZATEEE  adjustments remaining
fair value hedge adjustments g1 io = iy & Change in in the statement of
onthe hedged item included 4378 72 value subjectto financial position for
A inthe carryingamount | jne item in the hedge used for  any hedged items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item statement of financial calculating hedge have ceased to be
EE A& EE &fE  position in which the ineffectiveness  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hedged item is included for 2020 gains and losses
FE - 1561697 = 4886 BEINETE (10,964) =
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
{#EER - 3828458 = 146,424  REEH (87,553) =
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
- - 818,715 - 4792  FIER 4,354 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BEJANRATEFEEERHAA 24,497,271 - 1,442,337 - UATEEREEH 906,548 -
At 2 ENEMNERES SEAE M2 EER)
Debt securities held at fair value SRAE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
BRNERIATIENERES 13812919 - 822,288 - ARG 328,174 -
Debt securities held at amortised cost SREE

Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. UXEREE®
3.1 ERSRMIARE®
1.1 FEREEERFEFEEZTET

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

) accounting (Continued)
ATFEE (@) Fair value hedges (Continued)
BRARTEREMIAZIER REHARM ZEFE The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
s 8 hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:
2021
RRGHE
20215
gl e
ZAVEED
Change in
BBRERAEE fair value used N6
HhIAZER for calculating ZEAEN
EEE Lineiteminthe _hedge Ineffectiveness ~ WEHBAEE
Carrving amount statement of financial ineffectiveness recognisedin  EWAMZIER
HfE ying position where the for 2021 profitﬂ[lgoss; Line item in profit or
Nominal 8f hedging instrument () F(F)  loss that includes
amount Assets  Liabilities is included Note (a) Note (a)  hedge ineffectiveness
FzmER
Interest rate risk
MR — b 6,501,050 55 11,765 {TESRIA (12,720) (167) ﬂﬁwmﬁfﬁﬁ@
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial IﬂZ@‘HﬁZm/
hedge of certificates instruments Net gain/(loss) ansmg
of deposit from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
Fleia 8 — Ehig (AT 4,093,241 56,051 21,097 fTESRTIA (100,376) (154) ?@ﬂﬂlﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial TRz 3/ (58
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
notes from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MEREH e E - - - {THEeRIA (4,726) 71 F@Mﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial TAZEKE/(B8)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
e N PN 24,964,700 45,289 701,403 $IAESRTE 951,568 (7,021) RATELHHEESRE
stERHS ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ Derivatives financial THZ3WeE/ (B8)
W E%ES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
Interest rate swaps — from financial
hedge of debt securities instruments subject to
held at fair value through fair value hedge
other comprehensive income
Flmi— S 2 B 13,918,482 159,256 375,141 FTESRIE 630,827 (39) AATEIHHOERLHR
FXANG SR A (TS 5 Derivatives financial TR/ (BiB)
Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
hedge of debt securities from financial
held at amortised cost instruments subject to
fair value hedge
e Note:

(F) ERBaEARRNSBRFELETEAREE - &
WEPIHE R FEANBEZESH R EHE 2 E T
ENATEEGRERMER -

(a) The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in
value of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the
change in fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current

year.
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3. HERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 EAEMIARM@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1 BERBEEREAETTEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
ATFEE (@) Fair value hedges (Continued)
BT A I A EE R ARz 5EM The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
™~ ® hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2020
ARG E
2020&
. T
BBRRENDS 2RV
HPIAZIER Change in 3
EE(E Line item in the fair value used BRNEE  bakhes
Carmving amount statement of financial ~~for calculating ZHRERY  HRRMZIER
A& \ry 9 position where the hedge Ineffectiveness  Line item in profit or
Nominal BE &f& hedging instrument ineffectiveness recognisedin loss that includes
amount Assets Liabilities is included for 2020 profit/(loss)  hedge ineffectiveness
GilEdalS
Interest rate risk
MR — S 1,556,811 4,689 - {TESRIA 9,671 (1293) AAFEIHNERESE
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial TAZFK/ (B8)
hedge of certificates of instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
deposit from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
H|Zi5 8 — Ehig (BT 3,682,034 146,314 - {T4emIA 88,423 870 RATEHSFHEEER
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial TAZEKe/ (BR)
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
notes from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
FEEE —hEE 813,923 4720 - {TH2RIE (4,266) 88 ?@mmafam
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial TAZ3YE /(B
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) ansmg
from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge
FIREE - ShEE 2 AN TFE 22,941,239 940 1436209 fTAESRTA (904,718) 1830 RAATEHHHEESR
STRAARSH AR 2H Derivatives financial IEZ@‘W 5/ (E18)
YamnEgES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
Interest rate swaps — from financial
hedge of debt securities instruments subject to
held at fair value through fair value hedge
other comprehensive income
i 8 — Shis 2 AR 12,990,631 33,168 855,309 fTHEEMIE (328,774) (600) AATEHHNIEBSR
KSR R R Derivatives financial TEZFWa/ (BB)
Interest rate swaps — instruments Net gain/(loss) arising
hedge of debt securities from financial
held at amortised cost instruments subject to
fair value hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees
have been chaired by the Chief Executive or Chief Risk Officer with
certain Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers
as members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and are
approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and asset
quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management, credit
committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and
review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retalil
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(“PD").

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Credit risk grading (Continued)

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury and
Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used.
These published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The
PDs associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

o A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

J If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

3 If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

. Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@m)

322 FHIEEEEE M@

TIERBAIRE B REER BN 2 MER

EBARRE 2 EERESRBEERS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

D

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets):
BRI FEERZEE
Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
PEER 1 PEER 2 PEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Ve FER) (FER B TmnTERIE AL IN) (FERESE)

(Initial recognition)

1218 A iR FR M B 1R

(Significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition)

EHBEHMEEER

(Credit-impaired assets)
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12-month expected credit losses
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Lifetime expected credit losses

Lifetime expected credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

o when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

J when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

o when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

. when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

. when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of the
portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

J a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise;

3 the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties defaulting; and

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (‘LGD”), defined as follows:

o The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for
a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn
up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it
occur.

J LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e.
the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

o For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

o For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilized amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e.
after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last
forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on the PD,
EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression
analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

ECL model enhancement

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic had led to rapid deterioration in
business conditions and unprecedented economic uncertainty. Similar
to other industry practitioners in Hong Kong, highly uncertain and
volatile macroeconomic environment under COVID-19 significantly
affected the performance of ECL models due to their unprecedented
nature, leading to overly sensitive ECL estimates under these extreme
conditions. To properly reflect asset quality of the credit portfolios
under macroeconomic situations and to recognise the effects of various
government relief measures in a forward-looking manner, the Group
had conducted portfolio reviews and performed scenario analysis to
come up with credit expert judgement on top of the ECL model outputs
in the assessment of ECL for 2020.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

ECL model enhancement (Continued)

While the COVID-19 pandemic still lingered during 2021, the drastic
volatilities in macroeconomic parameters observed in 2020 and in turn
the impact on ECL models had been much reduced. Nevertheless, in
order to strengthen the resilience of the Group’s ECL quantification
framework, the Group had conducted an ECL model review exercise
in 2021, taking into account the observations noted in 2020 to further
fortify model performance. Certain enhancements were made to the
ECL models which included:

1. Refining the parameters used in the PD models for the HK
corporate banking portfolio and the treasury and global markets
portfolio to better reflect the relationship between credit quality
and macroeconomic conditions;

2. Refining the framework for macroeconomic scenario setting
and the mechanism to determine probability weightings under
the various scenarios in order to better reflect uncertainties in
economic outlook against current macroeconomic conditions.

These model enhancements had been incorporated in the ECL
assessment for end-December 2021 positions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay

Notwithstanding the enhancements in ECL quantification models, the
Group closely monitored market developments to assess adequacy
of provision against ECL model outputs in a forward-looking manner.
Considering the market concerns on the credit deterioration of certain
PRC property developers as well as the outbreak of the 5th wave of
the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong, which led to another round of
social distancing and restrictive measures, portfolio reviews had been
conducted on the relevant segments/borrowers. As a result, additional
provision overlay amounting to 0.16% of the HK corporate banking
portfolio on top of the ECL model outputs was made taking into account
anticipated credit downgrade of certain borrowers as well as the
potential credit deterioration of certain borrowers highly impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

EEERE
EAREREER
R
Management
Adjustment as
a percentage
of outstanding

7"2021512H31H As at 31 December 2021 balance
BRMFERITAS HK Corporate Banking Portfolio 0.16%
AERTERITAA HK Retail Banking Portfolio -

BAMERIREMSERBAS

BB A R - RINEEERET FRATEA
HWRAEAEREEEEZEgEERILE -

HK Treasury and Global Markets Portfolio =

The exercise of management judgement and the application of overlay
on top of model outputs had been reviewed and approved by the CMC.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by the
industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used in
the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of the
Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative standards.
The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario
Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The
base scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic
forecasts which formulate a “base case” view of the
most probable future direction of relevant economic
variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to
the “base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties
by incorporating upside variations to the “base”
scenario macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference
to the “base” scenario and reflects negative
uncertainties by incorporating downside variations to
the “base” scenario macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of risk units put
forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the forward-
looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.
S5EHAIE 9

Average of 1 FEHATRE

5-Year One-Year

R2021F12H31H As at 31 December 2021 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
BAERU EEBELRE Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) o Base 2.0% 2.3%
(BHH) R Good 7.6% 7.9%
TR Bad -3.6% -3.3%

BREEME Hong Kong Residential Property i Base 5.5% 7.4%
EREHEH (L) Price Index Change (%) R4F Good 28.8% 30.6%
TR Bad -17.7% -15.8%
BERRER(BHLL) Hong Kong Unemployment EAt Base 3.1% 3.9%*
Rate (%) R4 Good 2.3% 2.3%"*
TR Bad 5.4% 6.2%*
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3. UXEREE®

3.2 EERME@m)

322 FBHIEEEEE @
3224 MATEHEEBHBRER ZAEMEER @)

AEEY T (#)

202012831 H

As at 31 December 2020

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

5EERTIEFI9%
Average of 1 HARTHE
5-Year One-Year

Forward-Looking ~ Forward-Looking

BRAMEERERRE
(BAL)

BBETYE
EXEZEH(BN)

BREREZ(BNL)

FA

o

Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) A Base 2.8% 4.8%
R&f Good 2.9% 4.8%

TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%

Hong Kong Residential Property EifE Base 5.8% 5.6%
Price Index Change (%) Rt Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%
Hong Kong Unemployment A Base 4.0% 5.2%"
Rate (%) Rif Good 3.1% 3.1%*
TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%*

SAFHIRTIE R R R F 8 2 IR F 7

*

one year.

These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
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3. HMBREBREE®

32 FEARM®

322 HAEEREEE @)

3224 MATRHMGEEBEEE ZATEMEER )

AR EEE 2 RE (E)

PEFEIER]  [REFIR[TRIGEBRENF
HRESEIT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,

“good” and “bad” are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
po Base 66% 70%
Ry Good 12% 10%
TR Bad 22% 20%

B R R BAE Ath 5 A A 15 35 2 E At AT BE M
%FI%WUZIDEHWW SOESKBUR B B 2 &

EVERBREEATE  RUERZSRAEYE
HEEERELAZERREZEEERE RERH
BiEE °

TERMEEEREBNRIBRRLT

(i) REX EREHEEMEEERERARE

TRRESRENNTE

(i) AEMEEREE  EREHQFZEERER
mitENEATE &

(i) MEEREY  EREHRBEFEMRGE
ENEATZE

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated within
the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative
or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed
to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has been
made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for
appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured
borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(i)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HMBREBREE®

32 FEARM®

322 HAEEREEE @)

3224 MATRHMGEEBEEE ZATEMEER )

BB ()

NTREEREAEENQEZARRTNER
BERMELGL2HNSIBA L E L BRTREBIE
EBERERZYE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:

=€ Retail
EHEEBFENTE
ECL Impact
2021 2020
RER Unemployment rates +1% 34,658 20,294
-1% -9,092 -5,569
EEAEEEER GDP growth rates +0.5% -5,772 -2,408
-0.5% 5,890 2,453
Y EEIEE Property price indices +5% -1,004 -624
-5% 7,061 4,571
G=ES Corporate
EREEBENY
ECL Impact
2021 2020
RER Unemployment rates +1% 31,412 17,187
-1% -27,843 -9,890
FEABEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -6,485 -11,753
-0.5% 6,763 12,804
VI (EIRIEEL Property price indices +5% -3,804 -15,880
-5% 8,834 22,255
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3. UXEREE®
3.2 FERME@®)
3.2.3 JBlES[E e R 1EHIFEE 2 B

AEBEERERNERAXRZEFEE - TEHL
ERREEREERENBESET Z2ER - RIE

ERAERZEFEE - TEXERZBEERR

BE  ERHERBAMAEERZE S EHIER -

BRAXRZGHFER 2 &S ARERZAER
HET  MITX*BEREBEBEEAARIER
HEWXEERENOR - BRZBE T2 EH
DA AR E R 2 FENAMKRE o IAR
ERREEEEEZE B TEMNES -

AEENEER - RRKEERR - & REUEH
miEREEBENER - SEFETETAFEM
EEZXZHTFEERR  AKERGEITET
AEEHTFAREZSRBE  BRACEYZT
SEPINEESIERERR 2 EE - BMESTET
AHFZEERR - AREEEZEE2E @5
HF2HBRENREEFTR %%tﬂl%@%ﬁﬂ%%
ZBRBERITAT A MEREEEERE - 7
ZERRERI AR REEEEREELX
FRENEEBRA « 513271 538 i 1 )RR 155K
AREARENEAR  BRYKEMBSEREER
PR REEITER - TR REFRENR
f& -

AT EREBUR M NARSEBMZBEAE B
ERANEEREEE - AEE/HE %Hﬁﬁﬁf
ERENBEN - Bt WEARETTHAKEIRE
KEXREERR

FIEEERE  EmAGHREERE - BIURR
BEPARZEUFHNEEEN Rens8BikE
BREEEN ©

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are capital
based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the overall
credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country limits are also
set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from international
credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a more balanced
portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and uses
established market practices on credit support and collateral settlement
to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall
credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty, including
valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to
the financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty. The
acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are established
within the credit policies, as are the respective margins of finance.
Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group’s direct,
irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or
other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based
upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position
and ability to repay.
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3.
3.2

B EREE @
EERE @)

3.2.3 JBUEEE iR ] SE AR IR 2 B ()

() BRREBR

REE LS ERRNERmE T BIERRER
RERH A Z MR RS - EEEARER
=3

LR ik

o  HEMERBEENRBENREUE
o HERSRIANEBESFMESR

o HEMER R
o HEARE-

AN - EARERBRIRERAF @R
ERERBFEBRRETRE - SEEHER
HIRMHBIMER mIAREEERRX

(2) EBES

BXemTAMASAMEERRCEER
REZRFERTAN  BHEFLBEERE
B i A

3.2
3.2.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

(a) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

o Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

U Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans and
advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. HMBRBREE®

32 FEARG®

3.2.3 JBUER/E R IEHIBRE 2 B (#)
(R) $T£TA

BEAETAESNMARSET ZEER
BREERZXZHT 2 EERBRIES M EERE
Frz—&n - BREEENNREBERR
ZBURE  BRGEERENMETENEE
A o LEAN - AEEA T EENENEFK
R BN NRREERELIZENSE
R R EXRNTERNZZRSH T
FRIBERE R ROTEA NS 2 s
Z E & o

AEBE A ERBORZHFATLEA L
BE BABESHZERZE T EEMITEE
A LR ©

3.2.4 MFHEFE

EAKEEKEVERKENSE I REF/HIR
BEREHEAREmOEREBMEEZBRBLE
BMEE - REREHE AR @K IER B = 1L
TIE B K (if) a0 7R 5= B O W B 730 AR BOH I o
WEEEmERmNEEREREMNEN2H
e

AREBAMH DERTHNEREE - BE20214F
12A31ALEFE - Rk RE SR ERmE T
1ERT - AMEMBEN EREELAREESNEER
13,000,0007% 7T (20204F : 59,000,000/ 7T) © 7
R20214F 22020 AR ERB B C MW TR E
RRBREER - BEFURERAER R EERT T
EROER - F2HME3.2.9 -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
outstanding amounts of financial assets written off before completion
of enforcement activity of the underlying collaterals was HK$13 million
(2020: HK$59 million). Please refer to Note 3.2.9 for the total amount
of loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantees with or without collateral held by the Group written off in
2021 and 2020.
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3. UXEREE®
3.2 FERRE@m

3.2.5 Rit AfFH 2B A im XA M EIEF A
ZREEEREE

TRESEMTANERERBRZOMN - TH2E
EENREE SZBRRENI T AEEZS
ERMEEZRHEERRE

(1) ZAEEREFEHEREE
2021512A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

At 31 December 2021

REE/ 2528
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHREE
REEE  REEIUT BRER

EE Special Sub-standard &t ECL B
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITREBRER Balance and placements with banks 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8,428 16,539,616
—F&Bx1 - Stage 1 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8,428 16,539,616
—[&Er2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -

WAFEtE AEZEEA Debt instruments at fair value through
Hi2AKENEBIA other comprehensive income 40,301,378 - - 40,301,378 41,165 40,260,213
—F&Bx1 - Stage 1 40,301,378 - - 40,301,378 41,165 40,260,213
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
DR AT ROEB A Debt instruments at amortised cost 24,569,938 - - 24,569,938 30,116 24,539,822
—F&Bx1 - Stage 1 24,569,938 - - 24,569,938 30,116 24,539,822
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BFER Advances to customers 141,659,329 1,255,174 1,398,836 144,313,339 1,370,947 142,942,392
—F&Bx1 - Stage 1 131,412,534 - - 131,412,534 469,184 130,943,350
—PEER2 - Stage 2 10,246,795 1,255,174 - 11,501,969 354,154 11,147,815
—P8ER3 - Stage 3 - - 1,398,836 1,398,836 547,609 851,227
EPES Trade bills 4,253,850 - - 4,253,850 7,347 4,246,503
—F&Ex1 - Stage 1 4,253,340 - - 4,253,340 7,347 4,245,993
—[&Er2 - Stage 2 510 - - 510 - 510
—[&E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
JERH RS R EAARR Accrued interest and other accounts 5,220,469 4,408 69,575 5,294,452 25,558 5,268,894
—F&Ex1 - Stage 1 5,208,599 - - 5,208,599 11,298 5,197,301
—&Er2 - Stage 2 11,870 4,408 - 16,278 489 15,789
—P8ER3 - Stage 3 - - 69,575 69,575 13,771 55,804

R ERMBER Loan commitments and financial

guarantees 76,041,645 40,878 46,227 76,128,750 120,604 76,008,146
—F&Ex1 - Stage 1 73,678,288 - - 73,678,288 114,783 73,563,505
—PEER2 - Stage 2 2,363,357 40,878 - 2,404,235 5,821 2,398,414
—[&Er3 - Stage 3 - - 46,227 46,227 - 46,227
At Total 308,594,653 1,300,460 1,514,638 311,409,751 1,604,165 309,805,586

ERBELTBEENE  BEIRAAFEFERR
EEFARMEAPRENEBTAZERSER
REBEERFETMESHEBNEHREEESSR -

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt instruments
at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance maintained in investment
revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERRBR@® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.25 KRt AFBZHH m R M IE BIEA AT 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
ZREEERRE® or other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) ZEEREMEHSRBEE @ (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020
REE/ 458
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEE
BREE  ORBEAT BiEEE
EE Special  Sub-standard CEH ECL 8
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
BRITHREMRRER Balance and placements with banks 20,626,699 - - 20,626,699 8482 20,618,217
—FE81 ~ Stage 1 20,626,699 = - 20,626,699 8482 20,618,217
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 - - = = = =
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
UATETE BEZEA Debt instruments at fair value through
Hi2ERa=EBIA other comprehensive income 40,043,192 - - 40,043,192 33,778 40,009,414
—FEER1 ~ Stage 1 40,043,192 = - 40,043,192 33778 40,009,414
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 - - = = = =
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
B ATRNEBTA Debt instruments at amortised cost 22,867,101 - - 22,867,101 24200 22,842,879
&8 1 ~ Stage 1 22,867,101 = - 22,867,101 24200 22,842,879
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 - - = = = =
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
EPEH Advances to customers 135,115,561 888,020 1,573,803 137,577,384 1,251,164 136,326,220
—FEER1 — Stage 1 125,010,106 = - 125,010,106 486,431 124,523,675
—FEEk2 — Stage 2 10,105,455 888,020 - 10,993475 208225 10,785,250
—FEER3 ~ Stage 3 = = 1,573,803 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295
EUES Trade bills 3,790,517 - 607 3,791,124 8,859 3,782,265
—FEER1 ~ Stage 1 3,782,143 = = 3,782,143 8,848 3,773,295
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 8,374 - - 8,374 11 8,363
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - 607 607 - 607
st HI S R AR Accrued interest and other accounts 6,690,611 3,710 64,334 6,758,655 22,683 6,735,972
—FEER1 ~ Stage 1 6,679,177 = = 6,679,177 10,287 6,668,890
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 11,434 3,710 - 15,144 547 14,597
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - 64,334 64,334 11,849 52,485
R ERMBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 78,455,814 33,015 291 78,489,120 155,969 78,333,151
—FEER1 ~ Stage 1 75,855,320 = - 75855320 146,243 75,709,077
—FEEk2 ~ Stage 2 2,600,494 33,015 = 2,633,509 9,726 2,623,783
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - 291 291 - 291
At Total 307,589,495 924,745 1,639,035 310,153,275 1,505,157 308,648,118
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3.2
3.2.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3. HEERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 KRt AFBZHH m R M IE BIEA AT 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
ZREEERREE® or other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) ZEEREMEHSRBEE @ (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
& Treasury

F1EMER |22 EEN&SBB-%
A E2ZSEFH) R o

F2ERIN AL | B2 NEMEERT R AB+
EB-ZRXHHFHAL o

SE3ERREF AT | B2 ARMEETRR
CCC+H AT 2R ZHF R

(2) BAERENSREE

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with
internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

BRTEE
Gross carrying amount
2021 2020
FHEBEERENEE Trading assets
—EBES — Debt securities 4,425,384 5,080,047
—PTETA — Derivatives 360,405 945,983
HHHTETA Hedging derivatives 260,651 189,831
AT AR = B EE B A B Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 14,119 =
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed
with reference to the following:

o Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

o Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 0.97% (2020: 1.14%) of the total loans and advances
to customers; and

. 73% (2020: 74%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2021 2020
BERNBDERE Gross loans and advances 144,313,339 137,577,384
kR RELEELRRE Less: total impairment allowances (1,370,947) (1,251,164)
R Net 142,942,392 136,326,220
FEEREZERZER Credit-impaired loans and advances 1,398,836 1,573,803
Bk - PEER3 BB ZEE Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (547,609) (556,508)
FEE Net 851,227 1,017,295
REERLATE Fair value of collateral held * 758,124 787,030
FEEREERRBREREFERR Credit-impaired loans and advances
BHRBEA DL as a % of total loans and advances
to customers 0.97% 1.14%

- ERmAFEDREBERRTEREFREES
# MEPEREEETE

*

Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 FEARG® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 B REH @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRIRIEE BRI RAR 2 REEED BIE The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
BERRBRZBDLL percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2021 2020
WEEE AR
HEMEREE e
ADL ANtk
EXREEX Impairment EFNEF Impairment
B2tk  allowance Anth allowance
Loans and as a % of Loans and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
I IE 1 — pass 98.1 0.5 98.2 0.4
2—%rhlEE 2 — special mention 0.9 8.2 0.7 11.4
3— IRARIAT 3 — sub-standard or below 1.0 39.2 1.1 35.4
100.0 1.0 100.0 0.9
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3. UXEREE®
3.2 EERME@m)

3.2.6 EXREB (&)

(F) BEBVMBREENFIRESER (a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

BEZEFERRBR

EEREER R B B RSB E
R HEER R D FERERIDITAT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

impaired under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

REEAR
DFE
BB AEERE BREE Fair value
Gross Impairment Carrying of collateral
2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
AAER Loans to individual:
—=BFK — Credit cards 17,250 14,749 2,501 =
— RIS EN — Mortgages 204,192 37,027 167,165 181,543
— HAh — Others 367,247 167,404 199,843 58,139
BEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER — Term loans 254,374 116,752 137,622 158,756
—RBER — Mortgages 111,170 10,032 101,138 105,930
—BH5@E — Trade finance 267,908 142,939 124,969 93,559
— HAth — Others 176,695 58,706 117,989 160,197
BEERECERESE Total credit-impaired loans 1,398,836 547,609 851,227 758,124
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(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERME@®) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 B RE @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
() REBMBREZENEIREFER (a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
BExEFERRER®E) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FAEEHRR
~¥E
[E\pr B E REER EREE Fair value
Gross Impairment Carrying of collateral
2020 12A31H At 31 December 2020 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—=EAF — Credit cards 12,645 10,447 2,198 -
—RIBER — Mortgages 186,507 34,054 152,453 166,302
—Hfth — Others 415,559 185,205 230,354 88,549
BEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHIER — Term loans 218,901 36,303 182,598 138,547
—RIE® — Mortgages 112,384 9,142 103,242 91,163
—BoRE — Trade finance 349,314 163,020 186,294 108,633
—Hfth — Others 278,493 118,337 160,156 193,836
EERECEREHE Total credit-impaired loans 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295 787,030
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3. HHXEBREEm 3.
32 FEARGM®
3.2.6 BEFHRB @)

(2) BE3EANLEZERRBR

(i) EEIAREEENAARE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i)  Gross amount of overdue loans

2021 2020
AR EE MERER
BRaE xR
Gross amount {5#%  Gross amount 1hEE
of overdue Aol of overdue Aot
loans % of total loans % of total
NMERFPEFEE Gross advances to customers
jak:ik which have been overdue for:
—3EAAEZ6[EA — six months or less but over
three months 103,435 0.07 240,472 0.17
—6EANEE1E - one year or less but over
six months 126,868 0.09 136,656 0.10
—1E — over one year 583,423 0.40 525,674 0.38
813,726 0.56 902,802 0.65
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NTS
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3. UXEREE®
3.2 FERME@®)
3.2.6 EXRB (&)

(2) EH3EA U L2 ERR B @)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(b)

(Continued)

(i)  EEHKREEEARBNZ HE (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
BRI an (B against overdue loans and advances
ERRBR
RMEBHHE ERR ERR ERR BEER3
Outstanding BmfE FREDR  REREDH HEEE
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage 3
loansand  market value covered covered by impairment
2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 advances of collateral by collateral collateral allowances
BHAEEZFEFNR Overdue loans and advances
B to customers 813,726 888,796 456,744 356,982 350,828
ERRBR
NMERHE i il il FEER3
Outstanding RmE FrEdER  ReERERR AEEE
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage 3
loans and market value covered covered by impairment
2020124311 At 31 December 2020 advances of collateral by collateral collateral allowances
BAKEEZFEF K Overdue loans and advances
A to customers 902,802 930,016 593,229 309,573 302,651

FrA < B mEEREMTR - 218
YRR REAE T B E R o

(A) RELAER(EHKREFEELLZE

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed
assets such as equipment.

Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

(c)

HEM) overdue advances shown above
Gt ok
Btk Bt
2021 % of total 2020 % of total
EFER Advances to customers 350,761 0.24 374,963 0.27
RS EEMR Stage 3 impairment allowances 141,673 141,869
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UXEREE®
3.2 EERME@m)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.7 ESEE 3.2.7 Trade bills
2021 2020
E 550 - Trade bills which have been overdue for:
—6{A A A EE1FE — one year or less but over six months - -
—1FENUE — over one year - 607
= 607
P& B3Il B Stage 3 impairment allowances - =

BRESEEREREAEM -

3.2.8 W B #im
RERFA ZWEER T

The overdue trade bills are fully secured.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2021 2020

BEHE Nature of assets
BRI ES Repossessed properties 208,090 304,514
EAh Others 1,090 24,923
209,180 329,437

WEHERRRATEREREE - BRKBEAMN
IEB B Z (ERARERET ©

fi 5 °] & 38 48 {8 7% 64,984,000 /% 7T (2020 £F -
63,158,000/8 7T ) Z FEH B A ) E T E A%
TH78 & EAR AR h B A 3t R Be AR 2 AR S M AT {58 PA
YIRERE RO o ZIERRR2RNMEI02[E
EE A THHEBLEZEE - HEZERD
AR R

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the borrowers
concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$64,984,000 (2020: HK$63,158,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
30. The relevant loans had been derecognised.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UXEREE®
3.2 FERM@m)
3.2.9 EEEME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

TRIBHIZE B ISR E LR B 9R AL BRI R The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL
ZEPERRBR - BEREERTFEERZ AL allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments
EEBEEBNEE and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
=€ Retail
BB B Er2 K3 &t
BHEE BHGE BEGE BEGE
BEER BE%ER BIE%ERE BE%ERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
[ Transfers:
BB ERR Transfer to Stage 1 8,357 (7,664) (693) -
BB ERER2 Transfer to Stage 2 (3,776) 3,776 - -
B B3 Transfer to Stage 3 (17,919) (14,019) 31,938 -
mfE Y EESHTES 272 Effect of stage transfers and changes
in allowance (2,482) 1,823 262,336 261,677
HNERAE © BAREER New financial assets originated, purchased

LEMEE or derecognised during the period 43,011 8,046 (964) 50,093
BRI EIBRE /EHER  Changes in PDs/LGDS/EADs/

AIE/RIEEORERZE forward-looking assumptions (71,549) 1,478 (15,510) (85,581)
EREL Model enhancements 8,406 1,437 (712) 9,131
ARPRBEIR Unwind of discount 502 37 30 903
sy Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HNE R H fth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 19 15 - 34
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
20201718 At 1 January 2020 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
# Transfers:

BB ERR Transfer to Stage 1 5,543 (5,543) - -
BB R Transfer to Stage 2 (6,470) 6,878 (408) -
BB EREES Transfer to Stage 3 (38,929) (15,105) 54,034 -
mERER L EEEBMES Y E  Effect of stage transfers and changes

in allowance (3,864) 7,563 356,833 360,532
HRFRE « BASHERER New financial assets originated, purchased

LEREE or derecognised during the period 47,104 8,392 (5,173) 50,323
BRZSR /i ’]E%I/i 4% Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

AIE /AR R 2 & forward-looking assumptions 15,085 8,723 258 24,066
RRIRBAE Unwind of discount 33 35 9 77
fi 3 Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
HNE R EL fth 25 Foreign exchange and other movements 51 - - 51
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 EBHEERF 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
bTaf 3 Corporate
32| P& g2 B3 A&t
BHEE BHEE BHEEE BHEE
BEER BEER BEER BEER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
8% - Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 12,518 (12,518) - -
BB Transfer to Stage 2 (10,761) 10,761 = =
EE SRS Transfer to Stage 3 (384) (3,997) 4,381 -
mfE Y EEEHTES ¥ 2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (7,637) 16,300 34,781 43,444
HRIRAE - BATRGHRER New financial assets originated, purchased

LERMERE or derecognised during the period 71,228 (3,082) (35,501) 32,645
BRFAR BINBKRE /EHER Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

AIE /RN RS 228 forward-looking assumptions (41,787) 159,350 74,678 192,241
BRE(L Model enhancements (37,011) (22,085) - (59,096)
BREREER Unwind of discount 237 1,509 51 1,797
HisH Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
SN J o fth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 321 523 740 1,584
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
" Transfers:

B ERREN Transfer to Stage 1 8,410 (8,410) - -
B SRR Transfer to Stage 2 (25,941) 25,941 = —
EYERES Transfer to Stage 3 (796) (13,860) 14,656 -
mFEEBER EEBEMES 252  Effect of stage transfers and changes in

allowance (3,971) 35,881 55,545 87,455
HNERAE  BARHEER 2 New financial assets originated, purchased

EREE or derecognised during the period 17,475 (11,432) (32,156) (26,113)
BHIRE EHERE /B HER  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

AIE /RGN RS2 2 forward-looking assumptions 3,047 15,825 192,125 210,997
FERREEIR Unwind of discount 127 1,313 50 1,490
WA Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
HNE R EL fth 25 Foreign exchange and other movements 1,048 441 (300) 1,189
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 EBEERF 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
TRBIRE B I 5 S 2RI 595k AN 6 B R [ ER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
2R EE(GERFERKBERZEHERERE (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
FAEE R IFREROEE D) LR o to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial
guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.
=€ Retail
BB B Er2 BEr3 A&t
Bk Bk Bk Bk
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20211 81AH At 1 January 2021 108,821,831 460,323 614,711 109,896,865
2122 Transfers:
BB ERR Transfer to Stage 1 77,250 (70,801) (6,449) -
BB ERE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (261,588) 261,588 - -
BB ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (328,740) (84,431) H3171 -
iatER ~ RIERR -5 Origination, derecognition, further lending
BERRER and repayment 3,438,058 (117,918) (145,794) 3,174,346
3 Wite-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HNE R B E ) Foreign exchange and other movements 12,413 81 - 12,494
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 111,759,224 448,842 588,688 112,796,754
20201418 At 1 January 2020 109,343,346 558,641 346,533 110,248,520
#i Transfers:
B R Transfer to Stage 1 93,558 (90,182) (3,376) -
B ERRED Transfer to Stage 2 (306,510) 310,039 (3,529) -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (352,725) (255,651) 608,376 -
MR - RILRER - Origination, derecognition, further lending
ERRER and repayment (9,454) (62,524) (3,402) (75,380)
R Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
HNE e E At 2 5) Foreign exchange and other movements 53,616 = = 53,616
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 108,821,831 460,323 614,711 109,896,865
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. UXEREE®
3.2 EERME@m)
3.29 EEEMH @)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

bTaf 3 Corporate
12 P& g2 PR3 &t
BB BRER Bk Bk
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
[ Transfers:
HERREN Transfer to Stage 1 1,619,588 (1,619,588) - -
ELERED Transfer to Stage 2 (4,317,741) 4,319,007 (1,266) -
B 2R3 Transfer to Stage 3 (176,151) (50,799) 226,950 -
MRTER ~ RILER - E—F Origination, derecognition, further lending
EFRER and repayment 4,080,324 (2,369,406) (253,623) 1,457,295
s Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
HNE R E o & Foreign exchange and other movements 81,983 11,487 2,434 95,904
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
202041418 At 1 January 2020 08,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437
8% - Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 1,503,040 (1,503,040) - -
BB B2 Transfer to Stage 2 (6,360,069) 6,360,069 - -
BB B3 Transfer to Stage 3 (175,608) (106,228) 281,836 -
IATER IR ILFER - — Origination, derecognition, further lending
ERER and repayment (1,313,794) (590,064) 97,774 (1,806,084)
HisH Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
SN J& o fth Foreign exchange and other movements 160,778 5,359 (3,580) 162,557
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639

MEAS BRAS MNERITOERIIABBRRA
FIRRSANFEEBEEFH AR MEE W
MEFTE SEERBIENFRLERERS

% o

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, are classified in Stage 1 with no stage

transition during the year.
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186

3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.10 EH &5 3.2.10 Debt securities
TRFIRN20214F 2020512 A 31 BT fikts The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
EE 2B AN 2 ETFES © agency designation at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
NAYE
FTEEHEH
FARMEE
WRNEREE S i235%
Financial assets 5l R HY
at fair value SREE
B{EEE  through other Financial
FZEE comprehensive assets at &t
2021512431A At 31 December 2021 Trading assets income amortised cost Total
AAA AAA = 1,391,800 284,131 1,675,931
AA- Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 4,425,384 11,184,459 3,619,580 19,229,423
A-ZE A+ A-to A+ - 17,985,700 12,256,623 30,242,323
BRHRE(ERNA- Rated but lower than A- - 7,688,494 4,689,472 12,377,966
RERR Unrated - 3,093,776 3,720,132 6,813,908
S Total 4,425,384 41,344,229 24,569,938 70,339,551
NWATE
FERES
STARMZEH
WM eREE DABEEARK A
Financial assets SIERHY
at fair value SREE
F{EEE  through other Financial
FI#EE  comprehensive assets at CH
20201274318 At 31 December 2020 Trading assets income  amortised cost Total
AAA AAA - 2,126,332 255,484 2,381,816
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 5,080,047 12,313,514 3,177,080 20,570,641
A- £ A+ A-to A+ - 17,313,130 11,162,453 28,475,583
AT REERA- Rated but lower than A- - 6,537,625 4,002,501 10,540,126
REFR Unrated - 3,424,717 4,269,583 7,694,300
At Total 5,080,047 41,715,318 22,867,101 69,662,466
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

211 i EEEREC LHEEZREER 3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
EE risk exposure
() B (a) Geographical sectors
EFERZEFHAITIHIREE Z RERED Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
B ZERAMEDEE - —RME - EBEX according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
BRI R EERANR 2 @I - @ account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
18 - an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the borrower.

TRARFERBEEIREH AT The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20215 20204
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BEPERAE Gross advances to customers
—&BB — Hong Kong 121,821,903 115,234,954
— — China 7,615,412 7,630,058
— R — Macau 13,777,935 13,686,148
—Hf - Others 1,098,089 1,026,224

144,313,339 137,577,384
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3. UXEREE®
3.2 FERME@®)

211 WEEEERRZ EMEEZEBRES

BE @)
(z) 17%

EPEHABHE —RITRREN G

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit

risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2021 2020
FEEAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEsR Industrial, commercial and financial
—FERE — Property development 5,467,229 5,611,830
—WEKE — Property investment 19,253,002 17,221,674
— SR — Financial concerns 4,661,129 5,756,814
—RELL — Stockbrokers 1,642,984 1,733,867
— BB ETER — Wholesale and retail trade 5,401,435 6,004,660
—BlEE — Manufacturing 1,987,035 1,790,941
—ER LB HRE — Transport and transport equipment 2,269,160 2,512,559
—[RE4EE) — Recreational activities 59,895 96,223
— BB — Information technology 59,058 51,827
—Efth — Others 6,970,986 6,003,396
47,771,913 46,783,791
fEA Individuals
—BEIEEBHES] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FAAZEEREEI R Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEBEHENEI EBFEXR Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 529,218 558,428
- BEHEMEEDEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,473,466 31,260,619
—ERRER — Credit card advances 3,670,096 3,610,141
—Efth — Others 13,105,677 13,079,682
50,778,457 48,508,870
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 98,550,370 95,292,661
2 omE (7)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,123,088 8,115,481
EEBAIMERNER(GE(2)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 37,639,881 34,169,242
144,313,339 137,577,384
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UXEREE®
3.2 EERME@m)

211 i EEEREC LHEEZREER
BE @)

(2) 1738

BB —RITRR B HE 03 (#)

(1) LERINRZBEIBERDERESERE
MRS Mo B ATEED - HOM
BONBE UERERESRESZER -

THERBEZEFHREER(BERHRIT
ARAB(TRFRIT]) ZFINRITHE R
AT 2B SRE )41 ({E485,128,000% T
(2020412 A31H : 260,328,000/ 7T ) 7
BN ERBUIMERMERIET -

(2 [EFBEMIMEANERIBERTEER
FREFEAIMERZEK

3.3 WmEEMR

MG R T e ™5 LR R RERAFE M3
HHEE REMREEABRIMSEZEBERAR -

BERXHZTERRIBESE  AREERE
REBERMERRERRZESREEERT
ZRENMZEZ SRRARRENIESINERE - &
bR ERIZAE S B A KRB E m M TR B
E o RERBFEEETREDR  LARE -
SRR ERTSRAREE(TSRREE] 2
B -BEPRTERARNEERERESRE
MEARK - RERRBEAREEREZHTR
TR N B RR 1) T — B L g o I R A
Y AELBERMEFBIHREE - AZH - 5
B EELEEZETRRIEZABITHERR
FRWBRHERZKFEAR - HATFAREE
M BRBERRRREFESBEREE-ME
LEERBREZES  RREERARZESGRE
EeEENE -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”)) totalling HK$485,128,000 (31 December
2020: HK$260,328,000) are classified under Loans for use outside
Hong Kong.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and
prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. The Risk
Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an
independent risk management and control unit, identifies, measures,
monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved limits and
initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned
by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as
stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their treasury
functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and within
the market risk management framework set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees the market risk arising from the treasury operations of
BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in place are
commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the Group
standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least annually
for all trading positions and allocated to business units.
Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored against
limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR for
the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$1,379,000 (2020: HK$2,389,000).
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(2) mEEBREHRE (b)

3. HEERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 WHRER@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 FEEERZHSERE &) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
() MRS ER @ (a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

VaR summary of trading portfolio

B Z2021F12A31H1E1218A #£2020F12 A31H [E121E A
12 months to 31 December 2021 12 months to 31 December 2020

15 58] 545 55 == =K

Average High Low Average High Low

47INGEE [\ B Foreign exchange risk 966 3,362 273 1,925 3,559 291
F 2 @ g Interest rate risk 834 4,124 211 1,128 3,544 494
ZEPE All risks 1,379 4,317 413 2,389 3,916 574
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by the
Treasury and Global Markets Division of the Group on a
daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa, is
normally matched using foreign exchange forward contracts
to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million higher (2020: HK$41 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million lower (2020: HK$41 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the
interest margins or net interest income and the economic
value of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA'’s standard parallel up scenario, with other
variables held constant, the impact on earnings over the
next 12 months and the impact on economic value of equity
would have been HK$78 million higher and HK$727 million
lower respectively (2020: HK$44 million higher and HK$435
million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2020 and 2021.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such
investments could change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might
affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit

commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

currency.
BT E AR AR% Hity &t

20215123318 At 31 December 2021 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B e RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 5,628,784 1,254,288 633,213 2,395,923 2,095,545 12,007,753
ERME120EARZIH Placements with banks maturing between

iy one and twelve months 2,875,840 233,809 2,117 888,863 531,144 4,531,863
BEEBERGNES Trading securities 4,425,384 - - - - 4425384
WATEEAHE Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNEREE profit or loss - - - 14,119 - 14,119
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments 50,869 474,485 - 11,457 84,245 621,056
XIBESREMEEE Advances and other accounts 111,989,593 19,419,500 8,268,253 10,976,296 1,804,147 152,457,789
IATEEBEZEHA Financial assets at fair value through

i rABENEREE other comprehensive income 9,166,138 31,560,955 36,986 140,751 528,981 41,433,811
DB ATIBRE S REE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,157,902 19,494,130 970,094 1,729,294 188,402 24,539,822
SREES Total financial assets 136,294,510 72,437,257 9,910,663 16,156,703 5,232,464 240,031,597
8% Liabilities
BAER Deposits from banks 64,147 1,377,614 - 259,937 1,499 1,703,197
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments 50,424 1,298,004 - 6,628 70,309 1,425,365
BEEBEREMERE Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1,511,927
REEH Deposits from customers 126,480,173 38,300,149 9,548,782 14,048,506 7,756,955 196,134,565
BEIRERE Certificates of deposit issued 200,057 6,389,660 - - - 6,589,717
BEES Subordinated notes - 4,128,046 - - - 4128446
HibfRE LR Other accounts and accruals 4,459,367 1,344,203 140,887 508,395 43,390 6,496,242
SRERAH Total financial liabilities 132,766,095 52,838,076 9,689,669 14,823,466 7,872,153 217,989,459
BEBERABRTE Net on-balance sheet positions 3,528,415 19,599,181 220,994 1,333,237 (2,639,689) 22,042,138
EESRAMER%EFE  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 17,201,973 (19,767,365) - (240,501) 2,630,250 (175,643)
EERE Credit commitments 62,398,672 7,579,705 2,294,001 3,749,471 106,901 76,128,750

BERBERIMNGEZRFREIZANRBEAE
ESNEZERR INESRINTAE T AR EFFE

*

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

BT e il ARE At At

20205124318 At 31 December 2020 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 6,113,630 4,154,611 488,812 1,298,628 3206771 15262,452
EFTE120HARZIH Placements with banks maturing between

il one and twelve months 1,421,182 77516 - 3,689,143 167,924 5,355,765
BIEEERRNES Trading securities 5,080,047 - - - - 5,080,047
ART{Es 8 A AES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNEREE profit or loss - - - - - =
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 75,404 1,031,728 - 2,320 26,362 1,135,814
REEAREMER Advances and other accounts 105,420,525 20,034,022 8,043404 10,738,269 2608237 146,844,457
WATEs = EAZERA Financial assets at fair value through

i rEBENEREE other comprehensive income 10,027,673 31,055,903 36,821 65,624 629977 41,815,998
BBR SRR S HEE Financial assets at amortised cost 1,730,660 18,090,666 1,337,977 1,484,883 198,693 22,842,879
CREER Total financial assets 129,869,121 74,444 446 9907,014 17,278,867 6,837,964 238,337,412
B Liabilities
FAER Deposits from banks 125,921 1,928,551 - 1,365,645 80,325 3,500,442
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 80,530 3,101,754 - 1,230 7,674 3,191,188
HEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,570,675 - - - - 1,570,675
REEH Deposits from customers 123,574,154 35,987,347 9,757,111 13,484,746 7,536,449 190,339,807
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,734,650 6,391,152 - - - 8,125,802
BERER Subordinated notes = 3,828,458 = = = 3,828,458
HihiR A kR Other accounts and accruals 4,534,659 1,788,803 151,231 468,225 53,489 6,996,407
¢EBEARS Total financial liabilities 131,620,589 53,026,065 9908342 15,319,846 7677937 217,552,779
EERRRABEFE Net on-balance sheet positions (1,751468) 21418381 (1,328) 1,959,021 (839,973) 20,784,633
EEBERIMGRAZFE"  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 21124262 (21,136,477) - (947,605) 757,213 (202,607)
EERE Credit commitments 66,383,165 8,126,556 1,988,267 1,824,825 166,307 78,489,120
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.

Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at

carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

3EAKE
38R £33 1E0E
FHUT Over B5F 56N L TR
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest At

2021512A318 At 31 December 2021 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
EE Assets
Re RERITHLER Cash and balances with banks 9,375,410 630,420 - - 2,001,923 12,007,753
ERME12(ER R Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 1768274 2,763,589 - - - 4531,863
HEEERBNES Trading securities 2,248,385 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4,425,384
WATEEAHEE Financial assets at fair value through

SABRRNESREE profit or loss - - - - 14,119 14,119
ITESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 621,056 621,056
ZEERREMARE Advances and other accounts 131,332,470 10,130,982 5,365,482 227,537 5,401,318 152,457,789
WATE 2 BEZEEA Financial assets at fair value through other

H2ENENEREE comprehensive income 8,376,715 7,191,496 17,578,647 8,197,295 89,658 41,433,811
MBBR SRR S REE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,682,704 2,067,487 11,277,809 6,498,456 13,366 24,539,822
SREEA Total financial assets 157,783,958 24,948,688 34,234,223 14,923,288 8,141,440 240,031,597
af Liabilities
RITEH Deposits from banks 1,695,507 - - - 7,690 1,703,197
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,425,365 1,425,365
RIEEERRNEE Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1511927
XPGEH Deposits from customers 168,590,691 9,825,161 1,081,214 - 16,637,499 196,134,565
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,737,343 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
kEER Subordinated notes - - 4,128,446 - - 4,128,446
HifRE Rk Other accounts and accruals 346,460 96,554 323,061 158,491 5,571,676 6,496,242
SREEAH Total financial liabilities 173,881,928 14,389,767 5,917,043 158,491 23,642,230 217,989,459
FISRBEEA (REHR)  Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (16,097,970) 10,558,921 28,317,180 14,764,797
FIRfTETEAN & Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 28,679,285 216,443  (14,790,621)  (14,105,107)
FISSBEEAL (HEE)*  Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 12,581,315 10,775,364 13,526,559 659,690

* RSB B 8
BENREEE
AR A = B
£

.
TE
i

EENRBEEABRNEEM

IEHBENEHREER A

TR E T ASKMK

*

balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to

mitigate interest rate risk.

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
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3. UXEREE®

Th 15 [ B ()
3.3.4 FFEE @)

3.3

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

SEAMUL
3f@A =E ENR
FUAT Over Z5E 5%\ E T8
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest ait

2020124318 At 31 December 2020 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 10,926,539 - = = 4335913 15,262,452
ERME12EA RIS Placements with banks maturing between

il one and twelve months 1,906,922 3,448,843 = = - 5355765
FEEERENES Trading securities 2743279 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
RT{Es 8 A AES Financial assets at fair value through profit or

SABRNEREE loss = = = = = =
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,135,814 1,135,814
FEESREMIER Advances and other accounts 124,818,127 9,713,920 5,616,149 268,641 6,427,620 146,844,457
IATEE BEZHHA Financial assets at fair value through other

A2 EkaNeREE comprehensive income 10,058,621 6,460,216 16,783,685 8,412,722 100754 41,815,998
DERRATIRMSREE Financial assets at amortised cost 2927287 2307555 9899995 7,694,675 13367 22,842,879
CREES Total financial assets 153,380,775 24237213 32329918 16376038 12013468 238,337,412
B Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 3,492,389 = = = 8,053 3,500,442
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,191,188 3,191,188
REEERENER Trading liabilities 1,129,526 440,132 1,017 - - 1570675
EFER Deposits from customers 161,777,996 11,521,431 2,285,593 - 14754787 190,339,807
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,257,530 3,766,378 101,894 - - 8,125,802
#ERES Subordinated notes - 1,964,475 1,863,983 - - 3,828,458
HiR B kR Other accounts and accruals 546,910 121,134 299,485 218,182 5,810,696 6,996,407
SRERAE Total financial liabilities 171,204,351 17,813,550 4,551,972 218,182 23764724 217,552,779
FISHREBRA (REHEZ)  Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (17,823576) 6423663 27,777,946 16,157,856
MEFTETARKZRE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,430,281 2,830,791  (17,501,718)  (14,759,355)
FEGEEEA (CAEZ)  Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 11,606,705 9254454 10,276,228 1,398,501
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements set forth in
the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity
Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls
for Liquidity Risk Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the
approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk
management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition,
material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with any
corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO.
Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient
liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient
level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and
Global Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and
monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing.
The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to
liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits,
and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion of
the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes are
issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity and
optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are
taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the
market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for different time horizons, including the next day,
week and month, which are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual
maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as the expected
maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical observations.
The cash flow projections also take into account the historical behaviour
of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments and
contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and guarantees.
The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity cushion, which is
composed of high quality marketable securities with sufficient market
depth to meet its liquidity needs at all times, even under adverse market
conditions. Eligible securities in the cushion mainly have low risk and
simple structure and can be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain
funds within a short period of time. Debt securities held are marked to
the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEETT In HK$ million
20214 2020F
12A31H 12H31H
A As at As at
Internal HARZER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2021 2020
F18R RECERBENREENBN - ZEBRRRT - AEERARR 13,696 16,150
REERBITRIRRZ BREE R0%N G ETS
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
FE2A RIREZERDEIFEENBAT - ZBERRIT - AEELNIFD 7,923 6,847
R ERBFITHERZ AREEH20%H B BE 5
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
E2BH EVLBEREFHERABENREDEEEF L XD O AIREEE ] 40,725 37,732
MRS RMBETHERZEMBEE S
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
34 REBESRM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 FHHZH 3.4.2 Maturity analysis
TERAIMAEEIRRERREFBS A A K The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
xFAEE A (ER) 2 AR DBz EE R maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
8fE - reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
1EARE
B3f8F  SfEANL
EDAN ZE 1E0E
PHEE 1BAGUT  Imonths or Over B5E SENE
Repayable Upto lesshutover ~ 3months  Over1year Over EFHAH H

20215124318 At 31 December 2021 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
R RIS Cash and balances with banks 4024247 7,983,506 - - - - - 12,007,753
ERMZ120AR Placements with banks maturing between one

HEER and twelve months - - 1768275 2763588 - - - 4531863
RIERERBRES Trading securities - 27399 1,990,986 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4425384
UATEEAAZY Financial assets at fair value through

TABRRNEREARE profitor loss - - - - - - 14,119 14,119
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments - 142,748 82,257 106,992 139,412 149,647 - 621,056
EBEERRAMEE Advances and other accounts 7,660,952 25,695,760 9,391,062 20,139,887 45,171,070 42,814,941 1,584,117 152,457,789
DATEFZAESE A Financial assets at fair value through other

EcENENEREE comprehensive income - 2391285 4635956  7,745813 18,373,805 8,197,295 89,657 41,433,811
DESRATISREHEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 1520903 1,767,865 2,577,364 12,041,290 6,619,034 13366 24,539,822
MENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4230951 4230951
LRBHERRE Investments in ointy controlled entiies - - - - - - 11431 114373
BE Goodwil - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
EYEE Infangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
MEREMEEAE Premises and other fived assets - - - - - - 2053797 2,953,797
VIS Investment properties - - - - - - 756,351 756,351
LR Deferred income tax assets - - - - 120418 - - 120,418
BEAT Total assets 11,685,199 37,991,601 19,636,401 35498358 75,858,280 57,780,917 10,528,434 248,979,190
8% Liabilities
L Deposits from banks 57,311 721683 924,203 - - - - 1,703,197
TEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 128,735 60,438 155,569 514,338 566,285 - 1,425,365
RIEEERRNAR Trading liabilities - 500,001 1,011,926 - - - - 1,511,927
R Deposits from customers 91,556,259 30,853,014 62,128,864 10,285,338 1,311,090 - - 196,134,565
BEANENE Certificates of deposit issued - 100,057 1,637,286 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
EREE Subordinated notes - - - - 4128446 - - 4128446
fERE Lease liabilities - 12,535 24,298 96,554 323,062 158,491 - 614,940
HindRE g Other accounts and accruals, excluding lease

TeRRERR liabilities 323,864 1,665,201 474,701 1,365,628 696,973 910,750 444,185 5,881,302
HEHEaRE Current income tax liabilties - - - 160,313 - - - 160,313
ERFERR Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 17915 - - 17915
Elch) Total liabilities 91,937,434 33,981,226 66,261,716 16,531,454  77376,146 1,635,526 444,185 218,167,687
FREMEE Net liquidity gap (80,252,235) 4,010,375 (46,625,315) 18,966,904 68,482,134 56,145,391 10,084,249 30,811,503
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3. UXEREE®

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 REBELRR@) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 FRIHZHm) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
AN
B3R SEANE
FUT BE ED
HEEE  1EAIAT  Imonths or Over E56 5L |
Repayable Upto lesshutover ~ 3months  Over1 year Over BHHAE i

2020F12A318 At 31 December 2020 on demand 1 month 1 month folyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
4E Assets
R RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 4613947 6775944 3872561 - - - - 15262452
EEMER2EAR Placements with banks maturing between one

3|5 and twelve months - - 1906922 3448843 - - - 53565765
HEEERENES Trading securities - 780485 1953794 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
WATE2AREY Financial assets at fair value through

HABENERAE profitor loss - - = - = = = =
ThESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 184,892 373,886 362,305 182,301 32430 - 113814
EREAREMEE Advances and other accounts 7538882 23628020 12,290,137 21,061,788 39,488,935 41,806,785 1,029,910 146,844,457
WATEFZEEZEHA  Financial assets at fair value through other

E2ENENEHEE  comprehensive income - 1583228 6074166 7447465 18197663 8412722 100754 41,815,998
DERHATIENSMAE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 068844 867655 2307684 11000862 7,604,667 13367 22,842,879
BADNIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4TI 4277907
AREHEERA Investments in jointly controlled enities = - = - = - 105553 105,553
e Goodwill = - = - - - 713450 713,451
BlAE Infangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
EREETAE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3006039 3006039
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 682,909 682,909
BIEREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 124,680 - - 124,680
BEAH Total assets 12,152,829 33830413 27339121 36,934,764 69,114,330 57,946,604 9,988,162 247,306,223
af Liabiliies
FTER Deposits from banks 137295 1650234 1712913 - - - - 3500442
(TEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - 172,487 318,983 369288 1,043400 1,267,030 - 3191188
BIEEERRHER Trading liabilities - 160,498 969,028 440,132 1,017 - - 1570675
EFEH Deposits from customers 102,294,349 69702283 8782205 6,927,338 2,633,632 - - 190,339,807
BEINGTE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,007,680 464932 6,551,296 101,894 - - 8125802
REEHK Subordinated notes - - - 1964475 1,863,983 - - 30828458
el Lease liabilties - 15,328 38,465 121133 209487 218,181 - 69250
AR RER Other accounts and accruals, excluding lease

THEREEE liabilities 19078 2,297,711 418,680 899,494 704,390 1,062,585 901815 6,303,813
PHEaE Current income tax liablities - - - 3836% - - - 3836%
EERERRE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 14,561 - - 14,561
BfEA Total liabilities 102,450,722 75006281 12705206 17,656,852 6,662,364 2,567,796 901,815 217,951,036
FroMzR Net liquidity gap (90,297,893)  (41,175,868)  14,633915 19277912 62451966 55378808 9,086,347 29,355,187
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3. HEEKREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34 RBESRM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FEH 5 #7@) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
RBERRFERERERBSEEEAT AN In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
FRB 2 EBAER  REDEH BRI Z R ER and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
AHNRET : the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity is shown as follows:

1ERNE
B3f8F  SfEANL
HUT EE 1E0E
fEEE 1BAIUT  3Imonths or Over 258 SENE

Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months  Over1 year Over EEHAH aif
on demand 1 month imonth  tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
20215128318 At 31 December 2021
FEean Certiicates of deposit held included in:
DATEFEEESHIA  Financial assets at fair value through other
EEENGNEREE  comprehensive income - 150,015 93,789 - 245,970 - - 489,774
NESRHATIERSEEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 244,904 244,036 720,872 327,552 - - 1537364
2020F12A318 At 31 December 2020
FEean Certiicates of deposit held included in:

WAFEFEAEEHHA  Financial assets at fair value through other

A2ENEHSEEE  comprehensive income - - - 100110 244238 - - 34348
DNESRHATIERSEMEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 238,090 99967 1,407,544 - - - 1745601
BEEEEHRRFENBREMZENEIREE The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
BEEE+TIEE - HRETHNERRIKEES rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Kﬁgﬁmﬁg[ﬁ&xﬁ*ﬁgd CHHRTTIE 0 &AM Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as businesses
FREERIE T ERE - THEENFERAERSE transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types. An
FgeH - B ﬁgAi‘ﬂuEﬁal‘L 2 e unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases

the risk of losses.
BERBENIISHA RASENKASREE The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
MEBENES  RFEERRSES MEEA acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
RN EREEFTAERRHNEERE - factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
HEE—RIERE=T2REE@REZHH Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
BEs  BENERNEREHAFRTNHRERN standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
MBEECHFERRINEENESSE - ARBRZEE the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the
AERIHAK K EBBEHAES - BLARE third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total
HEEZEEAENAENEGNRSERLER outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does
HERBEESEN - not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

J Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. UXEREE®
3.4 REBESEE @
3.4.3 BEABIEH 2 KA HEBE LT (%)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1fBANLER  3EAML 10 E
3ERHMUT BE 5%
1fBAZT 3 months or Over Over 56N L
Upto less but over 3 months 1 year Over At
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FIEIERER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
FITER Deposits from banks 779,026 924,913 - - - 1,703,939
EFER Deposits from customers 123,002,790  62,735298 10,399,697 1,342,110 - 197,479,895
KEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 500,000 1,012,008 - - - 1,512,008
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 102,543 1,644,480 4,491,532 395,611 - 6,634,166
REERY Subordinated notes 44,343 - 113,539 4,505,489 - 4,663,371
MERE Lease liabilities 13,192 25,558 101,635 337,265 161,278 638,928
HigfE Other liabilities 1,838,839 522,738 347,992 - 350,178 3,059,747
RS Total liabilities
(B#3IER) (contractual maturity dates) 126,280,733 66,864,995 15,454,395 6,580,475 511,456 215,692,054
fIETARSR Derivative cash flow
REFEEEZTESRIA Derivative financial instruments settled
on net basis (1,124) 1318 2,055 (14,253) 2,29 (,708)
RERREE TESRTA Derivative financial instruments settled
on a gross basis
itk Total outflow 48,789,682 16,750,300 17,297,065 3,749,175 1,067,931 87,654,153
AL Totalinflow (48726,928) | |(16,732,620) | |(16,781,821) | | (2.053,710) | | (a97,691) | |(84,792,770)

62,754 17,680 515,244 1,695,465 570,240 2,861,383
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

210

(Continued)
&AM LB SMEAMNE 1FUE
3EATAT BE E
1EAZT  3months or Over Over 5% E
Upto  less but over 3 months 1 year Over A3
20204124318 At 31 December 2020 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FIEIERER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
FITER Deposits from banks 1,805,393 1,701,134 4,098 - - 3,510,625
EPER Deposits from customers 127,709,392 49,122,533 11,907,828 2,713,224 - 191,452,977
FEEERENAR Trading liabilities 160,500 969,008 440,126 1,008 - 1,570,642
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,032,951 473,063 6,598,777 102,543 - 8,207,334
kEER Subordinated notes 43,361 - 2,063,648 1,962,136 - 4,069,145
HEER Lease liabilities 16,242 40,188 127,546 318,610 222,892 725,478
AtiafE Other liabilities 2,154,323 647,918 314,995 - 253,054 3,370,290
REER Total liabilities
(RBEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 132,922,162 52,953,844 21,457,018 5,097,521 475,946 212,906,491

FETARSR Derivative cash flow
REFEEEZ{TESRTA Derivative financial instruments settled

on net basis (16,257) 940 314 (554) 594 (14,963)
RERREE TESRTA Derivative financial instruments settled

on a gross basis
it ke Total outflow 11,706,176 21,479,924 29,343,852 3,977,676 1,256,574 67,764,202
IMABEE Total inflow (11,649,551) | |(21,399,229) | |(28,940,253) | | (2,188,269) (634,012) | [(64,811,314)

56,625 80,695 403,599 1,789,407 622,562 2,952,888
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3. UXEREE®
3.4 REBESEE @
4.4 BEBREFIER

TREFEATIER : Included in the table below are the following items:

. BERAGERTEFPEEREMRSE 2 ERRE . Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
(BERAEHEEABERIEGRIAZE amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
#)AR& HE) that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. ANER B RAGA A Z D RATHUS A & TH A9 R . The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
RRBZ N2 EHEENRRE & operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

PR ER B A B R IR RN B 5 2 B T . Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
(7

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BEEERRBIZEARERE - . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
150R 1F50E
No later than Z56F 5N E &t
2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 70,691,292 2,790,191 64,236 73,545,719
ER - ALK Guarantees, acceptances and other
Hi S E1RT financial facilities
~EREBRERE — Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 1,840,864 38,570 - 1,879,434
- REREEERE — Documentary and commercial letters of
credit 703,597 - - 703,597
BEBAAE Operating lease commitments 6,985 21,997 - 28,982
BAAGE Capital commitments 17,310 85,279 - 102,589
it Total 73,260,048 2,936,037 64,236 76,260,321
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3. UXEREE®
3.4 REBESEE @
3.44 BEERBFKIEH &)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1 EHR 1EE
No later than Z56 5F LA CH
2020124318 At 31 December 2020 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
BT Loan commitments 74,263,218 2,176,395 19,751 76,459,364
BR ALK Guarantees, acceptances and other
Hit S ERH financial facilities
—ERRERERE — Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 1,065,098 114,284 3,476 1,182,858
-RERBEERE — Documentary and commercial letters
of credit 846,898 - - 846,898
TR Operating lease commitments 9,304 19,649 - 28,953
BARAE Capital commitments 108,241 89,999 = 198,240
At Total 76,292,759 2,400,327 23,227 78,716,313

35 sRMEEREBEZAYE
(F) AFEZETE
ANHEXRNERES

TRERRASEA

BENGBEEARIEFIEF ZIEHIER - &
EERRMERKRERRZESEESRT
A7 bERRF - BEHERRE KRR
BYEXSEMMGERN(NER)BILE
17 MEEERTIESSRE - BEQFER

SRRz TEML -

ERTAZAFETERATHSERL TS
SEENFTERAETZAEFXSTHEERE
PRUER SRR BB 2 EBIE - T B
RAREZ A BSEKERGETAMG

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date
under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.
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B EREE @
EMEEREBBEZATE®@
() R FEZEE®

RemTEZ HREBSETHARSH - R
S BN TFRAR  EERFMEE
I - ARIEREEM S HRE LR
TH - NERMS 2 RE/AFERKKA
FZRBE - WARTEBRER - WEHE
EXeRBEAEABRELE  AEEK
RAEEZETEXFRA THRERRAT
BB -

fMem TAE 2 AIBRMIGREREEEE
15 AEEFREERERZR ZMER
EMETZESMIAZATE  BERER
ERIBEBRETEEER  c NERAZESR
TAZMERER  AEERSAREFER
FERE AT ERER (iR (a0« FE  [ER &)
M EEEE) MERIBREFERTAE
BKIE o FIAnA RIS A 2 A T ER R
BARKIE @R IRETE - REINESLRZ
AFE—BIBRRTRBEXRGE - i
BRZAFEIRGEEBREEAE - 40
Black-Scholest&7#! o

AEEEMAIFRELEAHGERRE - AU
BErECRBAERSEBAATEFEZH
REZHRE - WAREZEEREER
BEZEETR TEEeRAZFAREBLZ
Wit o WAREZEEEEWE - AEZE
BLHA AEEEEAMHZFREZE

8o

MEFE - ARGERFZERBBERZH
SR ABZNRAESER  EhLEFE
ZEERNTSERER -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has a
bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used
by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques and
standard option pricing models. In applying valuation techniques
for these financial instruments, the Group maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimises the
use of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of interest
-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is generally based on current forward rates and the
fair value of option contracts is derived using appropriate pricing
models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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3. UXEREE®
EMEEREBBEZATE®@
(Z) A FEZER

AEEER T RREEE A FERAIERE
RAABE2HERM C BEAERATE

KA AR

1 HREEXBBEREET ST &
BOREHRE) - XERNBERR S
P bz SRS MITAETA -

2 BEARPIFBEZRESN  HE
EX A EEER (BMER) @ (A
REEREH) WA BR 2 BUR - &R
MERRZESIRZITET RS
# o

3 BESAREBBAFRETHEL
MEBE(TABRR Z8IE) - AR
ABERAERBOTABRIETZ
Rl MBS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy

that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable

inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

35 SREEREBEZAFEH®E® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R FEZER@E) (b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BRATEFECEERAE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

REMAFETE Recurring fair value measurements
F1R P B3R &st
2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFEEEE Financial assets at fair value
AFABRNEREE through profit or loss 14,119 4,425,384 - 4,439,503
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments
RBIEEER®E Held for trading - 360,405 - 360,405
B R{EE Held for hedging - 260,651 - 260,651
AAEFTE B EZE Financial assets at fair value
FTAEME2E KRR through other comprehensive
TRIEE income
BB S Debt securities - 41,344,229 - 41,344,229
R EE S Equity securities 481 6,315 82,786 89,582
EATEFEZ Total assets measured at
BEAE fair value 14,600 46,396,984 82,786 46,494,370
AAYERT2 B E&E) Financial liabilities at fair value
SABRRNERAE through profit or loss —
held for trading
FHEEER® Debt securities - 1,511,927 - 1,511,927
PTEEmRmT A Derivative financial instruments
FHEEERR Held for trading - 315,959 - 315,959
B BEL Held for hedging - 1,109,406 - 1,109,406
BAFEFFEZBEARF  Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 2,937,292 - 2,937,292
ARERFIPRNEEZCREERIELTRE Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
mtEFREFRE - WESREERAT investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
BIR - EEABEM are stated at fair value which approximates the cost.
HZE2021F12A31H K2020F12 318 |- For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
FE - HEeREERB R M A E there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
HRATFESERPHE - FE2REIFH - & out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The

EEZ EBRE-KE S -

changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses.
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3. UXEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35 eMEEREBZAFE® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RFEZH = (b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BRATEFEZEERBE  (B) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

TEM AT ETTE@E Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)
FAR FoM E3K &5t
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFT= EEEE) Financial assets at fair value
AFABTENEMEE through profit or loss - 5,080,047 - 5,080,047
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
REEEASR Held for trading = 945,983 - 945,983
R FRESH Held for hedging - 189,831 - 189,831
AT BT = EHEE) Financial assets at fair value
T AE A 2 E U through other comprehensive
CREE income
BEEEH Debt securities - 41,715,318 - 41,715,318
M ES Equity securities 18,196 - 82,484 100,680
BATEFEZ Total assets measured at
BEAE fair value 18,196 47,931,179 82,484 48,031,859
AT ETEEHEE Financial liabilities at fair value
FAFABTmANESREE through profit or loss —
held for trading
HEEEAR Debt securities - 1,570,675 - 1,570,675
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments
FEEERZ Held for trading - 899,670 - 899,670
G RIEEH Held for hedging - 2,291,518 - 2,291,518
BAFEFEZ8ESE  Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 4,761,863 — 4,761,863
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii) Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and
other borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
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3. UXEREE®
35 LREEREGEZAFE®E
() KERFEGEZLHT A

(v) EBTHNEBESEECHT
MR EER

RARETHREZEETE - AR
A B2 B RIBERD 2 R AR
B/ S E 8 ARE T AR 3 A
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INEEIERR A B AR AT RN ST A Y
BREE - EAE 20214 &2020F 12 A31H
ZATELTEERER @ BRIATIN

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 except as follows:

BREE 1R EPE £33 AYE
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
SHEE Financial assets
AR BRAK AN 51 BR ) Financial assets at

SRIEE amortised cost 24,539,822 - 24,464,629 13,366 24,477,995
SHEE Financial liabilities
BREINGERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,589,717 - 6,589,883 - 6,589,883
KBRS Subordinated notes 4,128,446 - 4,193,099 - 4,193,099

REE ERE PRI E3 NEE
2020 12H31H At 31 December 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
SHEE Financial assets
AR BRAK N1 BR ) Financial assets at

SREE amortised cost 22,842,879 - 23,032,152 13,366 23,045,518
tHEE Financial liabilities
BT SE Certificates of deposit issued 8,125,802 - 8,137,099 - 8,137,099
&IEER Subordinated notes 3,828,458 = 3,840,512 = 3,840,512

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UXEREE®
3.6 EXREHE
AEBEREAZHIZA

+ HARKEEBEEENTERIEEE
RIBFTRE 2 AARHE

s REAKEREFREF L

o RERFRESEHMEHEEMNEAEE

REME - R

s BRBRAEAEMUAIBDEBEE -

AEBERETHRARCEREZSSEHLLH
FEEERIITEEEREESI2TE  BEER
SEzBEBRTMBRARZERATREREER
R2ER  BEFEREESERFRABMRTE
EVERL o

RBEBEEERT - KFRITAETS =(ELE
DRIREREE-—RER - —RERREERY

B ANHEE ERLE R o b = AL & 2 BB R A &
KEk5 Bl £4.5% © 6.0%5%8.0% @ W EHEE
SEREM - ATEDE2ERINEBTERTF
)CA-G-5F B BE BT I 7 ) 2 4 TE + RFTER
TAREEERTE ARG RIEE ST
B ANHRTE 2 BB 77 RN A SR T AR 7 R SR 1B A S B
REEEREEEERTEZERER © b5
AT ERITRE R L EEFHEAR RS
FHEEERZHTE - Bk - (ERABKEER
WENFTEEE R — D EERLE - HEER
BAEFNBHCERER RHEBIREE &
BB B REARIR L R E R3% o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

o To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed
by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for supervisory
purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, DSB is required to meet
three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier
1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-
G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar ||
capital requirement. In addition, DSB is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel llI
implementation and the required information is submitted to the HKMA
on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards, the minimum
Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R

219



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

220

3. UXEREE®
3.6 EXEE@

BINEREERREEABRARINZEEE
‘miﬁl—t MR IERR 2 R IEBR AR -
é%ﬁﬁ%‘%ﬁﬂﬂ R IRBEEBARZHARLE D
BRERBEERESERAZIMBEETREERE
ERNEEFRREMHEN(RITEER)RADZ
RABEZEEREEERRHER X ERETE
HERINEE - BERBERIMNABRERED B R
R bRt H AT EﬁEﬁH%EH[@Z*QEEE%ﬁQ
HRABMEHDEESER  BOEFRENEE

BERAER -

BREFABEABRZEANSGE  HEEBK
REA - REGHN - HhiEasE T A REAMEE
B (RITE(ER)RADE B EARBREGA R
BREERE -

AEEEEEERRAMSREER(DRMESE
B ETHERTRRBREBEEZRES([FHR
REEREEREHELNIEII 2L BEEE
B2 BB R SRR PR S ARTT S BPH B SR 1T
RIRIT(PE) 2 BAFRREREEEARZER -

R RRITRAFRIT(PE) D B[RRI E
BETERRESRFEZRAFER - B2
ERRERPIE R RITIA R BISRE & R E A
RIT(PE) ZARITEEBEEAREARER LR
B ANHE R 2 Lo R (BN E AR T B L) METUAE
B2 RIKIKF8% e

$§%*+¥3Eﬁ’?ﬁW% B AERE M E

B : B5RHEERERTES)Z2EATEE
ZHRTE ©
3.7 ZREEWK

AEBREFEEA ZFEA  MEEEKEHAR
BIE=F BRSRAEERTRAZE/MTA
EHDEREERE - WEAREFOFHEZE
B WNIIAREKE ZHBEHRE - WERBA 3
BASERGEREREE 2 AR -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts for
credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet exposures
are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each exposure
and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating assigned by
an external credit assessment institution recognised by the HKMA or
other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account
the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures
are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and risk-
weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give
rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable in
all material respects.

(@) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the
ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

J Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality of
the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions in relation
to future benefits to be generated from the intangible assets, including
future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the acquired entities,
or discount rates which could be caused by major changes in market
conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying
values of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than
their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be
recognised.

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based
on a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2021, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$726 million (2020:
HK$531 million).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

J If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

. If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

3 Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.
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5. ARATHBMRRERRFEEE 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
AN B B AR R 2R Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12831H
As at 31 December
2021 2020
EREEE Non-current assets
HBARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 7,015,931 7,065,616
LABE SRR AT BR R & BB B Financial assets at amortised cost 8,635 8,635
7,024,566 7,074,251
MENEE Current assets
E—EH B AR 2 RITE AR Bank balances with a subsidiary 35,284 894,272
U BR R B A AR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 468 636
NG Amounts due from subsidiaries 860,552 19,923
896,304 914,831
mENEE Current liabilities
iR B A M EMIRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 2,132 1,715
AN EPNIERE] Amounts due to subsidiaries 425,235 472,478
427,367 474,193
FRBEE Net current assets 468,937 440,638
7,493,503 7,514,889
E= EQUITY
e Share capital 6,894,438 6,894,438
HivFE i (BERERF) () Other reserves (including retained earnings) Note (a) 599,065 620,451
RS Total equity 7,493,503 7,514,889
EE=2 202293 A31 Bt R IZ M o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.
EX(=):3 HEHE Gary Pak-Ling Wang Hon-Hing Wong
EFE EFBAEHE Director Managing Director
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5. ZARATMBMRRERRFESE @) 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

T

(F) AATREED

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(a)  Reserve movement of the Company

BURAE A A

R HER

Rz B

Provision for

REEF equity-settled

Retained  share-based &ar
Earnings compensation Total
202051 H1H At 1 January 2020 623,303 3,393 626,696
FEHF Profit for the year 597,407 - 597,407
VARG HE S S DARR 19 A 5T Provision for equity-settled share-based
RN B compensation - 821 821
20194 RERAL & 2019 final dividend (492,013) = (492,013)
20204 HARR B 2020 interim dividend (112,460) - (112,460)
20204128318 At 31 December 2020 616,237 4,214 620,451
202151 H1H At 1 January 2021 616,237 4,214 620,451
FEHF Profit for the year 427,974 - 427,974
LARRAE 2 15 PARR () A Ll Provision for equity-settled share-based
RN 2 B compensation - 480 480
2020F KREARR B 2020 final dividend (309,265) - (309,265)
2021 FH IR B 2021 interim dividend (140,575) - (140,575)
2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 594,371 4,694 599,065
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC members,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
is determined on the basis of personal banking, corporate banking,
treasury and global markets and overseas banking business. Operating
performances are analysed by business activities for local banking
business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

. Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance
to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

o Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding
of the Group.

. Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
corporate banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. EEIERFT@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
BZE2021F12831HILFEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
BERER
TEER
AR PEBT  Treasury BMRIT EI5H
Personal  Corporate  and Global ~ Overseas Hith Inter- @5t
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHSMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,637,016 1,194,462 747,645 494,999 (129,846) - 3944276
SERISMA /(i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 991,658 208,776 69,980 133,646 39,358 (3,502) 1,439,916
BN/ (i) Total operating income/(expenses) 2,628,674 1,403,238 817,625 628,645 (90,488) (3,502) 5,384,192
BES Operating expenses (1,724,721) (520,859) (206,615) (537,204) (35,302) 3502  (3,021,199)
NRGEERBESSE Operating profit/(loss) before
Al EEaEn/ (58 credit impairment losses 903,953 882,379 611,010 91,441 (125,790) - 2,362,993
REREEE Credit impairment losses (178,654)  (126,488) (15,475) (51,283) (1,443) - (373,343)
MREERERR Operating profit/(loss) after credit
{2 2BET/ (FB) impairment losses 725,299 755,891 505,535 40,158 (127,233) - 1,989,650
HERES kA Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
BEEERHEATE value adjustment of investment
BEF(ER) s properties and other fixed assets (2,326) (1,034) (16) (29) 629 - (2,776)
HENATEFEEHEE  Net gain on disposal of financial
SIAEMEARGENSE  assets atfair value through other
BE2FE comprehensive income - - 4,993 - - - 4,993
N e Share of results of an associate - - - 697,954 - - 697,954
SENAIREZHESE  Impaiment loss on the investment in
an associate - - - (726,000) - - (726,000)
RRLERENTRE Loss on deemed disposal of
d 5 investment in an associate - - - (31,202) - - (31,202)
BRI EE2EE  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,060 - 33,060
BRHANaT/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 722973 754,857 600,512 (19,119) (93,544) - 1,965,679
A /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (119,336) (124,561) (98,914) (34,927) 69,615 - (308,123)
FERA/(BB) Profit/(loss) for the year 603,637 630,206 501,508 (54,046) (23,929) - 1,657,556
HE2021512A31H L5 For the year ended
31 December 2021
WEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 76,645 15,500 8,070 59,364 234,947 - 394,526
120214124318 At 31 December 2021
PEEE Segment assets 56,651,282 70,473,506 80,791,990 38,977,756 7,440,156 (5,355,500) 248,979,190
PEAR Segment liabilities 114,634,275 49,555,753 12,777,503 30,182,181 16,373,475  (5,355,500) 218,167,687
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE R
e
EASRT BEET Treasury BINRT EIER
Personal  Corporate  and Global ~ Overseas Hify Inter- et
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,584,254 1,124,905 669,395 486,130 (168,882) - 3,695,802
FFIBMA /(i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 1,008,393 194,070 197,802 117,623 36,116 (996) 1,553,008
SRR/ (ki) Total operating income/(expenses) 259,647 1318975 867,197 603753  (132,766) (996) 5,248,810
HET Operating expenses (1,630,344)  (504,889)  (185.689)  (507,522) (5,488) 99 (2,832,936
MR EEREREZ Operating profit/(loss) before credit
2ERA/(BB) impairment losses 962,303 814,086 681,508 96,231 (138,254) - 2,415,874
REREEE Credit impairment losses (342,197) (151,822 (20,102)  (131,768) (1,079) - (646,968)
REERESER Operating profit/(loss) after credit
BERA/ (BR) impairment losses 620,106 662,264 661,406 (35537)  (139,333) - 1768906
LEREMERED Net loss on disposal and fair value
BEdERHEATE adjustment of investment properties
REFER and other fixed assets (2,902) - - (68) (84,297) - (87,267)
HENATEIEEE Net gain on disposal of financial
EHt AR 2ENE assets at fair value through other
MEBEE L F R comprehensive income - - 13,448 - - - 13,448
EEZAEEE Impairment loss on goodwill = (98,239) = - - - (98,239)
il < Share of results of an associate = = = 710,370 = = 710,370
BENEIREZRERR  Impairment loss on the investment
in an associate - - - (531,000) - - (531,000)
[E(SAREHBEZEE  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,190 - 33,190
BitaneF/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 617,204 564,025 674,854 143,765 (190,440 - 1,809,408
BE() /E Taxation (expenses)lcredit (101,353)  (110,166)  (111,368) (19.217) 25,706 - (316,398)
FERA/(FB) Profit/(loss) for the year 515,851 453,859 563,486 124,548 (164,734) - 1493010
EZ2020F12A31ALLFE  For the year ended 31 December 2020
HEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 74976 14,965 7,135 56,312 227,363 - 380,751
2020612 431H At 31 December 2020
NEEE Segment assets 53,965,730 66,782,037 84,562,197 38,200,663 8,820,927  (5,025,331) 247,306,223
NERR Segment liabilities 112,788,974 46,684,129 16,220,032 29,899,300  17,383932  (5,025,331) 217,951,036
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6. EEIERFT@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
BEER Geographical information
[@ 15 5 18 & R IR R A & B M M &= P IR AR Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
% BHEER S KRB BRNEEMEZPTE entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
# o B E2021F % 2020F 12 A1 B ILFE * BE and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
PESN - 4 B — B SR 5k R 45 0 TS A 10% 3 A 2021 and 2020, no single country or geographical segment other than
ZAREBZEE  BF EBRATBHAREFH Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
operating income, or profit before taxation.
7. FEFBWA 7. NET INTEREST INCOME
2021 2020
FIE WA Interest income
e RIERITH A5 Cash and balances with banks 148,094 267,438
BHRE Investments in securities 1,000,982 1,360,604
BHEERREMIRE Advances and other accounts 4,021,184 4,582,387
5,170,260 6,210,429
FEZH Interest expense
RTINS BPER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,066,428 2,189,791
B 21T FERE Certificates of deposit issued 43,284 126,852
& 181ERS Subordinated notes 103,308 137,815
HEBE(HF28(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 28(b)) 9,654 10,574
Hth Others 3,310 49,595
1,225,984 2,514,627
FMEWABE Included within interest income
—RHEEERABNBELFR — Trading securities and financial
AFERTEBEZSET A assets at fair value through profit
BaremEE or loss 2,508 53,199
— AR A= B EEEA — Financial assets at fair value
Efn 2 HEW =D /A E through other comprehensive
income 465,524 850,703
— DABERRR AN BIBR M S B E B — Financial assets at amortised cost 4,702,228 5,306,527
5,170,260 6,210,429
FEZHEE Included within interest expense
—RUAAFEFFE B EEBA — Financial liabilities not at fair value
BaremaE through profit or loss 1,225,008 2,471,800
RELE20214F K2020F 12 A31 B L F[E » W ERE For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no interest
REBEEEZHEWA - income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. ERBBERMAZWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2021 2020
REERASEA Fee and commission income
RAAFEFTZA RSB A Fee and commission income from
BalemEEREEL financial assets and liabilities not at
AR5 2 KA WA fair value through profit or loss
—EEEBZREERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 170,138 170,451
—E5mE — Trade finance 80,739 78,218
—ERAFR — Credit card 276,816 255,002
H RS E KA WA Other fee and commission income
—BHKLLE A — Securities brokerage 215,359 192,396
—(REREHE R H Aty — Insurance distribution and others 218,564 284,293
—ERE RV EEERSS — Retail investment and wealth
management services 303,980 269,056
—RTTRRIG B N FES — Bank services and handling fees 70,770 65,587
— H ARG & — Other fees 70,456 66,779
1,406,822 1,381,782
REERAEXH Fee and commission expense
RAAFETEBEHEES T A Fee and commission expense from
BalemEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
fri% B RAE X H fair value through profit or loss
—FEERAS — Handling fees and commission 201,717 189,919
—EfEMER — Other fees paid 7,682 10,062
209,399 199,981

AEERE=TFRHTE X EEEFERK
BEERY - BEXUEFRBHNEERNZEAT
DRELTEEENFVHFRERA

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to

these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in

these financial statements.

RFRITEREBR AR 2021 FF]R
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9. NET TRADING INCOME

2021 2020
SNEE BT Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 186,064 285,844
BFEEERERNES 2F(EB) ke Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (23) 14,133
FEEERSMITE TR 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 4,241 2,443
RAATHEE P EEemI A Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
F(ER), M instruments subject to fair value
hedge (7,310) 895
LAAF(ERT2 B HEBR ABEA Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments
ST AZF(EE) Wt at fair value through profit or loss (3,975) 7,120
178,997 310,435
10. HAnzEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
RERTFFE 2 AR TAE 2 EEZEETA Dividend income from investments
Hft 2B ammERIE TAKRE 2 REKA in equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
held at the end of the year
— EmiRE — Listed investments 1,323 1,612
—JEETMIRE — Unlisted investments 13,920 4,330
wEYE 2 HES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 17,831 22,965
HAbEB WA Other rental income 16,470 15,445
HAth Others 13,952 16,420
63,496 60,772
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11, &EXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020
& BB K A8 A1 52 i Employee compensation and benefit
expenses
—HE R EMAEER — Salaries and other staff costs 1,873,517 1,880,090
—BUNRB) — R G EIGE(R)) — Government grant — Employment
Support Scheme (Note (a)) - (65,686)
— LARR 1D R BT R 2 st 1R 2 (f95E44) — Provision for share-based
compensation charged (Note 44) 480 821
—Rkex it —AEHRFEEIGE(2)) — Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (Note (b)) 97,749 103,690
TEREMETEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TEEE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEMEES W — Rental of premises (Note 28(b)) 3,804 3,307
—Hit — Others 229,980 211,227
e Depreciation
— 7B R E M E A E (M FE28(F)) — Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 28(a)) 202,160 186,078
—BlEARzYE(E28(2)) — Right-of-use properties (Note 28(b)) 192,366 194,673
BE RIEEEE S Advertising and promotion costs 75,791 77,138
ENR - XA REE Printing, stationery and postage 45,869 52,426
AN & Auditors’ remuneration 10,982 9,661
Hth Others 288,501 179,511
3,021,199 2,832,936
G Note:

() 120205 - AEEFRE T HABBRFRIZAE
A SHERRRRE FEI(TTRAZEIFED
A - ZEESAMNR/LEREMBIE - A
REFREERERNET - RIF[RIE IFHEIR
G AEBASREXRSHMHAMEE - U

HEBHUANINEREETE -

(a) In 2020, the Group applied for funding support from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the
Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be
made redundant. Under the terms of the ESS, the Group is restricted from
making redundancies during the period covered by the cash subsidy and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to its employees.
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11. EEXH@m)

it ()

(2) BREEmRRSFE

11.

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

In respect of the Group’s mandatory provident fund schemes

2021 2020
FAARHRS BERELU SR Forfeited contributions utilised to
reduce the Group’s contribution
during the year 27,276 14,764
B EF AR AT AR R B R e 2R Forfeited contributions available for
reducing future contributions at the
year end 2,288 1,594
AR S B R E i e BB AT I In respect of the other defined contribution schemes of the Group
2021 2020
FAARHIRES BERAU SR Forfeited contributions utilised to
reduce the Group’s contribution
during the year 1,538 1,058
B EF AR AT AR R B2 A2 IR Forfeited contributions available for
reducing future contributions at the
year end 221 186
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12. EEM=

EREE N AEHIFEIBIGR AR (EFEMZE
BINE)ER - ARRESFRRUEHNRE IS KE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company in respect of the
period of directorship disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Hong

WA Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation were set out below:
ARFRRA
R zAR
REEA MR35
e Incentive HEHRM BB
BER bonuses WX ZEZfR
BYFE  accruedin (1)  Employer's
Salary,  respectof Share-based  contribution |t
ESf¢  allowances services compensation to retirement (3%2)
Directors’ and benefits  rendered in payment benefit Total
BZ2021F12A31ALEE  Yearended 31 December 2021 Fee in kind the year (Note 1) schemes (Note 2)
Ed:3 Chairman
FTERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,946 14,175 - - 20,621
UEE Executive directors
FRRIE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,718 3,250 - - 11,968
TREtE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 6,144 10,000 - 492 16,636
RRERE Nicholas John Mayhew - 5,964 13,350 - 497 19,811
BUFUTES Independent non-executive directors
RERRE Robert Tsai-To Sz 555 - - - - 555
REFIEE Seng-Lee Chan 670 - - - - 670
RREE Yuen-Tin Ng 87 - - - - 87
ERERE David Wai-Hung Tam 500 - - - - 500
B RE Blair Chilton Pickerell 567 - - - - 567
ait Total 2,879 26,772 40,775 - 989 71,415
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12. EEMemw 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

R Note:

1. AR 1EAER B 2 SN BEERFERARETT 1. Share-based compensation payment includes both equity-settled and
RN LARRAE % B S SR AR A TR & 2 A 2 A cash-settled share based payment on the share options exercised or
RDIVERBER 2 T o AR 2 ARG 1ER cancelled during the year. For equity-settled share based compensations,
EMT A 2HmM - ERRANEE R RREREITE it represents the cost borne by the Group recognised on the exercise of
REREENI L - MABREI N ZARNBIER the share options while for cash-settled share based compensation, it
BT 2B - B RITEEE R 5 represents the cash payment, being the difference between the exercise
B AT5EZ 5 B AR 8RN 2 FHU(E © price and the average closing price of the shares of the Company for the

5 trading days immediately preceding the date of cancellation of the share
options.

2. ERZERRTARNARRENBRAABIZES & 2. For directors who are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries,
HZEMNB AR N Z2EME R EE LS 24RE remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
HEETA total remuneration set out above.

3. REFRNIRFELER - WERREEEBEE 3. No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
AIEARS REREHK  HHAARRRAEFR— the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
A RARRIZEZEESMBEEERBREAR a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
7 (20207 : f#) ° indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year

(2020: Nil).

4. REE2021F12831 B LFE © WERERES 4. No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in respect
REE AR RS E M B A R E4A B 2 H i hR of directors’ other services in connection with management of the affairs
TR AT S ST AHE T EL A B (20204 : £%) © of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year ended 31

December 2021 (2020: Nil).
5. RER - WELNEIEEY 2 RESENTES 5. No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

Fo I L IR BN E B ARG T (R 56 =75 S A S 32 A
EfaI (B (20204F : &) -

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2020: Nil).
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12. EEMew

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

BEFARE
FRi 2 TR
RENEA R A
Hé - Incentive AfaN  RNEREE
2ER bonuses WX ZEEHER
EMFE  accruedin (#1)  Employers
Salary, respectof  Share-based  contribution Bt
EEWE  allowances services compensation to retirement (2)
Directors”  andbenefits  rendered in payment benefit Total
HZ2020F12A31ALFE Year ended 31 December 2020 Fee in kind the year (Note 1) schemes (Note 2)
£33 Chairman
B i David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,946 15,750 - - 22,196
#iEs Executive directors
FRREE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) = 8,718 3,008 = = 11,726
ThRERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 6,144 11,900 - 492 18,536
BB Nicholas John Mayhew - 5,964 11,900 - 497 18,361
BUHTES Independent non-executive directors
LERLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 475 - - - - 475
BRESHI% Seng-Lee Chan 600 - - - = 600
RRALLE Yuen-Tin Ng 580 - - - - 580
RhERE Blair Chiton Pickerell 532 - - - - 532
Gl Total 2,687 26,772 42,558 . 909 73,006

KIBITEBBR AR 2021 FF 5|

237



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

238

13. BREMEZ5UAL

13. THE EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

(i) ME4Ect (i) The aggregate emoluments
2021 2020

e FBE  BYNE&EAMRRL Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 34,634 34,634
ERAE N AERE R S Performance-related bonus 56,575 56,646

RGBT E 2 B EHK Employer’s contribution to retirement

benefit schemes 1,511 1,511
92,720 92,791

(i) SMUHRSWAATHMESAERMT :

(ii) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
are within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
2021 2020
BITHKS
11,500,000 — 12,000,000 1 1
16,500,001 — 17,000,000 1 -
18,000,001 — 18,500,000 - 1
18,500,001 — 19,000,000 - 1
19,500,001 — 20,000,000 1 -
20,500,001 — 21,000,000 1 -
21,500,001 — 22,000,000 - 1
22,000,001 — 22,500,000 - 1
23,500,001 — 24,000,000 1 -
5 5

w5 S WA Z ALA » B447(2020%F : 4
i) BES - HIAENESHEE B EE Lt 2K
T12/4 o

RER - ARG E W E RS &S W AA LA
B - ERIMASINBEARER 2 SRERERAE -

Litsfi FREBBAALTOME BIEBHEEZFE
PR BRI TN AN R [ 2 S4B HOTRAR AR BITEAL ©

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2020: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’
emoluments have been included in Note 12 above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered
and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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14. EEREFE

14. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2021 2020
I (B R 8 2 %) New allowances net of allowance
releases 461,635 745,612
W [E] 81 B 88 2 SR8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (88,292) (98,644)
373,343 646,968
BT : Attributable to:
—RFEER — Advances to customers 394,119 603,479
—HEMemEE — Other financial assets 14,590 36,162
— BRI K B TS AR — Loan commitments and financial
guarantees (35,366) 7,327
373,343 646,968
15. i@ 15. TAXATION

B V8 TS B T 1R BR G 0 {5 FE AR A5 i A A =
16.5% (20204 : 16.5% ) IR B EEH - BINEL R TD
2 EIMb ST R TR F R AN 5 B A8 & S 753
B2 BABEGH -

BLERBERRAREEREREZR - WEHRZS
HBRBER BN REEN THREFTER 25
KR BIER

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2021 2020
RNEERIA Current income tax:
—BBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 282,406 283,017
—/BINEIE — Overseas taxation 41,567 22,793
— IR FE B 2 B — Over-provision in prior years (10,978) (218)
IRAERIE (FI5ES5) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 35):
— AR EREERESE REM — Origination and reversal of timing
differences (4,872) 10,806
I8 Taxation 308,123 316,398
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15. BiE @) 15. TAXATION (continued)
REBRTADE I 2 BIIBE RN ERE & A B ANk The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
IR EGTE 2 IRREFRAN T amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:
2021 2020
R A Vo A Profit before taxation 1,965,679 1,809,408
BB BFERE16.5%:TH 2 HiH Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% 324,337 298,552
THIRAEIRR Tax effects of:
HBR z TR Different taxation rates in other
countries 26,699 14,761
BRI ZBA Income not subject to taxation (30,608) (25,099)
TREHR A2 Expenses not deductible 131,657 157,898
IBEER 2R BE QAT R Results of associates and jointly
HEEHIER2EE controlled entities reported
net of tax (120,617) (122,687)
REMEEW PR ZIER Items recorded in other
comprehensive income (12,366) (6,809)
ERBRTRERRONEER Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses 1) -
PRI B R 2 B Over-provision in prior years (10,978) (218)
Fi18 Taxation 308,123 316,398
16. KRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
EIEF AR S - FARE @AR0.10%5 T Interim dividend paid of HK$0.10
(20204 : 0.08/87T) (2020: HK$0.08) per ordinary share 140,575 112,460
FORAHARR S - BT @AR0.248 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.24
(20204 : 0.22/87T) (2020: HK$0.22) per ordinary share 337,381 309,265
477,956 421,725
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17. BRER 17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2021 2020
(&) (L)
(HK$) (HK$)
FRRAF Earnings per share
ERREE Basic and diluted 1.18 1.06

ERERNBINREGREFTRT THIEER AR
1,657,556,000 & 7T ( 2020 & : 1,493,126,000
BIL) RFEABBEITEBRRG 2 NETHEE
1,405,752,132 3% (20204 : 1,405,752,132f% ) 5t
H o FARNFRZ RITEERIRME £ L BIRAR D
Z I AR o

18. RERAERTHER

The calculation of basic earnings per share and fully dilutive earnings
per share is based on earnings of HK$1,657,556,000 (2020:
HK$1,493,126,000) and the weighted average number of 1,405,752,132
(2020: 1,405,752,132) ordinary shares in issue during the year. The
share options outstanding during the year and at year end have no
dilutive effect on the weighted average number of ordinary shares.

18. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2021 2020
RE RERITHEE Cash and balances with banks 3,019,169 4,559,911
BRI 2 HRTE AR Money at call and short notice 8,989,779 10,703,672

Mk REER

—BEERA

12,008,948 15,263,583
Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (1,195) (1,131)

12,007,753 15,262,452

RHRITEBERR AT 2021 FF R

241



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. BEEERAENESRUQFEFE 19. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

BEHSHTTABSNERMEE AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
FEEERBRNES Trading securities:
BEES Debt securities:
—&ELET — Listed in Hong Kong 12,285 30,089
—3LEm — Unlisted 4,413,099 5,049,958

4,425,384 5,080,047

LAAFERF 2 B HE B A Financial assets at fair value through
BaierEE profit or loss:
REES Investment funds:
—&ELEm — Listed in Hong Kong 14,119 =
14,119 -
a5t Total 4,439,503 5,080,047
PREEBEFAR Included within debt securities are:
—BIERKR(ZRELER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 2,304,220 482,991
—HAi B ERE — Other treasury bills 2,108,879 4,566,967
—BTES — Government bonds 12,285 30,089
4,425,384 5,080,047
REITHN By issuers:
— SRR R ERTT — Central governments and central
banks 4,425,384 5,080,047
—1b% — Corporate entities 14,119 =
4,439,503 5,080,047
M2021F K 202012 A31H LRI ER As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no certificates of
FERBFRE ° deposit held included in the above balances.
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20. fTEE£mT A

R2021F12 1B R BB ITAETEAHNEZEREA

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

SREQANFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2021 were as follows:
an/
EHOE BF¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =R
amount Assets Liabilities
1) BIEEERGZITETER 1) Derivatives held for trading
B) SMEDTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RHRBESLN Forward and futures contracts 73,866,338 305,938 (266,003)
B8 A\ ROt o NG B Currency options purchased
and written 8,296,314 5,106 (5,275)
I G T Ri2 HR Cross currency interest rate swaps 404,909 4,734 (4,491)
&) FIELTAET A b) Interest rate derivatives
|2 4 HR Interest rate swaps 4,953,683 25,773 (21,335)
A) #a 14 1TAET A ¢) Equity derivatives
BB\ Ko e e 1 A Equity options purchased
and written 472,050 18,854 (18,855)
HIEEERGZITAET R Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(afB)Eas held for trading 87,993,294 360,405 (315,959)
2) FHEEHRABRZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEEARNFEL #ZPT£ETA  a) Derivatives designated as
fair value hedges
Fl| =t 5 Interest rate swaps 49,477,473 260,651  (1,109,406)
FHEE RSB 2 ITET A Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(afk)as held for hedging 49,477,473 260,651  (1,109,406)
BERRZITESHIA Total recognised derivative financial
e/ (afk)as assets/(liabilities) 137,470,767 621,056  (1,425,365)
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20. fTEEMIAE®@m 20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
2020512 A1 AR EHI 2 STET AR N REAR The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQANFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2020 were as follows:
&t/
ZHELHE ~¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8E
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HIEBERBZITETER 1) Derivatives held for trading
B) SMEDTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RHRBESLN Forward and futures contracts 63,546,714 857,935 (815,861)
B8 A\ ROt ) NG B Currency options purchased
and written 9,794,008 16,681 (16,661)
7)) FIFELTET A b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl| 2=t 5 Interest rate swaps 5,149,560 48,888 (44,691)
A) w07 ET A ¢) Equity derivatives
8 A B i e | HA R Equity options purchased
and written 742,444 22,479 (22,457)
FEEBERBZITETAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
B/ (AfE)EE held for trading 79,232,726 945,983 (899,670)
2) HEYIRRBRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEFEANFESE #2974 TA  a) Derivatives designated as fair
value hedges
=4 5 Interest rate swaps 41,984,638 189,831  (2,291,518)
FHESR AR ZOTET A Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/(BE)E:T for hedging 41,984,638 189,831  (2,291,518)
EHERZITESMIA Total recognised derivative financial assets/
BE/(AB)AF (liabilities) 121,217,364 1,135,814  (3,191,188)
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21. REEFKHEMIRE

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2021 2020

BEEREE Gross advances to customers 144,313,339 137,577,384
M RELERE Less: impairment allowances

—PEER1 — Stage 1 (469,184) (486,431)

—PEER2 — Stage 2 (354,154) (208,225)

—fEER3 — Stage 3 (547,609)  (556,508)

(1,370,947) (1,251,164)

142,942,392 136,326,220

BEHER Trade bills 4,253,850 3,791,124
kR : RELER Less: impairment allowances

—F&ERA — Stage 1 (7,347) (8,848)

—fEER2 — Stage 2 - (11)

(7,347) (8,859)

4,246,503 3,782,265

Hth & 2= (F43£30) Other assets (Note 30) 5,294,452 6,758,655
Mk O REZERE Less: impairment allowances

—PEERA — Stage 1 (11,298) (10,287)

—PEER2 — Stage 2 (489) (547)

—PEER3 — Stage 3 (13,771) (11,849)

(25,558) (22,683)

5,268,894 6,735,972

ZEEREEMIKE Advances and other accounts 152,457,789 146,844,457
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21, REESFREMERE @

(B) BEEEFERRBRZEBEHEEK
BRINE :

EFERRBNEEREREMERAAREMR
ERFMzEBaNMEETERS ZRBREF
o ANREABRAREERRERERE - U@\
EBEZLBEE -

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

2021 2020
KEERENRES 2 EWAREEE - Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1FEARN Not later than 1 year 1,088,890 1,670,776
16 LA EZE545F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,721,515 2,012,941
5L E Later than 5 years 419,025 373,460

REHE 2 RMEZBE WA

BMEMEREFHR

BMEMEREFR IO

1R
1F LA EE5F

5FAE

R20214F K2020F12 A31H » LalMRiEFHER
BB R G EERTIGER -

M2021F12A31H  AEB EFREEER
FEARE s E R E MR IER M EFEE T A
51,224,000/% 7T (20204 : 109,308,000/87T) °

3,229,430 4,057,177

Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (195,201) (206,327)

Net investment in finance leases 3,034,229 3,850,850

The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 1,010,973 1,569,945
Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 1,640,033 1,929,074
Later than 5 years 383,223 351,831

3,034,229 3,850,850

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2021 of the Group
amounted to HK$51,224,000 (2020: HK$109,308,000).

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22, LIAFEFERH

SETAHMEME 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

WEHNEMEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
BIEEH Debt securities:
—&HBLEm — Listed in Hong Kong 16,676,005 14,072,696
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 16,208,367 16,750,257
—3E — Unlisted 8,459,857 10,892,365
41,344,229 41,715,318
SRR Equity securities:
—&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 481 18,196
—3 kM — Unlisted 89,101 82,484
89,582 100,680
&t Total 41,433,811 41,815,998
BREEERESFNE Included within debt securities are:
—RBENFRE — Certificates of deposit held 489,774 344,348
—BHEZR(ZERREER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 2,439,243 3,551,262
—Hi B EZER — Other treasury bills 5,459,898 6,026,161
—BUNES — Government bonds 708,540 123,458
— HERES — Other debt securities 32,246,774 31,670,089

SUATE B EBBEHA
Hip 2 EkEHSMEE

BEITHBEN O T

EEES
— R RBF A RIRTT

— DB
— BT RE S R

—f%
Rt

R MES
—%

41,344,229 41,715,318

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

Debt securities:

— Central governments and central

banks 7,987,115 9,700,881
— Public sector entities 789,164 134,779
— Banks and other financial

institutions 6,792,715 7,582,172
— Corporate entities 25,775,160 24,297,411
— Others 75 75

41,344,229 41,715,318

Equity securities:
— Corporate entities 89,582 100,680

41,433,811 41,815,998
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22, UAFEFEEHEZFHTAHMEE
WS EmEE @

ETFUARFEFEREEEH AL MEE WS
WEZMETERENFARRRERZERREE
mMEHeE - RERIEBERE REZAFEAR
17,741,000;% 7t (2020 : 163,220,000/%8 7T ) & H
& Z5HE518 433,619,000 7T (2020 : 251Uk
%5 413,853,000/87T) °

23. DB AIIRNEREE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been sold during the year
due to risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments at
the date of derecognition was HK$17,741,000 (2020: HK$163,220,000)
and its cumulative loss on disposal was HK$33,619,000 (2020:
cumulative gain of HK$13,853,000).

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

0k - RIEER

— P& ER1

BREBBESFRNE
—RHAENFRE
—BEBERE
—BFES
— B A ERE ST

ABEERRX AT IR S B E A
WEBITHIBER DTN

— RREAT B RERTT

— MBI
— SRR A S RS

—%
—Hit

2021 2020
BBES Debt securities:
—&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 9,748,480 8,751,193
—EBLIN ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,869,613 9,297,525
—JELTm — Unlisted 4,951,845 4,818,383

24,569,938 22,867,101

Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (30,116) (24,222)

Total 24,539,822 22,842,879

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 1,537,364 1,745,601
— Treasury bills 921,707 1,308,909
— Government bonds 242,800 248,395
— Other debt securities 21,868,067 19,564,196

24,569,938 22,867,101

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
— Central governments and

central banks 1,164,507 1,557,304
— Public sector entities 529,658 293,469
— Banks and other financial

institutions 7,880,487 7,681,769
— Corporate entities 14,984,197 13,323,470
— Others 11,089 11,089

24,569,938 22,867,101

248 DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. BMEQTRE

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2021 2020

BhEEFE Share of net assets 6,878,328 6,199,304
kS Goodwill 344,623 344,623
7,222,951 6,543,927

MR : BE%EM Less: impairment allowances (2,992,000) (2,266,000)
4,230,951 4,277,927

12A31HZ AFE Fair value at 31 December 2,045,244 2,224,088

AEBEREERITZRENAFENZ2EEER
TTHR% 722021 6 522020 F 48 2 Wi (8 o

20214 K 2020F 12 A31 B 2Bt & AR Z T EE
BT -

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongqging shown
above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of
BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2021 and 2020.

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

R R B it B FEXK FriEER B ot
Z1B Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of
Name and operation activities interest in ownership
2021 2020
BERIT FREE A RALANE #R1T
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 14.66%
2021 2020
1H1H8 At 1 January 4,277,927 3,888,775
(SRR LS Share of results, net of tax 697,954 710,370
FEMBRT R IR A B Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax 44,040 382
B E Dividend received (206,338) (118,387)
BRI Impairment loss charged (726,000) (531,000)
RELE 2 &8 Loss on deemed disposal (31,202) -
BE 3 22 2 [ EL A SR B Exchange differences and other
adjustments 174,570 327,787
12H31H At 31 December 4,230,951 4,277,927

FraE 2 EARR AR KBIE - MARBRR AL E
BRITABRTES -

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on
the basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation
in policy-making process.
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24, BEQATRE @
() EERIT2RENKER
BEERITZEETET2ZHHA12A318 -

HZE2021F12A31 B IEFEHHE - AEEERS
FERITDAMNEE20215F128318 (E121E A
ZITERR Z FELE -

HZE2020F12A31HILFEHH - AEEERS
ERRITHEEN2019F g —FEH E20205F9
AB0RE=FRN12ME A 2 %#%& - LAEERTA
MEBEEESENAEE2020F E M BHEE H
¥4 - WEF &FH2020F10 71 H E20204F 12
A3BBEZEARG REENUBEHE o

PA = B 58 2R R B A AN 52 B 7R 25 152021 4 Y B 75 3R
LR ERRITEE2021F12 318 ILFERE
BB INAHR o

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements
announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group by combining the results attributable to the 12
months’ period from the last quarter of 2019 to the first three quarters
ended 30 September 2020 which were published by BOCQ up to the
date that the 2020 annual financial statements of the Group were
approved by the Board of Directors for issue, and taking into account
the financial effect of significant transactions or events in the period
from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The above changes are made because the results of BOCQ for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are publicly available by the time these
2021 financial statements of the Group are issued.
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24, BEQTRE @
() EEFRTZREMKEER @)

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

202145 2020%F
12A31H 9H30H
At At
31 December 30 September
2021 2020
BEERTZEEEERARER Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
R e RERRIRITH LR Cash and balances with central banks 45,612,239 43,885,655
FEMCE M 3R1T & & R iHE Due from other banks and financial
institutions 54,969,190 66,139,034
BEERNBHR Loans and advances to customers 376,276,117 306,971,588
Hth S mEE Other financial assets 268,688,065 221,986,438
H&E Other assets 13,365,802 12,754,357
BESET Total assets 758,911,413 651,737,072
e R ERTT Due to central banks 62,080,178 96,750,478
BREER - BIRITRE S RS T8 Customer deposits, and amounts due to
banks and other financial institutions 431,920,104 370,884,276
Ht S pam Other financial liabilities 198,505,347 126,469,718
HinEfs Other liabilities 6,023,426 7,846,215
BEEE Total liabilities 698,529,055 601,950,687
Emast Total equity 60,382,358 49,786,385
Nk BRITZEBEK Less: Preferred shares issued (6,019,400)  (5,850,240)
HBR < R IEGIRERE Less: Non-controlling interests (2,419,756)  (2,084,751)
L BRI R B A 5t Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 51,943,202 41,851,394
BEERITZREERA Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total
HURENIRTTAR A BTSRRI shareholders’ equity to the carrying
ZEREEERR amount in DSB’s consolidated financial
statements
RFTRITIEE RS A5 DSB’s share of total shareholders’ equity 6,855,608 6,137,403
o WER 2 R R AT EREE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment
at acquisition 367,343 406,524
Bk : BE Less: Impairment (2,992,000) (2,266,000)
BN Carrying amount 4,230,951 4,277,927
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24, BEQRRE@ 24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
() EERITZREMEER @) (a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)
20215 20205
12A31H 6H30H
At At
31 December 30 June
2021 2020
EIRERRITZ HARBERAE Share of BOCQ'’s contingent liabilities and
commitments 9,919,288 8,897,871
20215 20195
1818 10A1H
220215 F£20204F
12A31H 9H30H
1E128 8 11218 A
12 months 12 months
from from
1 January 1 October
2021 to 2019 to
31 December 30 September
2021 2020
EERITZEERERER Selected income statement information of
BOCQ
SFRBUA Net interest income 13,994,140 11,571,802
FREERASBA Net fee and commission income 927,758 1,563,508
EXRBEER Loan impairment charges (6,155,105)  (4,995,097)
B Tax expense (1,488,054)  (1,300,839)
FREEA Profit for the year 5,863,517 5,011,428
Hih 2 H e Other comprehensive income 372,671 (39,250)
FHEEERE Total comprehensive income 6,236,188 4,972,178
BURERRITIRE Dividend received from BOCQ 206,338 118,387
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24, BEQTRE @

(2) REZBERNHAKRR2021 FRE 2R
=1

R2021F12A318 * AEEEEERITZKEZ
ATFHEBRREEEARLISE At - AEEFE
IS ERITZIE 2 REEETRE R AT
R EER-

BMEARLHAGEERBE(EREER)ME
EZEBERTAIWNESBNZIRE ZRHE - £
REENRBEEE[HEZEERRITARFFRE
RIS - REEREERITHHMERZER
REBEFER ZFERRROAERTFEE  EH
RRBREFRRFE - BERAREREEHEZ
BERE T2 Z RN R TI5EE 2 EERITRA
FXATEE ©

ETEREEFEASEZKREZIRESHE
B ARBERMARBRAREETSEHLE
ERARARRFEEREEI2HAE - HET
AEHARRE B EERTT 2 RHEN R EIRR
EERITARKAFBEZPHRERMSRE
EHEEBRTZAKRERETETEETEEE
B2 -

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 8 years.
On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable
amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable amount
of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation, with the
carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses discounted
cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of BOCQ’s
earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated probable
exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and its net
asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate applied
to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s cost of
equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.
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24, BEQTRE @

(Z) BEZRERRRA2021 FHEBZH
B (m)

NIEEEE TstEH2021 512 A1 BEAEE
/4,231,000,000/8 7T * & FTERA 2 EE KR U0

BRBIRE L%

BEILK

FIUAME SR TR 8 2 R B B B (Y
AR

TREAEEERRAEMAENERBRRZE
BHEREENTE - UTHERREREEY
BE-EABRRZIBENGRE - ZR—HAF
B/ T BB T AT RO R) — RS PR 3R

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the combinations of scenarios underlying
our calculated VIU of HK$4,231 million as at 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

E2025F KR HIAN F6%E7%
EIRTFR5%
Ranging from 6% — 7% in

Annual profit growth rate

the near term up to 2025, and 5%
per annum thereafter

Dividend payout ratio 29.3%
Discount rate 13.34%
Price-to-book ratio (“PB ratio”) for 0.66
estimation of potential future
recovery value under different

holding periods

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
assumptions which management considers as reasonable and possible.
The following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to
the change of each key assumption. It is possible that more than one
favourable and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

BhlpwEe FRMES
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
H# Tk
Increase  fERER Decrease  fHAERE
(BEB&T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) in ViU ViU in VIU ViU
FEEFERE Annual profit growth rate +1.0% 76 4307 1.0% (76) 4,155
B BB b R Dividend payout ratio N/A N/A N/A -6.3% (99) 4132
GRS Discount rate -2528h 54 4285  +2552E (54) 4177
-25 bps +25 bps
LS PB ratio +HE 50 4,281 1% (50) 4,181
+1 pt -1 pt
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24, BEQTRE @

(Z) BEZRERRRA2021 FHEBZH
B (m)

BRIEHZE2021F12A31B 2RI EEZE LillE
AR SRS AR RS 2 Al Be 0 B B = B T 2
T2iHh B ER 2 FEREEREERAE
HEAE(ERIEHE2020612831BEERZE
FTRERTR) MG ERZEMEE 2 TR E <58
HAMEREREE - NEER2021F12A31H 2k
METERIRENR  RELTEFRAEERY
A] Bl & BT R E R IR AV 2 20205F12 A31 H
2 2xHR{ERT22,266,000,000/% T4 2 BRE(E -
KB RRE S %8 5726,000,000/5 7T © Atk © 7
2021 4F 5 [ W 5R 7 18 Rl B 18 1% 726,000,000 % 7T
PAFAR 2% & 2 (B{EZ=4,231,000,00075 7T °

SERHBTZEAT B RWEAEZIREZ
RBAEF  ERFRITUWRMEERTZEERE
BRON o (HEZIREEFZ RN m R VIR E KA
21,213,000,000/8 7T © ZKE ZBERTZER
HERITZ BAFBILE -

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2021 which takes into account the sensitivity of the key
assumptions shown above and the effects of possible interaction of
these assumptions, the recoverable amount, as determined by the
VIU calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as of 31
December 2020) and valuation assumptions, remained below the
carrying amount. The latest impairment test performed by the Group for
the position as at 31 December 2021 concludes that the recoverable
amount, based on the VIU calculation, is assessed as lower than the
carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative impairment allowance
made up to 31 December 2020 of HK$2,266 million, by HK$726 million.
As a result, an additional impairment charge of HK$726 million was
recognised in the year of 2021 to reduce the value of the investment to
HK$4,231 million.

The calculation of DSB’s capital adequacy does not include the retained
earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend received
by DSB. Provided that the investment continues to be held at or above
the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213 million, impairment
made on the investment does not affect DSB’s capital adequacy.
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25. HEEZEHERERE 25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2021 2020
JE LT © B A Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEMG YRR Share of post-acquisition reserves 94,373 85,553
114,373 105,553
720214 22020412 A 31 B &9 £ A5 | & 82 10 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2021
N and 2020:
LR
2Bt
Percentage
i it 26 FTEERRKE I of effective
£ Place of Principal activities and interest in
Name incorporation place of operation ownership
IREFERR AR AR 6 WEER - B
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREHMEFEAIR AR 6 RIERER - B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
REESRMARAF B RIERE B
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
AEEERBIERBRA R 2 S AME AKX The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
TIRITIRA - MRSt AR AR KRR S HE DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
RARTREHERBR AT 2 ZEMB AR Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of
Bank Consortium Holding Limited.
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26. MIBRE

26. SUBSIDIARIES

2021128318  NAFZHIBARIAT The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021:
FriERBBE DL
Percentage of ERFEERRE
shares held Particulars of
NGRS FTEER S B BHiE B#  issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation  Directly Indirectly share capital
RHRITAR AT RAT BB
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HK$6,200,000,000
LBH(1931) AR A BEE 5
MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
RIABEBR LA BEX BB
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
REZR KBRS
South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
RARIT(RE) BRAR] AT HEE A RAFNE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 100% RMB1,200,000,000
EFIEERITRGER AR RIT !
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100%  MOP225,000,000
RETRBER AR AR R BB
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong = 100% HK$500,000
REFEARAA RI2ANRRTS BB
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
REZER e
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 100% HK$9,998
B BB
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 100% HK$1
REZR BB
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong — 100% HK$1
RHTE AR A F EHEE e
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000
mEE BB
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
MERE REEUHS
CWL Prosper Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
CRENB(EE)BRAF BEX B
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
ZEIBEERAR & BB
OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong = 100% HK$1,000
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26. MIBAT @

26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

P& Rt B 2 ke

Percentage of ER(TEBERBA
shares held Particulars of
NCIES FEEK St 26 BHiE i  issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation  Directly Indirectly share capital
HEREBRAA WMERE B
Vanishing Border Investment Services Property investment Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
Limited
WERE RERUHS
Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
MEKRE HBRIAHS
Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
HNBEEEERAR BEE AB
Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
HEEBERAR mE% BB
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
WMEKRE HERTHS
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 100% Us$2
MERE RBRIHS
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1

BRARITERARNZARBRAFIN -
B REG BTN R RIS BB A SN J7 M A
3 B EEE M Z AR BB AL o

BRAFIRIT (R D BR AR - BPIRERTAD
BRRR K EMFIBREEEAINEMK N AF

SN B RRIIERBLE

RFER17 (P E) AR A B H2008F7 AEH H A
AL - EARE A EE A R LM B 20548
BEBSRMAZES

AIERAR(EhAE -
&) -

b

Hong Kong incorporated private company.

all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

People’s Republic of China.

Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company,
all the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above,

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the
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27. BEREFREE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BOER  EBFBE
B EBREE BREE
B EE Core  Customer 5k
B2  Contract deposit relationship Trade &t
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
(DN Cost
2021F1B1E K& At 1 January 2021 and
2021%12A31H 31 December 2021 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
LFERE B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2021F1 1B K At 1 January 2021 and
2021412 A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 26,499 80,583 40,777 - 246,098
AREE Carrying value
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703
BOER  BPEE
&4 EREE - EREE
BVEE Core  Customer ki
e Contract deposit  relationship Trade A%
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
B AR Cost
2020F1A1H & At 1 January 2020 and
202012 A31H 31 December 2020 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
2TERE Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
20201 A 1H At 1 January 2020 - 26,499 80,583 40,777 - 147,859
BRI Impairment charge 98,239 - = = = 98,239
202012 A31H 31 December 2020 98,239 26,499 80,583 40,777 - 246,098
IRMEE Carrying value
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703

BEERABRZEVEERREREHN  BOUER
FRGETL A ERARTERREZE N F5E
ZPAI RIS o BN AERERBRY 55 A

AERER IR R ARAINER RIERER IR

EEREANEERSRE—BNELD

HES
EERBIREELE
BHEBELHIMT -

S ([BREEESENMN]) -

r=
124

]

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life
and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
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27. BERELEE®@® 27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Bt P
Hong Kong Macau
EERTT &l ASB4T BIMRAT
Corporate Personal Overseas &%

Banking Banking Banking Total
PR Cost
2021F1A18B & At 1 January 2021 and

202112 A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
Z2IERE Accumulated impairment
2021F1 18 & At 1 January 2021 and
202112 A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 - - 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2021512H31H At 31 December 2021 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
6 e
Hong Kong Macau
EERIT & ASRTT TBINRTT
Corporate Personal Overseas A5

Banking Banking Banking Total
B Cost
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690
B OEGE) Reclassification (Note) (98,239) 98,239 = =
202012H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RIERE Accumulated impairment
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 - - - -
JREFTHE Impairment charge 98,239 = = 98,239
2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 = = 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
5 20205 - ERFEBBEANEE RERKS 2 Note: During 2020, part of the goodwill under Corporate Banking was transferred

B MHREERT TORED HEEEART to Personal Banking following the change in the management and
e reporting line of a business unit.
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27. BEREFEE®
() BEREREE ZRBERR

HEESFERENR  HHEBBRTE 2 EAE
EBMEEZHRCELEMIDIRSE - ZiTEME
REEEEIREABM&EE - ASFT 812 FRR
S KERTEASFEREBNEEFERE
2%HEBIEBEF AR EKE - Z5FtElmmEER
AEBEREUBBRECELBEN EBRZER
FATERIEE B N RSB (R 1B 2 AT S P AR 51 o BT FE R
ZBRIR R TR B A K B 2 B AR AN e T 2K
11.12% (20204 : 9.97%) °

RS FETZREARTERASRBRRBEEL
R 52 3%% il A HE B K LA HA 5+ 21 2 T8ORI Uk
A BHERIZESFLAMEZ KR - FTEA ZBIRER
11.12%(2020F : 9.97%) JIEHERAEE 2 B
B DN S92 -

AN E T RS R R AR EE 1R o 722020
F ERESEASGN]EREEENERE
B SEEEABRTHEERTRERERED
2 B E A BB (U B R R R (B 4 45598,239,000 %

JG °

28. TERHMBEEEE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth
rate of net profit, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate
after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed by the
Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses and
associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the relevant
CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate over
the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital at 11.12% (2020: 9.97%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the
fifth year. The discount rate of 11.12% (2020: 9.97%) used is based on
the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

No impairment loss on goodwill and trade name were identified in the
year. During 2020, the Senior Management had decided to recognise
a goodwill impairment charge of HK$98,239,000 for the CGU of the
equipment finance business of Corporate Banking given that the
recoverable amount of the equipment finance business under this CGU
is lower than the carrying value.

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2021 2020

1TEE 83 MaktE Premises, furniture and equipment 2,371,415 2,343,232
EREEE Right-of-use assets 582,382 662,807
2,953,797 3,006,039
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28. TERHMEETEE @ 28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
() 17E - KM KREE (a) Premises, furniture and equipment
XN
RERAE
Furniture,
equipment
iTE  and motor =H
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2020F12 31 H ILFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,522,413 420,327 1,942,740
g Additions 8,618 128,492 137,110
k== Disposals - (3,163) (3,163)
FES L (1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (59,339) (126,739) (186,078)
PERER Exchange difference 6,956 4177 11,133
BB EMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 441,490 - 441,490
FEREEFE Closing net book amount 1,920,138 423,094 2,343,232
202012 H31H At 31 December 2020
PR Cost 2,459,130 1,219,746 3,678,876
2RENE Accumulated depreciation (538,992) (796,652)  (1,335,644)
REVFE Net book amount 1,920,138 423,094 2,343,232
HZE2021F12A31HLFE Year ended 31 December 2021
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,920,138 423,094 2,343,232
g Additions - 232,902 232,902
& Disposals - (7,627) (7,627)
FES L (1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (64,889) (137,271) (202,160)
ERER Exchange difference 3,249 1,819 5,068
FRIEREFE Closing net book amount 1,858,498 512,917 2,371,415
2021412H31H At 31 December 2021
BRAR Cost 2,462,927 1,387,523 3,850,450
ZIETE Accumulated depreciation (604,429) (874,606) (1,479,035)
BREFE Net book amount 1,858,498 512,917 2,371,415
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28. TERHMEEEE®
() 17 - BRMRRZRE@

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZEREFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
2021 2020
skl Leaseholds
ERBRA 2R EELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(F£102504F 2 fH) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,482,567 1,534,554
BB AINEA 2 R HITEAY Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10ZE504F 2 &) term lease (between 10-50 years) 375,931 385,584
1,858,498 1,920,138
(2) H& (b) Leases

I ERAREERABAZHERHRER

(i) ERRUBRIEZZH

MR ERAEREEZ2EIIRMT

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

20215 2020F
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
EREEE Right-of-use assets
LJES Properties 582,382 662,807
HESE Lease liabilities (included in
(BEEHMIRE RFER) other accounts and accruals) 614,940 692,594

N FHRFEANHEFETREEES
110,438,0007% 7T (20204F : 439,890,000/%
JL) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year
were HK$110,438,000 (2020: HK$439,890,000).
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28. TERHMEEEE®

(2) HE®w
(i) BRRNEHRZEH
WRBRABBHEE 2 € FIIRIT :

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(b) Leases (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the income statement

The income statement shows the following amounts relating to

leases:
B E
Note 2021 2020
ERAREEZEXL Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
E Properties 11 192,366 194,673
FEZH(BEENESZE —HESE) Interest expense (included in
interest expense — lease
liabilities) 7 9,654 10,574
FHARPHERREEEEZ S H Expense relating to short-term
(BFEETEREMEEEES L - leases and low-value assets
NEEE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 3,804 3,307

2201 FAERAMECRERLRER
199,800,000/ 7T (20204 : 193,822,000/%8
T ©

(iii) FEEHEEZERANTAR

AEBEHEERBYE o 120204 2021
F HEAR—MRA1FERZIF 2 EF R
B RTREFT 40 T 71 (iv)Ek il 2 JE =38 124 -

RERRERBRAZEREEZHH TR
R - R ARAEEC EEZHE
RiEzI) - HEARIL TR IERZL - 18
EZEEBMFTRENERE RS EAEER
1 o

(iv) ZERRAIZEE

ERMEIDEERBRBREARERITZET
YEHENR - RAKEEERNLERERZ
BEMS  EAZFEATERRELSER
B RZBISE CERRRIDRERRA
R EmIER HAATTEE ©

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$199,800,000
(2020: HK$193,822,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2020 and
2021, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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29. REYE

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2021 2020

1H1H

BN BRREMERTE

— BB RENEZATE

At 1 January

Reclassification from investment
properties to premises

682,909 1,208,639

— Fair value of investment properties

reclassified = (441,490)
#ig Additions 68,806 -
SHEAFEKE(EE) Fair value gains/(losses) on
revaluation 4,636 (84,240)
12H31H At 31 December 756,351 682,909
MNERFFE 2 BEEBRRERHR Unrealised gains or losses recognised
ERERZRBR SN ER in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
—NEER(EiE) — Fair value gains/(losses) 4,636 (84,240)
TEYE 2RI FEBE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2021 2020
TR Leaseholds
EREBFA 2R EHELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10250F 2 fH) lease (between 10-50 years) 633,148 554,738
TEBBLAINEE 2 HAFEAY Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(10250 2 fH) term lease (between 10-50 years) 123,203 128,171
756,351 682,909
STEREMECZATE Fair value measurement of investment properties

REER20214 22020F 12 431 H BIR B WM
BEETT T EM - W HAEBZEFTREM
FE-—ARFEEM(HERZEER)BRAF AN
RES K H NZIEMZERE — KR
CRPDBRAFABMNRI 2 REMEREEL
BHESWARBEEETEATTLRE Z U

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in

Macau.
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29. REWEm)
STEREVMEZAFE@®

MSEEAMFE Z(GEER - HEFBMBRE
LZRBAIPFA A FEFEIF 2 AFEEE —BK
EEtARTSRHEENS 2 &= MEENYER

WEYEUKRBO NI ERZ BB ERMGERE
AEATE EROBREWATAE MRS
EHIFE13AFEAFE)P A FESRNEIR
Al o

T EREMENEER HP—HFERER
K RS - Hb B R E R A = NEF R AN RAE
BFTREE R SHE BALEE - FTEE ZBEN TS
F750R1,93878 70 (20204F : 1,928 L) E&FFH
1R 116,00078 7T (20204F : 114,000/ 7T) ° $EEE
ERNTRESBIRENEZ AT ETEFHE
EBEDLLARED - R2ZINA ©

MAREBEECTZEEAHEZREY X
BERZHERFRAREBEECREERZEY
E2 X HBEETERKAZBENET - 2FEF
EEMSHSKIEARMEARE - Bhi5KasRKE
TERERAIR -

WARBEEELIDENAIER 28U

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the
unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual factors
such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from HK$1,938
(2020: HK$1,928) to HK$116,000 (2020: HK$114,000) per square
foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of the investment properties by the same percentage and
vice versa.

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using the
income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted on the
basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance for outgoings
and reversionary income potential. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rental and inversely correlated to the
market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fRET % FABEZ2HE HE

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range

REMHE WARBEEETE i UEs 2.0%Z3.1%
(BB W) (20204 : 2.0%%2.85%)

Investment properties Income capitalisation Market yields 2.0% to 3.1%
approach (reversionary yield) (2020: 2.0% to 2.85%)

Dk ¥ FR28EBITEITE T

(20204F : FF 5 R63EITE100757T)

Market rental HK$28 to HK$97 per square foot

(2020: HK$63 to HK$100 per square foot)
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30. HtEE 30. OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
FEMERIE K TR IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 4,290,314 5,668,809
FEFTHA Accrued income 865,354 886,868
Hth Others 138,784 202,978
5,294,452 6,758,655
3. HFEERARNEAER 31. TRADING LIABILITIES
2021 2020
ThZE BB R & EEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 1,511,927 1,570,675
32. EFEXR 32. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2021 2020
& BT R R R IF 5K Demand deposits and current accounts ~ 48,596,901 53,696,905
EEER Savings deposits 41,505,926 40,948,121
TFEH BN HTER Time, call and notice deposits 106,031,738 95,694,781
196,134,565 190,339,807

WHEA DS ABTARER R R 25
13,304,000/ 7T (20204F : 18,222,000/ 7T) E 2
SR E 8RB TR DA -

BRES BAREBREIRIN  AAEEMETFER
BERERTER

Deposits of HK$13,304,000 (2020: HK$18,222,000) held as collateral
for irrevocable commitments under import letters of credit were reported

under other accounts and accruals.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.
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33. ERITHNERE

33. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2021 2020
TR R R T AR AN RAE N B At amortised cost with fair value
AR RTIAR hedge adjustments
(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,489,717 1,561,697
REERR AT BR At amortised cost 100,000 6,564,105

20214 20204 N + AN B R B 1A R I
EEAMERTERESUNATFEFEAHE
FTAER o

RNEBMAEMEEHTFERBLPEIRAE DERN
7)< BB LA _E BT %1 2 BR M & /= 11,000,000 7% 7T
(20204 : 1£1,000,000/87T) °

34. BEREBK

6,589,717 8,125,802

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$11 million
higher (2020: HK$1 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

34. SUBORDINATED NOTES

2021 2020
R R R T AB R A A A FE At amortised cost with fair value
PRI hedge adjustments
(for hedging interest rate risk):
250,000,000 7C72 2026 4F £I| B US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBERBEGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (a)) - 1,964,475
225,000,000 7T 7420294 2 HAHY US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EEREERGE(Z)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (b)) 1,810,359 1,863,983
300,000,000 7T 742031 4 I B &) US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBERBGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (c)) 2,318,087 -

1220214 &2020F A + A5 B KRG R VIR FER R
HEEEMBEESAAATEFEEHEESH:TA

N
B o

4,128,446 3,828,458

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(2)

(R

BESKW@®

It Jh K SR 1T R 2016 F 11 A 30 A & 17 2
250,000,000 TTEBERER H ([ BAERXSA])
EARGAEERBENMHERE A -REARN
10 BAE B2 EER ([ ER ) CEEFEBCRTT
E(BER)RBDZIER) - WEEH 20265
11 A30H 88 - B2 M FEE H /A2021F11 A30
A - KFIRTTER2021 F 2 HER L EE -

It Jh K iR 1T R 2019 F 1 A 15 B B 17 2
225,000,000 T EB AR H TR FEEE
RIBENTMEFRE A —RERNI0FHELRE
&R ([E&H ) (BETFEB(RITE(BEAR)RADZ
1630 o HEESAER20290F1 A 15 A FHf - =2
MHEE HA2024F1 A15H - HBETHEHEE
MIEER - FEAS%  BEFMNE—IK - Hig -
HEBAERELHEERED  TENFEEE
Rl AE R SFHEEBEE S SR N255%F &
BEEASERBAME  RFRITAUEEE
BEBATA GEBD ) ER - AFRITIHE E—EH
RERTTR] M A K HR A 40 18 R A B E F S 4R i
BAETIRITRIFENF S AERAZBFIS AR

It Jh K R 1T R 2021 F11 A2 B %17 2
300,000,000 TTEBBER ST EHEFEEE
RIBE N R E A —RERNI0FHELERE
&R ([EH ) (BBTFEB(RITE(EAR)RADZ
163 » HEESAER2031F11 A2R FH] - B2
MHEE HA2026F11 A2H - HBETHEHERE
MEER - FEA3%  FEFMNE—K - Hik -
HEBAEEREHEERER  TENFEEE
R AERSFHEEBEES SR M195%F - &
BEEASERBEAE  KRFRITAUEREE
BEBATAE GEBD ) ER - AFRITHEE—EH
BRERATET N A RImHI A A1 R 75 10 B i 7 Sk iR
BAETIRITRIFENF S AEREZBFIS AR -

AEBENSREEHIPEHZANEND S
£R8 DA _E P %Il 2 B {8 {K.35,000,000 7% 7T (2020
F : {£146,000,000/5 7T ) °

34.

Note:

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 30
November 2016 (the “Notes”), which were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes had a maturity date on 30
November 2026 with an optional redemption date falling on 30 November
2021. DSB had fully repaid the Notes in 2021.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 January 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 January 2024. Interest at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes
will mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling
on 2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$35 million

lower (2020: HK$146 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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35. IEIERIIE
EERIEEER B ENEERAELGAERITE

B[] — T IS R I 5 P T o HEH 2 & F A0
T~

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2021 2020
BT IHEE Deferred income tax assets 120,418 124,680
RIERIBBE Deferred income tax liabilities (17,915) (14,561)

EEHREERBBEREBERER ZABER R
Bl S 2 FaET B DT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2021 2020
REIHEE Deferred income tax assets:
—Al{fE12 i A& e 2 IR ETR IR & — Deferred income tax assets to
be recovered after more than
12 months 271,743 255,871
BELEHIEBE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EfE12 [H AR EE ZEERIBAE — Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more than
12 months (169,240) (145,752)
102,503 110,119
RIETITEAR B REFHAT The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
2021 2020
1H18 At 1 January 110,119 94,657
U BRRF BB (X H) Tax credited/(charged) to the
(FH5E15) income statement (Note 15) 4,872 (10,806)
RiEZERAFIE (), /Bl Tax (charged)/credited to equity
(Bt7E39) (Note 39) (17,362) 21,426
ME N ER Exchange difference 4,874 4,842
12H31H At 31 December 102,503 110,119

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. EFERLIE @) 35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
EERBEERABRAFEZES - TRER The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
HRBOEEEE T H 2 AT ¢ year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
BEEBEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
IR
EEREE B
Impairment REHAM
allowances Deferred RESM
and expenses Investment &5t
provisions and others revaluation Total
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 196,787 61,071 — 257,858
PURESBR B () Credited/(charged) to the income
statement 5,057 (11,886) - (6,829)
EHER Exchange difference 3,023 1,819 - 4,842
202012 H31H & At 31 December 2020 and
20211 A1H 1 January 2021 204,867 51,004 - 255,871
PURESBR B () Credited/(charged) to the income
statement 12,417 (1,701) - 10,716
FARE 5 B 7 [0 8% Credited to equity - - 282 282
EHER Exchange difference 1,255 3,619 - 4,874
2021%12HA31H At 31 December 2021 218,539 52,922 282 271,743
EESEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
EBIEITE REWEEM
Accelerated Investment RESM
Bs tax properties Investment Sinh
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 14,843 83,877 7,602 56,879 163,201
R AR A (Credited)/charged to
(E#), S the income statement (7,117) 11,862 (768) = 3,977
RiEzmERAS Charged/(credited) to equity
(EI#) 1 - - (21,427) (21,426)
2020F12A31H & At 31 December 2020 and
20211 H1H 1 January 2021 7,727 95,739 6,834 35,452 145,752
PR A Charged/(credited) to the
S (E) income statement 3,726 2,490 (372) - 5,844
RIEIR A Charged to equity - - - 17,644 17,644
2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 11,453 98,229 6,462 53,096 169,240
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35. IEIERIE @)
TNt Y ERRERRRA (), /B8 2 EERIE

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is
as follows:

2021 2020
IR 2 N TERFE Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— AT EFTEBHEZEA — financial assets at fair value
Hofth 2 W ok 1O & AR 2E (PIYEES9) through other comprehensive
income (Note 39) (17,362) 21,426

36. BREEQBZ&EER

A BIOR S R B 5 ER E B2 7 — R
SR TR P 2 BHHFINT

36. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions are
balances with group companies arising from transactions conducted on
normal commercial terms:

2021 2020
EES Rl Nl o Balances from the holding company
BEERREMEKRE Advances and other accounts 591 580
BEEXR Deposits from customers 108,433 136,753
EMER B Rk Other accounts and accruals 31 36
ER[E R B AR 2 gk Balances from fellow subsidiaries
FEERREMEKRE Advances and other accounts 6,710 5,532
BEEX Deposits from customers 1,104,419 301,709
EMER B kiR Other accounts and accruals 5,481 4,308
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37. HAREERARE
() BAXAE

MK12A31BERB AIDRIRRER 2 BEE KiE
AEIEBEZERFEMT ¢

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2021 2020

EROBERERERZHAX

(2) FEESE

AEBEERBERIIMFERETEFPZERMIA
BREBEREEERBRINESEENT

Expenditure contracted but

not provided for 102,589 198,240

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

EHEE

Contract amount
2021 2020
BEEREERES Direct credit substitutes 1,383,242 645,720
HIZX ZMER 2 SRR B Transaction-related contingencies 496,192 537,138
HIEE 5 MR 2 SR TE B Trade-related contingencies 703,597 846,898

AR BB T N ETR ST B AN 2 Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 69,241,096 72,035,740
A Other commitments 4,304,623 4,423,624
76,128,750 78,489,120

EERR IR

Credit risk weighted amount

2021 2020
A BB SR Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,454,143 1,574,554

EERBRINESETIREGRITE(BAR) R

s
=5 o
Al 7

The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.
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37. AREBRAE®

(R) EFERZEE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

2021 2020
EERZFHEEERAREER Trading assets and financial
SETEIER BEER investments pledged to
secure liabilities 2,593,024 3,077,937
—ErR RO — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,518,732 1,506,126
ERzEESE Amount of liabilities secured 2,585,362 3,123,207
—Hr RO S — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,510,862 1,551,207

ERIIREEERAWEEMR B EREREE
RZEE - ZFRZREFREFNEMRRZ S
(BIER S MR E E U REA R LB f4s
B2 IR PR ) IGETT -

(T) EEHEEAE

IARKEZ ABRR/EEA - BTIABUEMELE
HEMmRARR Y 2 RERE M RAETELLT -

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions
are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralized transactions including repurchase agreements, and
include assets pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate
settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases
are as follows:

2021 2020

1F AR Within 1 year 14,584 16,180
1226 Between 1 and 2 years 3,721 11,521
25 3F Between 2 and 3 years 891 839
19,196 28,540

EoN - ANEBEEAETA - BE1K20214F £ 20204
12A31 BB TIHARBZAE - BEZEHE
M & A 2 T & 5R 4B KB A 5T /528,982,000 7T
(20204 : 28,953,000/ 7T) °

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 that have not yet commenced.
The aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$28,982,000 (2020: HK$28,953,000).
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38. IRA&

EER  ERORAERA:

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

38. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
R R e R
Number Share Number Share
of shares capital of shares capital

1A1BKk12A31R

BB N E R 201455 A27 B AN SRR MRt &
([ZRAR#ERTE]) - BARIRIERTEIEITLAK -
2017 (20204 : 2017 ) R #E LA R #E 1,500,000 %
(20204 : 1,500,000/%) N2 B - BET 4G
EHTFNESERERAITEAE - BaTalFBE
F2021F12 8318 IE © 513 (20204 : 519 ) FRAK
AR R%300,0000% (2020 : 300,000/ ) A2 & B
B RKEENH -

RENREERSRITRA B RBEBIRE B
BZRBEDARRBRMBBEEHNT -

At 1 January and 31 December

1,405,752,132 6,894,438  1,405,752,132 6,894,438

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 27 May
2014 (the “Scheme”), 20 (2020: 20) options to subscribe for 1,500,000
shares (2020: 1,500,000 shares) of the Company had been granted to
certain directors and senior executives of the Group since the inception
of the Scheme. Up to 31 December 2021 and since the inception of the
Scheme, 5 (2020: 5) options to subscribe for 300,000 shares (2020:
300,000 shares) of the Company have lapsed or expired.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
options under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives
during the year are as follows:

RIREF RO ER
Number of shares
in the options

2021 2020
1H1H At 1 January 1,200,000 1,500,000
REART Granted during the year - -
RERTTHE - BUBBKRN Exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year - (300,000)
12H31H At 31 December 1,200,000 1,200,000
P12 831 B{IRETE 2 RSSO - Particulars of the outstanding options under the Scheme as at 31
December are as follows:
AREPROEE
RBREHE Number of shares
Number of options in the options
RFARITEE Date of grant and exercise price 2021 2020 2021 2020

201854 261 © &R1TH(E
FAZ18.2478 7T

26 April 2018, at an exercise price of
HK$18.24 per share

15 15 1,200,000 1,200,000
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39. f#fE 39. RESERVES
NRGRER RERF
EERRE REERERE Bz RE (&)
GaRE Premises  Investment EiffE ~RfE%E  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation  Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General  Share-hased Earnings Ait
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
02151518 At1 January 2021 (220,986) 210,120 335,848 18,199 700,254 4210 20,439,221 21,546,866
DFEMEIMARIERE  Fairvalue gain realised and transferred to income
WIATEEREED statement upon disposal of debt instruments at fair
SRR ES value through other comprehensive income upon
TERERREHE derecognition
W% - - (4,993) - - - - (4,993)
HATEEEEEGIA Net change i fair value of debt instruments at fair
Ht2ENENEETIAL value through other comprehensive income
NFEESES - - 69,682 - - - - 69,682
[E(ERIES S ST ARBRBENT  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
ZEpREYS accounted for using the equity method - - 44,040 - - - - 44,040
WATEEEEESIA Net change i fair value of equity instruments at
E2ENGENERETE?  fairvalue through other comprehensive income
ATEESES - - (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
FAEMRESHZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements in investment
(Fiz35) revaluation reserve (Note 35) - - (17,362) - - - - (17,362)
HATEEEEEGIHA Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
2 ENENERTAL of debt instruments at fair value through other
BREEEERED T comprehensive income - - 7,388 - - - - 7,388
BIERETAZEERR Distribution payment of addtional equity instruments - - - - - - (41,328) (41,328)
BERIRRIHRRD Exchange differences arising on translation of the
EizR financial statements of foreign entities - - - 207,165 - - - 207,165
IR - EFTARM Reclassffication of net charge in fair value of
INEERERES RN equity instruments at fair value through other
H2AAEOERETAZ  comprehensive income upon derecognition
NFEESES - - 33,619 - - - (33,619) -
DARES MR A/EAEREM  Provision for equity-setiled share-based
ZBERAMEE compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 480 - 480
FRER Profitfor the year - - - - - - 1,657,556 1,657,556
0ERERS 2020 final dividend - - - - - - (309,265) (309,265)
201 EhERS 2021 interim dividend - - - - - - (140,575) (140,575)
2021512531H At 31 December 2021 (220,986) 210,120 467,046 225,364 700,254 4,690 21,571,990 23,018,478
HZE12B31HILFEE
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
BERNREEMNAZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
BURKHEAR S, B IR RS paid included in retained earnings
(Hi5E16) (Note 16) 337,381 309,265
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39. f@E®@

T

RHITRITRHEBEMBITANEEFRET A ERGRDE
M MEERAT A RAERERE - ERZEER
(st RORPIREERT AR RIT(FE) I ANEE
BIRITEGHIMABEEERB NI AMEERE %
EERBRRAURETERZEHESE - BERBZE
HERBLLE FETHN - WERIMERFE TR o

2021612 A31H + AFIRTTE 87 432,194,000/ 7T
(20204 : 502,278,000/ 7T ) 2 & FIEREE LA E
HESRE —REE  SEBRERESREBEFNFRIEE -

39. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS in the
form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve, which also covers BCM and
DSB China, is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision purposes.
The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed
to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through
equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2021, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$432,194,000 (2020: HK$502,278,000) first against its consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against its
consolidated retained earnings.
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39. fEfE@ 39. RESERVES (continued)
AR RER (RERH
EEfGE RASHGR it (&)
etk Premises  Investment Bk —fR&E  Resenvefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings it
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
202051518 At 1 January 2020 (220,986) 210,120 415,027 (369,739) 700,254 3,393 19,578,333 20,376,402
DFEMEINAREIERE  Fairvalue gain realised and transferred to income
WIATEEREED statement upon disposal of debt instruments at fair
AR ZENENER value through other comprehensive income upon
TERERREHE derecognition
Wit - - (13,448) - - - - (13.448)
Rt EHBAA SR Reserve release upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - (26) - - - (26)
HATEEEEEGIA Net change n fair value of debt instruments at
A2 ENENERTAL fair value through other comprehensive income
ATEESFE - - (78722) - - - - (78,722)
FE(ERIER ST ARBRBENT  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
ZEpREYS accounted for using the equity method - - 382 - - - - 382
HATEEEEEGIA Net change i fair value of equity instruments at
Et2ENENEEETE  fairvalue through other comprehensive income
ATEESFE - - (1,387) - - - - (1,387)
FAEMREEHZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements in investment
(Fizk35) revaluation reserve (Note 35) - - 21426 - - - - 21426
HATEZEEESIA Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
A2 EREHERTIAL of debt instruments at fair valug through other
RREEEEREDFE comprehensive income - - 6,423 - - - - 6,423
BIERETAZEERA Distribution payment of addtional equity instruments - - - - - - (41,266) (41,266)
BERIRRIHRRD Exchange differences arising on translation of the
EixE financial statements of foreign entities - - - 387,964 - - - 387,964
PR IHERRE + ERARI Reclassifcation of net charge in fair value of equity
INEERERES RN instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
Et2ENGEMERETEZ  income upon derecognition
NFEESES - - (13,859) - - - 13,853 -
BEETRESTZEERRR  Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to exercise of share
options - - - - - - - -
DARERUARGIEAZHAE  Provision for equity-settled share-based compensafion
ZBERADEE and other adjustment - - - - - 817 (352) 465
ERgf Profitfor the year - - - - - - 1493,126 1493126
19ERERE 2019 final dividend - - - - - - R0 (9201
ANFHHRE 2020 interim dividend - - - - - - (112,460) (112,460)
20205125318 At 31 December 2020 (220,986) 270,120 335,848 18,199 700,254 4210 20,439,221 21,546,866
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40. FIMEZMETH

MR2017F12A8H « AFRITETHEEER D
FENIBEAE 5115,000,0005 7T 2 & HR 3 278
BIEFES 2 BIN—REARES (I —BRERE
%1) - HBRAFEmEERE -

WEEESERBMANRT  RESELER
FREBARBEER - RRMEEN—RER
BHFRBE - BRIKFRITHEEEE - QIR
—REABHFZ AR ERMEERESERA
HERZEZH °

HEITHEHR2022412 A8H iR HEER
I KRB F B R 54.625% @ FHEEFEINF—K -
Hig - WEIN—BRERNESFAWER - JREEX
BIAGSFER — X RERSTHERBERES
B N248.525F o BIRFEIN—AREANFEFH Z IR
RAGHFETP S 2 38 7E - RFBITHRBUERE X
1 REBUEZIRESZ AT g 25T

HESEBSERREIAE - RHRITAINERE
HEER KRR ZIKEX N AAREEERL AT
B GERD ) I — B EARTE S

40. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2017, DSB issued Basel lll-compliant undated non-
cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the “AT1
Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000. They
were fully subscribed by DSFH.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies DSB that in the
opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-off is
necessary, without which DSB would become non-viable.

Distribution at 4.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date
to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022. Thereafter,
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the distribution rate will
be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 248.5 basis points. DSB has the right to
cancel distribution payment, subject to the requirement as set out in the
terms and conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution
cancelled shall not be cumulative.

DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or any distribution payment date thereafter.
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4. ZREREREH

A R R RE

() MilrE TREREEEEZWHERER
Al EERNEELEH AR EFHE
HiRE

41.
CASH FLOWS

C))

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and

losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

cash used in operating activities

2021 2020
kA jFTxﬁ& B 2 W R e R AT Operating profit before gains and
2 EE R losses on certain investments and
fixed assets 1,989,650 1,768,906
FA B Net interest income (3,944,276)  (3,695,802)
Nl G Dividend income (15,243) (5,942)
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 373,343 646,968
e Depreciation 394,526 380,751
BER BIE 2 B R SHF R Advances written off net of recoveries (276,162) (361,518)
VARS8 32 A5F LA R A 1 /5 EE b S i 2 188 s Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 480 821
BUFIE Interest received 5,839,787 6,134,803
EAALE Interest paid (1,052,912) (2,358,255)
EUAE Dividend received 15,243 5,942
LEEERABERI ZEE RN Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 3,324,436 2,516,674
EEEERAGBZED Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
— IR & RERITHAEHR KR EIE A BB — cash and balances with banks and
38 B z B Kk HTFR money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months (1,047,941) 473,839
— REIEA A #B:@3 8 A 2 ERITRIF — placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months 1,771,401 (1,626,395)
—REEEABHNES — trading securities 2,475,892 2,184,413
—PTESRTA — derivative financial instruments (1,251,065) 1,530,162
— AR EFE B RS ABENEREE — financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (14,119) 328,768
—EB5ER — trade bills (462,726) (897,261)
—BFEER — advances to customers (6,735,955) (630,522)
— H b IR R — other accounts receivable 1,442,689  (1,650,436)
— AT ERE A HEE T AR EE — financial assets at fair value through
WEHEmEE other comprehensive income (661,325) (698,347)
— DA SRR AT | BR ) & BU B BE — financial assets at amortised cost (2,240,061) (6,879,639)
—iRITIER — deposits from banks (1,797,245) 1,035,373
—RHIEEERARNAE — trading liabilities (58,748)  (3,945,883)
—REER — deposits from customers 5,794,758 7,711,001
— BT EE — certificates of deposit issued (1,555,672) 1,374,183
— HAbFERER B RTER — other accounts payable and accruals (389,222) (3,721,142)
bE XA Exchange adjustments (36,656) (170,460)
R EBMANRE Cash absorbed by from operating
activities (1,441,559) (2,565,672)
XNBEBEITHFREZ TR Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (85,161) (159,356)
EEEBNFN Hong Kong profits tax paid (525,703) (870,368)
B8 IR Overseas tax paid (10,675) (22,361)
KRB MR & F8E Net cash used in operating activities (2,063,098) (3,117,757)
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M. REREREBLAERMFE @

(2) EREREBFERN  RERZEARS
HERERBEAGEIEARUATE
Mz T ol%er  REEESLCEERR
REATERERERERSBEZLE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

M e known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2021 2020

& MAERITHIAEER Cash and balances with banks 2,636,182 4,154,361
JREIE A 1ES {6 A 3 A T 2 A0 K A8 BiTF K Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months 7,241,778 10,026,175
JRENHA B 1E3 & A sk LA R 2 FERITRIFF 3K Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 1,421,398 474,017
BERFEEERENESFNZ BERE Treasury bills included in trading

securities 2,304,220 482,991
BIERAATEF 2 EEZHHA Treasury bills included in financial

Hth2ER=NEREEN 2 BERER assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,439,243 3,551,262

RESE Z R P RERTTH) 45 £4382,987,000/8 7T
(2020%F : 405,550,000/ 70) B[ TR & R ERIE
+IHE IRETIRRBESEIRE RERITHLE
ERJERIER ©

16,042,821 18,688,806

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$382,987,000 (2020:
HK$405,550,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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M. ZERESRELERNT@® 41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(R) REMETDH BB ZHIERE (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRFAMAEEREME LS 2 AEZS - BF The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
REMFBRe 228 - REAMEBEGTH BE 18 activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
EREREIARKBeRESELAEBLERE from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were,
mu;,uﬁﬁW"*ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ/ﬁébfﬁﬁme%fﬁ ° or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
BREREED
A=Vt k]
Total
liabilities
HESE BIEER ERFIR from
Lease Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
K2020F1 A1H At 1 January 2020 436,517 5,510,181 92,656 6,039,354
BMEREMEE) Changes from financing cash flows:
SHBEITREER Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBESRLHE debt securities issued - - (229,021) (229,021)
EREERR Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,746,731) - (1,746,731)
EHEHERR Repayment of lease liabilities (193,822) - - (193,822)
BMERSM 2 EEBE Total changes from financing cash flows (193,822) (1,746,731) (229,021) (2,169,574)
Hip#e) - Other changes:
ERTREEBREBES Interest accrued on subordinated notes
_ ZIESHIS and debt securities issued - - 183,669 183,669
%ﬁiﬁﬁg\ﬁ% Additions to lease liabilities 439,890 = = 439,890
EHER Exchange difference (565) (16,649) - (17,214)
HEEEZASXH Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,574 = = 10,574
NEEEE) Fair value change = 81,657 = 81,657
Hit2e)as Total other changes 449,899 65,008 183,669 698,576
720206128318 At 31 December 2020 692504 3,828,458 47304 4,568,356
EREE Exchange difference 2,004 - - 2,004
K2021F1 A1H At 1 January 2021 694,598 3,828,458 47,304 4,570,360
MERERZED Changes from financing cash flows:
fiﬁﬂ?"fﬂﬁf &1 Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBESHIE debt securities issued - - (170,924) (170,924)
BATIRIEER Issue of subordinated notes - 2,320,246 - 2,320,246
BERERER Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,949,775) - (1,949,775)
EEHERE Repayment of lease liabilities (199,800) - - (199,800)
MERSR L HEHE Total changes from financing cash flows (199,800) 370,471 (170,924) (253)
Hin#s) Other changes:
BERITREREREES Interest accrued on subordinated notes
_ ZIERNE and debt securities issued - - 175,565 175,565
SEHEaE Additions to lease liabilities 110,438 - - 110,438
ERER Exchange difference 50 14,610 - 14,660
HEGEIFETH Interest expense on lease liabilities 9,654 - - 9,654
NFEZE Fair value change - (85,093) - (85,093)
HiBEHE Total other changes 120,142 (70,483) 175,565 225,224
720215128310 At 31 December 2021 614,940 4,128,446 51,945 4,795,331
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42. EFRTFES

BIFES D AIEN (5622GE ) F178 (RBEESE
FZER) - EEERTFTESFEHE20214 %2020
F12A1BIEFEZHEFS W25 -

42. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are shown as below.

2021 2020
M2A31B 2 B FARIEEAE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
—ERRBK — Loans and advances 71 34
FRARAR G Z &= BEER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
— BRI — Loans and advances 106 102

520219 R2020%F 3t 2 i B 5 i — P
BARE - DESAATE -

43. BREALTZRS

BEREALRZFEALARNERXERESS
—7 0 B HEERMBREERK T HET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZE KRS
IHAEAFER  REALTRESBHEEA
=+ o

R20214F 220205 » AEEEEREA T BIEA
KEZERAT ARMBAR - BRARZK
RAEFEEKARERGIHBEEEATE I ZA
AETEZEBEMER S - AARBIUIFNTE
EhERMASE ZMBERER - CHZFL TS
HARARBRSEEREZ R ZHETER -
ZEEERBEEBRAMRBEAEIEE 2HA - R
REMKBEEMEZLRXZTIRBAEEZERE
% BRHE - —RERGERKRES - ZAFE
BENFAEARBRRBBHEET o

The above relevant transactions in 2021 and 2020 were all transacted
by a subsidiary and nil by the Company.

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

During 2021 and 2020, the Group entered into various continuing
connected transactions with related parties including the holding
company, fellow subsidiaries of the Group, companies directly or
indirectly controlled or significantly influenced by the shareholders
or directors of the holding company. These, as described in Note (a)
below and being continuing connected transactions, had been reviewed
by the Company’s independent non-executive directors in their review
of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their review and
enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-executive
directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected transactions
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from the
continuing connected transactions (within the definition of Rule 14A.31
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing
Rules”)) entered into with the holding company and fellow subsidiaries
during the year. The aggregate values of these transactions are
within or consistent with the respective annual caps applicable to the
Group pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and 14A.54 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Income or expense arising from transactions involving subsidiaries,
namely DSB, BCM and another subsidiary of the Group are as follows:

BA/ %%

B EHRA

F14AE

BRED Excluded/

REAIE1AAE exempted

Subject to from

Chapter 14A  Chapter 14A

of the of the

20214 2021 Listing Rules  Listing Rules

EAFE () Interest paid (Note (i) N/A (3,628)

BUGSRITFEE (7)) Bank charges received (Note (i)) N/A 1,574
BRHEREAARERE RAX Rentals and related building management fee

(i) and charges received (Note (ii)) N/A 4,357
ERHSREBAAEEEERAX Rentals and related building management fee

(5 (iii)) and charges paid (Note (iii)) N/A (3,423)

BUEEE (F(v)) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 13,046 N/A

BEURB A RENE (FE(v)) Insurance commission and referral fees

received (Note (v)) 25,437 N/A

B RERE (FE(vi)) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (8,189) N/A

BR/HE

e ETARA

F14AE

B LT Excluded/

HAIF14AE exempted

Subject to from

Chapter 14A Chapter 14A

of the of the

2020F 2020 Listing Rules Listing Rules

BAIHME(GE()) Interest paid (Note (i) N/A (3,238)

BUERITFER (7()) Bank charges received (Note (i)) N/A 1,586
BhEEREBAEEEE AT Rentals and related building management fee

(i) and charges received (Note (ii)) N/A 5,140
ERNHERMEAAEERE KX Rentals and related building management fee

(5 (iii)) and charges paid (Note (iii) N/A (3,416)

BUEEE (F(v)) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 13,199 N/A

YRR A RENE (FE(v)) Insurance commission and referral fees
received (Note (v)) 27,302 N/A
BARBRRE (3E(vi)) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (9,150) N/A

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. EBREALTZRZ ®)
() HERATRBRAMBLATNR Z (&)

AEE QRS RMEEE T RRRMZRITR

RIRITRAEEEMK S A B AR A B RIE
AEENB AR 2 RRME A E (G R Ea

SEDREERRITRE - BEXRLE 88
#iE - XERRITERES - ERAREPRE -
R EARRRERR -

BFAXERAE  aPEER  XERFREPZR
TIR% » THRBRIRER P REMRRARETA
SEEMEPZHARAARET AN ERER -
ERREP RGN EERRLIRIRERRS
XENY BiIEmHRERE - ERREPRIEZ
BRETISEPILEEEFH - ERITAIAZHE
FT AL - REREERN S RBEE 2B E(EH
R REREMFER  AIBREN—FHETH
DH6ME A EFEA T AR - PIAZZRITIR
B EEE - R SZRETF R - At -
AEEERHERERRZRITREE - THRERE
EFHREG -

BARR ZRITHBARRAARHERMEBET A
AR ZRITRE - RAEEREMETPRREZ
—RIBITIRB R - BIRRETEEGRE
17 - ARBERAT S REBRHZFRITRY
LAKE N R EZ FIRITIRGIEE RAREL — B
ZEBIA -

AEBEZRITHE A RN —RRIEFEERBIZH
RMEFPREFHERTRERER - ZFRS
REMRBERAFR(BEEERAFALBAF
) o RARBEZRITHBRRFERERZER
BEATEHEBKERR - gt EHRAME -
R EBEEKES R RFREFFER ETRAISE
1AABFIREZIEER S °

43.
(a

Note:

(0]

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Group provide standard banking services
to members of the holding company and fellow subsidiaries not being
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including
cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card
merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and
deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way as
they are provided to other customers of the Group under standard account
opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities and co-brand
credit card arrangements are provided under normal commercial contracts
and are at market standard. The standard market practice for credit
card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed term, but allow for
termination at the option of the bank by giving written notice. The co-brand
credit card arrangements between the Group and the DSFH Group can be
terminated after the first two years by either party giving not less than six
months’ notice in writing. All such banking services, by their nature, are not
normally provided for a fixed term. Accordingly, the banking arrangement
between the Group and the DSFH Group are not for a fixed term.

The banking services provided by the Company’s banking subsidiaries
to the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by the Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by the Group to the DSFH Group enables the Group
to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of the
banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of the Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual course
of their businesses. Such services and products include the taking of
deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and deposits at
call). Customers who place deposits with the banking subsidiaries of
the Group include members of the DSFH Group. For purposes of the
Listing Rules, the placing of deposits provided by members of the DSFH
Group constitute continuing connected transactions within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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R ERBR (1976) OB PIRER FUAFTER1T FORPI 5
XIRTRZYEHRE

AFRITRFIEERITERESE TAEMET
AFEREBZKBRAE - BIAFIRKR(1976)F
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SRPIP FIRITIRFTE £ 2 BERE A A AR B
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Tk - ZBEHERE EMBRAIFE14A.761& 2 &K
BEKFENRS - WEARET ETRAE14AE
Z R R B

AF#E1TAHigh Standardd A3

AFTER1TEEIHigh Standards] sz —IE7 B 17555 ©
BE W - AFIRTTIRFTE £ 2 BB A A A High
StandardZ 7% - =& - AETEERH
AHEHEEA -

ERUBRELENE16RERE - AEEE
HAZMBARRIEERHZ - LERRER
BEE ZBAHERRARSTE LWMRRE
14.04(1)(a) I B —RARE R 5 (BN E A EE)
ZEE o ZAMENE LTRRIFE14A7616 2 &
BE#EKFNRS - WERET ETRAFE14A
BZRBREKE -

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(0]

(i)

(iii)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group (Continued)

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of the Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security over
the assets of the Group is granted in respect of such financial assistance.
On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are exempted from
complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. Other
banking services are fall to be de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76
and is exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSI (1976) and MIC and DSB and BCM

DSB and BCM have leased certain of their owned properties to members
of the DSFH Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited
(“DSI (1976)”) and Macau Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their
office premises. DSB and BCM received from DSI (1976) and MIC the
lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management charges
and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred.
The lease is fall to be de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76 and
is exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of property by DSB from HS

A lease back agreement has been entered into by DSB with High
Standard Investment Limited (“HS”). Pursuant to which, paid to HS the
lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management charges
and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred.

With the implementation of HKFRS16, when the Group enter into a lease
transaction as a lessee with its fellow subsidiaries and recognise the right-
of-use asset, the lease transaction is regarded as an one-off connected
transaction (i.e. an acquisition of capital assets) under the definition of
transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(a). The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH Group

On 31 December 2019, DSB entered into a new computer and
administrative services agreement with DSFH, for a fixed term of three
years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the services agreements, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following (collectively,
the “Services”):

o computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

. administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

. secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group.

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB which
historically has been operating to provide administrative and computer
services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-recovery
basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a fee enables
the Group to continue to expand its scale and operational capabilities
while costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services are recovered
from the DSFH Group.
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(v)

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

()
7 88 e A3 1h Mo Eth SE TSN AR 7S (v)
(F) BEAHRER(1976) - AHTIRERAIE IR (a)

IRERETSL 2 20 38 BRI 1k

AFTIRBE (1976) B A FTER1T AT LT 84 173
SRR - BRAFRITZHTT
WRERERDHE—RBRRRBRER  BEF
HA=9F B2020F1A1BREN - &
2022612 431 BARIE

RIRBERIBE A RITEI L H D 1%
BEFARARIE W - BRATIRITZH1THE
BHEBRSH—BRRBRER  BEFHA
=4 H2020F1 81 BBEK - £2022
F12A31HLKRILE &

SRR B BB P 7 £ ERIT AT SL 37 90 8 h el
BRI - BRRFIFERITZH
IRRERR D HE—RRBER - BEF
HA=9F B2020F1A1BREY &
2022512 A31 AL ©

IRIEARFTRER (1976) ELAFTIRITRI L 2
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TR BEREDTTREMD B
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Note: (Continued)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI (1976), DSIA and
MIC

DSI (1976) entered into new distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and distribution of
general insurance products through the branch network of DSB
for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2022;

DSIA entered into new distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreements with DSB for the marketing and distribution
of general insurance products through the branch network of DSB
for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2022; and

MIC entered into new distribution agreement and underlying agency
agreement with BCM for the marketing and distribution of general
insurance products through BCM’s branch network for a fixed term
of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by DSI (1976)
with DSB (the “DSI (1976) Distribution Agreement”), DSB will
market and distribute such general insurance products as agreed
between the parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through
its branch and other distribution networks.

Pursuant to the DSI (1976) Distribution Agreement, DSB entered
into an agency agreement with DSI (1976) (the “DSI (1976) Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
products in return for commission payments, as agreed between
the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the DSI (1976)
Agency Agreement, the commission payable by DSI (1976) to DSB
shall, initially, be between 20% and 55% (depending on the product
type) of each year’s premium received in respect of a new or
renewal policy, but which may vary between the parties from time
to time.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “DSIA Distribution Agreement”), DSB markets and
distributes such general insurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time through its branch and other distribution
networks.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI (1976), DSIA and
MIC (Continued)

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB entered into
an agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA Agency Agreements”)
in respect of the sale of certain insurance products in return for
commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the New DSIA Agency Agreement,
the commission payable by DSIA to DSB shall be 50% of the
commission earned by DSIA or at such rate as agreed by both
parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution network.

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM entered into
an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from
time to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of general insurance
products shall, initially, be between 10% and 50% (depending on
the product type) of each year’'s premium received in respect of
new or renewal policies, but which may vary between the parties
from time to time.

In respect of each of the DSI (1976), DSIA and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSI (1976)
and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and
MIC shall reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses
including the registration fees for licences for the bank staff to
sell insurance, sales incentives, marketing expenses and other
costs and expenses related to the performance of the Distribution
Agreements.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)
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(#8) Note: (Continued)
D IH R IR aE R E A R AR 7S (4R (v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)
() HEAFRM(1976) « AETRMR IR RIRFT (a)  Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI (1976), DSIA and

MIC (Continued)

Each of the Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-exclusive
basis and will be for a three-year fixed term with effect from 1
January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022. Each of the DSI
(1976), DSIA and MIC Agency Agreements (collectively the “Agency
Agreements”) is on a mutually non-exclusive basis for a three-
year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022, save that the provisions relating to the payment of
outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force until payment is
received in full.

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
the Group with insurance products and services to be offered to the
customers of the banking subsidiaries of the Group. The distribution
of different types of insurance products through the respective bank
branches and other distribution networks of DSB and BCM in return
for a commission income to be paid by the DSFH Group will also
produce fee income.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b)

Business referral services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a new
cooperation agreement with DSFH (the “New Business Referral
Services Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years with effect
from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022. Pursuant
to the New Business Referral Services Agreement, the Company
shall provide and shall procure members of the Group to, either
directly or via their sole agents (if any), provide members of the
DSFH Group with business referral and insurance brokerage
services in relation to obtaining applications for general insurance
policies to be underwritten by members of the DSFH Group. There is
no commitment on any member of the Group to refer to member(s)
of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or maximum
number and/or amount. Where concluded between the relevant
parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of such business
referral services shall be, if required, reduced into individual written
agreement(s).

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of the Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI (1976) and MIC

On 31 December 2019, the Company and DSFH entered into a
cooperation agreement (the “ Cooperation Agreement”) for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive).

The general insurance policies underwritten by DSI (1976) and MIC
are in the name, and for the benefit, of members of the Group and their
respective customers.

DSI (1976) underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of members of the Group and their respective customers including
policies covering domestic motor, property all risks, public liability, money,
electronic equipment, employees’ compensation and group/personal
accident. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

MIC underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of BCM and its customers including policies covering medical,
personal accident, employees’ compensation, vehicle, properties, civil
liability and money. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable in
arrears on a monthly, yearly or other basis, depending on the type of
insurance policy.

The insurance policies are procured by the Group to enable certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with
relevant regulatory requirements in reducing risks to the Group’s assets,
businesses and operations and/or to provide additional services to the
Group’s customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the fees
proposed by DSI (1976) and MIC respectively are comparable to those
offered by other insurance companies in the market.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, either party to the agreement may
terminate the agreement by giving one month notice in advance to the
other party without having to incur a penalty.
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43.

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family
members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31

FEERIOT - December, the following balances were outstanding:

2021 2020
B R Loans and advances 382 182
7 Deposits 347,395 414,852
R 2 BFEH Undrawn commitments 2,737 2,723
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